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EMERGENCY NUMBERS

FIRE EMERGENCY 9-1-1

AMBULANCE EMERGENCY 9-1-1

POLICE EMERGENCY 9-1-1

Be sure to give your address and name and a call back number
as well as clearly stating the nature of the emergency. DO NOT
HANG UP until you are sure your message has been understood.

TELEPHONE DIRECTORY
FOR ANSWERS ON CALL THE AT:

Administration Town Manager 926-6766

Assessment of Property Assessing Office 929-5837

Bills & Accounts Accounting 929-5815

Building/Electrical Permits Building Inspector 929-5911

Cemeteries High Street Cemetery 926-6659

Certificates of Occupancy Building Inspector 929-5911

District Court Clerk of Courts 926-8117

Dog Licenses Town Clerk 926-0406

Elections/Voter Reg. Town Clerk 926-0406

Fire Routine Business Fire Department 926-3316

Health Complaints & Inspections Building Inspector 929-5911

Library Lane Memorial Library 926-3368

Motor Vehicle Registrations Town Clerk 926-0406

Police Routine Business Police Department 929-4444

Recreation & Parks Recreation Department 926-3932

Rubbish Collection Public Works 926-3202

Transfer Station Public Works 926-4402

Taxes Tax Collector 926-6769

Welfare Assistance Welfare Office 926-5948

Zoning & Building Codes Building Inspector 926-5826

HOURS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Town Offices are open 9 a.m. - 5 p.m. Monday thru Friday

Drive-up service available for Tax Collector

Town Clerk is open 9 a.m. - 6:30 p.m. Monday and

9 a.m. - 5 p.m. Tuesday thru Friday

Lane Memorial Library - Mon. thru Thursday 9 a.m. - 8 p.m.

Friday and Saturday 9 a.m. - 5 p.m.
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Honoring two Hampton Centenarian
residents on the occasion of their 10&11

birthday.

Clara Gale and Margaret Filocamo

Clara Gale turned 100 on July 20, 1999 having served as a ballot clerk for the

Town of Hampton for 72 years. She resides on Exeter Road and remains active

within the community. (Photo by Dottie Malcolm)
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Margaret Filocamo turned 100 on October 31, 1999. She was born in Sicily and

came to the U.S. in 1905 through Ellis Island. She was one of the first residents

ol Fairfield Drive, raising her lour sons in Hamilton.



DEDICATION

The Town of Hampton's Annual Report for 1999 is

dedicated to the memory of the following persons who
served in Town government positions -- both elective

and appointive, as well as in our operational

departments. An appreciative community honors their

years of public service.

Caroline Brewster Town Manager's Secretary

Welfare Officer, 1981-1991

James Piatt Fire Alarm Operator

(Seasonal) 1989-1999

William Sugrue Economic Development

Committee 1994-1997

Ballot Clerk

Parking Lot Attendant

Judith R. Waitt Fire Alarm Operator

1987-1999

Howard Noyes Special Police Officer

Deputy Town Clerk

for many years
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HAMPTON BOARD OF SELECTMEN, 1999

Front Row- Brian Warburton, Frederick C. Rice, Bonnie B. Searle;

Back Row - William H. Sullivan, Virginia B. Bridle
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ELECTED GOVERNMENTAL OFFICIALS
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Frederick C. Rice 929-1517

Brian C. Warburton 926-6063

Bonnie B. Searle 929-0068

William H. Sullivan 926-1497

Virginia B.Bridie 926-7216

ROCKINGHAM COUNTY OFFICIALS (District 1)

Katharin Pratt 926-3531

Brentwood Office 679-2256

Edward "Sandy" Buck, County Treasurer 679-9068

James Reams, County Attorney 642-4249

STATE REPRESENTATIVES (Rockingham District 23)

Russell Bridle 926-8694

Andrew Christie 926-7106

Sheila Francoeur 926-2554

JaneKelley 926-2903

Michael O'Neil 926-7326

STATE SENATOR (District 23)

Beverly Hollingworth 926-4880

EXECUTIVE COUNCILOR (District 3)

Ruth L. Griffin 436-5272

GOVERNOR
Jeanne Shaheen 271-2121

Citizen Service Number 1-800-852-3456

CONGRESSMAN (First District of N.H.)

JohnE. Sununu 1-202-225-5456

U.S. Capital Congressional Directory 1-800-972-3524

U.S. SENATORS
Bob Smith 1-800-922-2230

Judd Gregg 431-2171

PRESIDENT
William Clinton

White House Switchboard 1-202-456-1414

Comments and Opinions 1-202-456-7639
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HAMPTON TOWN OFFICERS/1999
Elected Term Expires

Moderator John R. Walker 2000

Selectmen Frederick C. Rice

Bonnie B. Searle

Brian C. Warburton

William H. Sullivan

Virginia B. Bridle

2000

2000

2001

2002

2002

Town Clerk Arleen Andreozzi

(Deputy-Betty Poliquin)

2001

Collector Joyce Sheehan 2000

of Taxes (Deputy: Janice Manning)

Treasurer Ellen M. Lavin

(Deputy: Margaret Chidester)

2002

Trustees of the John J. Kelley, Sr, Chairman 2000

Trust Funds Robert V. Lessard 2001

Jane Kelley 2002

Supervisors of Charlotte K. Preston, Chairman 2004

the Checklist Betty H. Moore 2000

Judith A. DuBois 2002

Planning Board James Workman, Chairman 2000

Thomas J. Gillick, Jr., Vice Chairman 2002

Peter Olney, Clerk 2000

Keith R. Lessard 2001

Cliff Pratt 2001

Robert Viviano 2002

Brian Warburton, Selectman Member 2000

Alternates: Daniel Trahan 2002

Edward "Sandy" Buck 2001

Craig Salomon 2002

Municipal James Tierney, Chairman 2001

Budget Jane Cameron, Vice Chairman 2000

Committee Warren Leavitt 2001

John Callanan 2002

Michael O'Neil 2000

Sharleene Hurst 2002

John Skumin 2000

Richard Reniere
-7-
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Debra Jackson 2000

Lisa Beaudry 2002

Suzanne Roy 2002

Richard Hansen 2001

Virginia Bridle, Selectman 2000

Carol Hollingworth, School Board 2000

Thomas Higgins, Precinct Member 2000

Library Mary Lou O'Connor , Chairman 2002

Trustees Elizabeth A. Lavallee 2001

Gerry McConnell 2002

Thomas E. Donaldson 2000

James Ingliss (Resigned) 2001

Jeremiah Lonergan (Appointed) 2000

Cemetery Richard Bateman, Chairman 2001

Trustees Brian Lacey 2000

Matthew J. Shaw 2002

Zoning Board of Curtis G. McCrady, Chairman 2002

Adjustment Robert "Vic" Lessard, Vice Chairman 2000

Wendell C. Ring, Jr., Clerk 2001

Carolyn Payzant (Resigned) 2002

Bruce Nickerson 2000

Richard True (Appointed) 2000

Alternates: Judith Doyle 2000

APPOINTED BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

Conservation

Commission

Alternates:

Vivianne G. Marcotte, Chairman 2000

Bonnie P. Thimble 2001

Peter Tilton, Jr. 2001

Ellen Goethel 2001

Daniel P. Gangai 2002

Nancy Batchelder 2000

Ralph Fatello 2002

Ralph Falk 2001

Fred Palazzolo 2002

Highway Safety

Committee

Alternates:

Albert Greenfeld, Chairman 2002

Judith A. Park 2001

Robert R. Ross 2001

Fred Palazzolo 2002

Dean Ellis 2002

Alan W. Roach 2000

Jane Cameron 2001



Leased Land Glyn P. Eastman, Chairman 2001

Real Estate Hollis W. Blake 2002

Commission John H. Woodburn 2003

Arthur J. Moody 2000

Raymond E. Alie 2002

Mosquito Control Margaret Facey (Resigned) 2000

Commission John Skumin 2001

Shade Tree Susan W. Erwin, Chairman 2001

Commission Virginia Raub 2002

Marilyn Wallingford 2000

Recreation Michael O'Neil, Chairman 2002

Advisory Eleanor Dawson 2002

Council Gary Bashline 2000

Debra Jackson 2002

Jeff Cullinane 2000

Rita Graham 2001

Catherine Sullivan 2001

Jill Gosselin 2001

Fred Rice, Sel. Rep. 2000

Chris Singleton, School Board Rep. 2001

Bill Morrissey, HYA Rep. 2001

Alternates: Suzanne Roy 2001

Les Sheperd 2002

Sharon Aslin 2002

Cable TV Advisory Thomas Andrews, Chairman 2000

Commitee William H. Sullivan 2001

Richard W. Bateman 2002

John W. Donaldson 2000

Doug DeSilva 2000

Brad Jett 2002

Larry Poliquin 2001

John Nickerson 2002

Brian Warburton (Selectmen) 2001

Growth Management George DellaRusso 2000

Oversight Board Curtis McCrady 2000

Donald Tilbury 2000

Heritage Commission Stephen Maclnnes, Chair. 2000

Frederick C. Rice, Sel. Rep. 2000

Elizabeth Aykroyd, Clerk 2000

Helen Hobbs 2002
-9-



Ansell Palmer 2001

Bonnie Thimble, Conserv. Rep. 2002

Roger Syphers 2001

MaryAnn McAden 2001

Bruce Nickerson 2001

George DellaRusso 2002

Daniel Nersesian 2002

USS HAMPTON Edward "Sandy" Buck, Chairman 2002

Committee Katharin Pratt, Vice Chairman 2002

Theresa McGinnis, Clerk 2002

Richard Reniere, Treasurer 2002

Kenneth W. Malcolm 2002

Katherin C. Pratt 2002

Walter A.Connor 2002

Mark Ryan 2002

Douglas S. Aykroyd 2002

Dyana Lassonde 2002

Daniel Nersesian 2002

APPOINTED REPRESENTATIVES TO COMMISSIONS AND
DISTRICTS

Rockingham Planning Peter B.Olney April 1, 2002

Commission Warren T. Bambury April 1, 2002

Clifton J. Pratt April 1, 2002

Seacoast Metropolitan Clifton J. Pratt June 30, 2002

Planning Organization Warren T. Bambury June 30, 2002

Southeast Regional Virginia Raub May 15, 2002

Refuse Disposal District (SRDD/53B)
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Town Manager

Administrative Assistant

Director of Accounting

Building Inspector/Health Officer

Assistant Bldg. Inspector

Code Enforcement Officer

Assessor

Deputy Assessor

Chief of Police

Fire Chief/

Emerg. Management Dir.

Deputy Fire Chief

Public Works Director

Operations Manager

Recreation Director

APPOINTED OFFICIALS

James S. Barrington

Karen M. Anderson

Dawna Duhamel

Daniel Vincent

Ken Maple

Robert Charette

Robert A. Estey

Angela A. Boucher

William L. Wrenn, Jr.

Henry Lipe, Jr.

Anthony B. Chouinard

John R. Hangen

Douglas R. Mellin

Dyana Lassonde

Town Counsel

SHAINES & McEACHERN - John H. McEachern, Esq.

SHEEHAN, PHINNEY, BASS & GREEN: Reynold Perry, Negotiator

VILLAGE DISTRICT

Hampton Beach Village

District ("Precinct")

Commission

Skip Windemiller, Jr.

Michael Roy

Thomas Higgins



CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN

1999 was a year of significant progress in many areas for the Town of

Hampton, despite starting the year faced with the town's first default budget and

the prospect of significant additional taxes for the state education funding crisis.

Excellent planning and coordination by the Town Manager and

department heads allowed us to operate at the reduced funding level without

laying off personnel or curtailing essential public safety services. Some items,

such as sidewalk construction and certain recreation programs were cut, but a

revamping of waste collection methods allowed the recycling program to be

continued. Other programs continued at lower levels.

Former Fire Chief William "Skip" Sullivan was elected to the Board of

Selectmen in March. The new chief, Henry Lipe, was put to the task right away,

as the first of two devastating fires struck Hampton Beach in April. The second

fire struck in June, destroying the popular "Old Salt" restaurant and neighboring

hotels and businesses. Some residents hoped that the need to rebuild after these

fires would provide the opportunity for revised zoning that could change and

improve the face of Hampton Beach on a smaller scale, since funding for a

comprehensive beach area master plan had been rejected by voters in March.

No smaller scale zoning changes were proposed, however. Hopefully, future

efforts will result in a modest, but complete, look at Hampton Beach zoning and

infrastructure needs.

Town Meeting had approved an appropriation out of the Road Improve-

ment Capital Reserve Fund to pay for the town's 20% share of Route One
reconstruction, but voted down an article to rebuild the Highland Avenue sewer

when that road is rebuilt. The Board decided to delay the start of work on Route

One for one year in order to provide sufficient time to relocate utility lines, and

also proposed that the cost of the Highland Avenue sewer be placed in the next

operating budget to ensure that it would be included at the least overall cost.

Funding to place School Resource Officers in Hampton schools was

also voted down in March, but an anonymous donor provided funds which

enabled officers to be hired during the last few weeks of the 1999 school year.

SAU 21 offered funding which, when combined with a COPS grant application

filed by the Board of Selectmen, would allow officers to be in the schools during

the 1999-2000 school year. One School Resource Officer uncovered a bomb
threat just before Christmas, proving the value of the program.

Hampton joined a coalition of "donor" communities, led by

Portsmouth, to oppose the property tax plan passed by the legislature for

educational funding. Hampton had previously gone on record as opposed to all

of the proposed funding proposals, since none of the funds were actually

reserved for education and would put an unnecessary hardship on residents

without benefiting schools.

In August, the USS HAMPTON, a Los Angeles class nuclear attack

submarine, arrived on the seacoast for its second namesake city visit. The crew

hosted tours of the sub, and the town reciprocated by hosting cookouts and



community events for the crew.

During the year the board took actions with regard to its park facilities.

It was decided to keep the small area next to Tuck Museum as a playground and

to accept a private donation of equipment to upgrade it, rather than convert it to

parking. Plans were approved to enlarge the parking area around Eaton Park,

and "no parking" restrictions were placed on the roads around Founder's Park to

preclude high school students from clogging the area.

Continuous good weather made 1999 one of the best seasons on record

for Hampton Beach, and continued through September for the Seafood Festival,

which had the largest attendance ever. Despite a threat from Hurricane Floyd,

the annual Seniors Weekend was also held in good weather, and was followed a

few weeks later by the Founder's Day celebration.

The board became involved in two zoning issues during the year, due to

the fact that the Building Inspector is appointed by, and reports to the Board of

Selectmen. Strict enforcement of the town's sign ordinance created angry

reactions among those in violation, but also revealed that the ordinance had

several conflicting or unclear sections. The board suspended those conflicting

portions of the rule until a revision can be approved at the 2000 Town Meeting.

When it was discovered in the spring that most rental units did not meet

even basic life safety codes to qualify for certificates of occupancy (CO's), a

compromise was worked out which allowed landlords to self-report compliance

so that they could open for the summer season. By September, however, only

half of the units were in compliance, and it was decided that full compliance

would be an absolute requirement before next season. As a result of the political

turmoil which these two issues generated, the Board is sponsoring a warrant

article asking to have the building inspector report to the Town Manager.

On October, the Public Works Director advised the board that the

town's wastewater treatment plant was at capacity due to the issuance of new,

tighter effluent standards by the US Environmental Protection Agency, and that

any additional input to the plant might result in non-compliance with EPA
standards and possible large fines. The board decided to implement an

immediate moratorium on any new sewer hookups which might increase the flow

into the plant. Several applicants have sought exemption from the moratorium,

and board decisions have been based upon the basic principle that no additional

flows can enter the plant.

The year's highlight was the November move into the new town office

building, formerly the Citizen's Bank building at 100 Winnacunnet Road. The

two-year process of purchasing and renovating the building allowed town staff to

vacate the overcrowded facility at 136 Winnacunnet Road, which had been built

as a "temporary" facility more than 50 years earlier. Now there is adequate

room to conduct town business, serve the public and hold board and committee

meetings at a fraction of the cost to voters that a new facility would have

required.

Another milestone reached during 1999 was having two residents, Clara

Gale and Margaret Filocamo, reach the age of 100 years. We were successful in

-13-



negotiating multi-year collective bargaining contracts under the same terms for

all six labor unions in town, and processed numerous permits, cemetery deeds,

abatements, liens and releases.

As we approach the March, 2000 vote, there are two major items which

are in most need of approval by the voters. The first is the upgrade of the waste-

water treatment plant so that the moratorium can be lifted and the town can

operate normally. The second in the construction of a new police facility, as first

recommended more than 30 years ago, to replace the aging, unsafe building our

fine police force must work out of. These are both bond issues, not lump sum

payments, and are manageable.

Finally, I would like to thank my colleagues on the board for their

service and dedication. Much has been made of the fact that not all our members

say eye to eye on many issues, but that is exactly what makes our government

great! There are no rubber stamps, and everyone has been free to express their

views as they saw fit, no matter how unusual or improper that may have seemed

to other board members or residents. Every issue has been fairly and completely

discussed, and in the end, it has been the majority vote that has determined the

final course of action. Many thanks to the Town Manager, department heads,

and all town employees. You are the ones who make Hampton a great place to

live!

I thank you for the honor of serving on and chairing this board. I love

the Town of Hampton just as I know you do, and I feel privileged to live, work

and serve here.

Frederick C. Rice

Chairman

Past and present Selectmen enjoy the hist Selectmen's Meeting at 136 Winnacunnet Road.

Lett to Right: Thomas (iilliek, Arthur Moody. Ansel Palmer, Virginia Bridle, Mary-Louise

Brian Warburtin, Robert "Vie" Lessard. Frederick C. Rice, Bonnie Searle, James Fallon

Sullivan, Glyn Eastman, Dona Janetos, Michael Piouffe.

Woolsej

,

William
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MOVING DAY FOR THE TOWN OFFICES!
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Town Manager's Report

As I look back over 1999, I see a year of change. The retirement of Skip

Sullivan as Fire Chief and the resignation of John Q. Adams as Director of

Accounting brought two new department heads to Hampton. Hank Lipe joined

us in March as the new Fire Chief and was immediately thrown into the process

of reworking the budget to fit the default level. Our new Director of

Accounting, Dawna Duhamel, came to us in May from the Legislative Budget

Office. Both are excellent additions to the staff and welcomed to Hampton.

In the 3
rd

year of the Official Ballot Town Meeting, the voters passed a

"default" budget. This led to an examination of programs, services, and

expenditures. In order to reduce expenses we accepted changes in the garbage

and recycling collection systems creating an environmentally friendly increase

in recycling and decrease in costly waste to the landfill. The budget reviews also

brought a reduction in some recreation department programs, and led to

proposed articles on the 2000 ballot to change the funding mechanisms for

several town services.

As Citizens Bank completed its new building and moved into it in the

spring, renovation work began in earnest on the new town office. This

culminated in a change of town offices some 50 years after the fire that led to

the "temporary" building that has housed the town government for half the 20 ,h

Century. It is also the first change of location for Hampton's seat of government

in 150 years.

•16-



Utility construction began to change the face of Lafayette Road. Signs

began to move and power poles began to shift apart. Water and gas lines were

laid and telephone company crews worked on overhead and underground lines.

All of this is only the precursor to the changes that 2000 will bring as Lafayette

Road is excavated for reconstruction.

Sun Valley received sewer service, a new Winnacunnet Road lift station

was completed, and a sewer moratorium was imposed as another was about to

be lifted. The sewer plant became overloaded and the water company declared

water rationing in the face of a summer long drought. Two fires at the beach

changed the face of Ocean Boulevard and brought discussions of change in

zoning and building regulations. The "Old Salt" changed into the "Whale's

Tale", "The Eatery" changed into "The Courtyard", and Lamie's restaurant

changed into "The Cat in the Custard Cup". The Chamber of Commerce
changed Executive Directors after 17 years with Glen French at the helm.

Labor and management in the Town changed their methods of negotiating

with one another and tried a collaborative approach that was daring for both

sides of the table. It resulted in six "win-win" contracts being ready for the 2000

warrant and a savings in labor negotiations fees. We are all hopeful that it is also

a wave of the future for cooperative labor-management relations.

We look forward to the calendar changing from the familiar 1900's to the

future filled with promise and uncertainty. Y2K has given the world pause to

consider the weaknesses that come from the strengths brought by its technology.

The changing calendar years give us all time to reflect on the changes behind us

and speculate on the changes ahead. Through tragedy and triumph, we must

commit ourselves to work together in the face of change. History has taught us

that change is inevitable, but progress is not. It is our individual and collective

gift to take responsibility for the moment of history we occupy to make our

town and our world a place where the inevitable changes of our world bring the

much needed progress toward a better place in which to live.

While our society has developed an increasing emphasis on our individual

rights, it is how we handle our responsibilities that ultimately determines what

legacy we leave to the future. As we turn from the past and look toward the

future, let us resolve to individually and collectively work together to make that

legacy once for which we can all be proud.

Respectfully,

James S. Barrington

Town Manager

Any kingdom divided against itself is

laid waste; and any city or house

divided against itself shall not stand.

Matthew 12:25
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ANNUAL TOWN MEETING
JANUARY 30, 1999

FIRST SESSION

RESULTS OF BALLOTING
MARCH 9, 1999

Hampton Town Meeting was called to order by Moderator John Walker

at 8:30 a.m. on Saturday, January 30, 1999 at the Winnacunnet High School

Auditorium. David Lang led the assembly in the pledge of allegiance. The

invocation was delivered by Father Michael Griffin, and Moderator Walker

called for a moment of silence for our friends who died this year.

Those present on the stage and introduced by Mr. Walker were:

Selectmen Bonnie Searle, Frederick C. Rice, Michael Plouffe, Virginia Bridle,

and Brian Warburton; Town Manager, James Barrington; Town Attorney, John

McEachern; Police Chief William Wrenn; Public Works Director, John Hangen;

and Chairman of the Budget Committee, James Tierney. Deputy Fire Chief,

Anthony Chouinard joined the meeting in progress at 11:30. Also introduced

were: Karen Anderson, Administrative Assistant; John Q. Adams, Director of

Accounting; and Arleen Andreozzi, Town Clerk.

On a motion by Brian Lacey and second by John Skumin it was voted

to waive reading of the Warrant in its entirety. The Moderator stated he would

read each article in turn. He noted that articles two through five were planning

board articles and would not be addressed at this time unless the assembly

wished it. He stated the rules by which the meeting would be conducted and the

process by which the articles would be presented, moved, and discussed.

(Articles one through five were not discussed on January 30th, but, for

constancy the articles are reported here in numerical order)

The voters of Hampton met at Marston School on March 9, 1999 to

elect officers and to vote on all articles. Moderator Walker opened the polls at

7:00 AM and they remained open until 8:00 PM. It was moved and seconded to

waive reading of the warrant. Number of voters at polls 2868. Absentee votes

counted were 351. Number of registered voters 11,579. Total vote cast was

3,219 or 28%.

Article 1

To choose by non-partisan ballot: Two (2) Selectmen for Three Years;

One (1) Treasurer for Three Years; One (1) Trustee of the Trust Funds for Three

Years; Two (2) Library Trustees for Three Years; Two (2) Planning Board

Members for Two Years; One (1) Cemetery Trustee for Three Years; Four (4)

Municipal Budget Committee Members for Three Years; One (1) Municipal

Budget Committee Member for One Year; Two (2) Zoning Board of Adjustment

Members for Three Years.
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RESULTS OF BALLOTING ON MARCH 9, 1999

SELECTMAN TREASURER
VIRGINIA BRIDLE 1821* ELLEN M. LAVIN 2538*

MICHAEL T. PLOUFFE 1497

WILLIAM SULLIVAN 2048*

CEMETERY TRUSTEE
TRUSTEE of the TRUST FUND MATTHEW SHAW 2426*

JANE KELLEY 2175*

CAROLYN R. PAYZAN 796

LIBRARY TRUSTEE
CATHERINE B. ANDERSON 1389

GERALD "JERRY" McCONNELL1539*
MARY LOU O'CONNOR 1782*

MUNICIPAL BUDGET COMMITTEE (THREE YEARS)
LISABEAUDRY 1477*

SHARLEENE P. HURST 1338*

DEBORAH N. JACKSON 1 128

MARYANNE McADEN 920

JOHNPAYZANT 1393*

RICHARD RENIERE 954

SUZANNE ROY 1478*

MUNICIPAL BUDGET COMMITTEE (ONE YEAR)
RICHARD HANSEN 1459*

SCOTT D. VANDERSALL 937

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
807

Recount

DAVID BLATCHFORD 808

STEVEN JUSSEAUME 716 723

CURTIS G. McCRADY 1256* 1261*

CAROLYN R. PAYZANT 1060* 1066*

RICHARD TRUE 1056 1054

* denotes winner

ARTICLE 2

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 1 to amend Article

I, Section 1.6, Definitions as proposed by the Planning Board to read as follows:

Kennel: "Any premises, except where accessory to an agricultural use or a

veterinarian hospital, where five or more dogs, ten weeks in age or older are

bred, raised, trained or kept."

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1968 NO 890

ARTICLE 2 PASSED
-19-



ARTICLE 3

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 2 as proposed by

the Planning Board to renumber Articles as follows: Renumber Article XVI
Amendments to XVII; Renumber Article XVII Violations to XVIII; and

ARTICLE XVIII Validity to XIX.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1798 NO 695

ARTICLE 3 PASSED

ARTICLE 4

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 3 as proposed by

the Planning Board to amend Article 1 Section 1.6 Definitions, by (1) adding

definitions for "Tower": Shall mean any structure that is designed and

constructed primarily for the purpose of supporting one or more antennas,

including self-supporting lattice towers, guy towers, or monopole towers. The

term includes radio and television transmission towers, microwave towers,

common-carrier towers, cellular telephone towers, alternative tower structures,

and the like. This term does not include amateur radio operator's equipment, as

licensed by the FCC. "Alternative tower structure": Innovative siting techniques

that shall mean man-made trees, clock towers, bell steeples, light poles, and

similar alternative-design mounting structures that camouflage or conceal the

presence of antennas or towers. "Amateur Radio Tower": A structure that is not

used for human occupancy, which contains no heated space, which exceeds the

height of 35 feet, yet does not exceed 65 feet in height, and is utilized

exclusively for amateur purposes. "Antenna" : Shall mean any exterior

apparatus designed for telephonic, radio, television, personal communications

services (PCS), pager network, or any other communications through the sending

and/or receiving of electromagnetic waves of any bandwidth. "FAA" : An
abbreviation that shall mean the Federal Aviation Administration. "FCC": An
abbreviation that shall mean the Federal Communications Commission.

"Height": When referring to a tower or other antenna support structure, means

the vertical distance from grade plane to the highest point of the support

structure, even if such highest point is an antenna or other appurtenance."; and

"Telecommunications Facilities: Shall mean any structure, antenna, tower, or

other devise which provides commercial mobile wireless services, unlicensed

wireless services, cellular phone services, specialized mobile radio

communications (SMR), and personal communications service (PCS), and

common carrier wireless exchange access services"; (2) deleting Section III

3.39 and replacing it with number 3.39.1 to be re-titled "Amateur Radio

Towers"; and (3) replacing Article XVI with the new Telecommunications

Facility Ordinance which will read as follows:

TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY ORDINANCE
16.1 PURPOSE AND GOAL: The general purpose of this ordinance is to

preserve the authority oi the Town of Hampton to regulate and provide tor

reasonable opportunity for the siting of telecommunication facilities. Any such

facilities shall not exceed 100 feet in height.
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16.2 Any telecommunication facilities shall be located within the

Telecommunications District. The District shall consist of an extension in an

easterly and westerly direction of 350 feet from the centerline of Route 95. The

Zoning Board of Adjustment may grant a Special Exception for Towers on

property owned, leased or controlled by the Town, or for retrofitting on an

existing structure greater than 80 feet.

16.3 The Planning Board shall adopt site plan regulations which shall include

but not be limited to: aesthetics and lighting; construction, building and safety

standards; security and space requirements; landscaping; and financial security

for maintenance and/or removal of any facilities.

16.4 Additional Requirements for Telecommunications Facilities

a. To the extent possible, co-location must be provided by applicants to

competitors at a reasonable cost, and all new support structures must be capable

of handling multiple facilities.

b. Setbacks and Separation

i. Towers must be set back a distance equal to 125% of the height

of the tower from any lot.

ii. Tower, guys, and accessory facilities must satisfy the minimum
zoning district setback requirements,

iii. Towers over 90 feet in height shall not be located within one-

quarter mile of any existing tower that is over 90 feet in height.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 2139 NO 620

ARTICLE 4 PASSED

ARTICLE 5

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 4 as proposed by

the Planning Board to amend Article II, Districts, Section 2.3 Wetlands

Conservation District that the Conservation Commission shall report its

recommendations to the Planning Board within 40 days of receipt of the

application by the Building Department; and add a new Section C as follows:

"Any Special permit granted by the Board shall expire two years from the date

of said grant. If the application is not implemented during that time, the Special

Permit becomes null and void unless the owner(s) applies for, and is granted, a

two year extension. A maximum of no more than two extensions will be granted.

A request for extension shall be filed at least one month prior to the Special

Permit's expiration date".

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 2161 NO 614

ARTICLE 5 PASSED

ARTICLE 6
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum not to

exceed $5,495,000 for the construction of a Police Facility on public property at

132 Winnacunnet and 136 Winnacunnet Road and all related activities necessary

for said construction. Necessary funds to be raised through the issuance of bonds

or notes in an amount not to exceed $5,495,000 under and in compliance with
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provisions of the Municipal Finance Act pursuant to RSA Chapter 33, Municipal

Finance Act, as amended; and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to issue and

negotiate such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon, and

to take such other actions as may be necessary to effect the issuance,

negotiations, sale, and delivery of such bonds or notes as shall be in the best

interest of the Town of Hampton.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Michael Plouffe.

Seconded by Frederick C.Rice.

Selectman Rice made a presentation regarding the need for a police

station. Police Chief Wren provided a history of the article beginning with the

first study back in 1969 and a second in 1980 both recommending a new police

station. He further detailed the structural deficiencies as outlined in the Police

Executive Research Forum report of 1990. Pictures of the current police station

were projected to a screen on the stage. He presented facts from a needs study

done by the architectural firm of Kaestle-Booes and noted that the money in the

article would cover the entire scope of the project. This would include

destruction of the current Town Building, the moving of the court building from

its present site, and the construction and outfitting of the new building. Chief

Wrenn explained how the money would be raised and the approximate cost to

the taxpayer.

Additional comments supporting the article were made by Carolyn

Payzant, Ann Kaiser, Sheila Francoeur, Thomas Gillick and Sharleene Hurst. A
motion to move the question was made by Brian Lacey and seconded by David

Lang. The motion passed. It was agreed to place the Article on the ballot as

written. John Skumin moved to restrict reconsideration. Seconded by Fred

Rice. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1175 NO 1838

ARTICLE 6 FAILED

ARTICLE 7

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$1,090,000 for the purpose of preparing plans and specifications, permit

applications, land acquisitions, and/or easements and for the construction of

sewerage facilities recommended in the Town's 201 Facilities Planning Study

for the upgrade of the wastewater treatment plant, requirements which are

contained in the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C.

1251 et seq.), and will qualify the Town for Federal and State funds, such sum to

be raised by the issuance of Serial Bonds and Notes not to exceed $1,090,000

under and in compliance with provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (NH RSA
33:1 et seq. as amended) and to authorize the Selectmen to issue and negotiate

such bonds or notes to determine the rate of interest thereon, and to take such
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actions as may be necessary to effect the issuance, negotiation, sale and delivery

of such bonds or notes as shall be in the best interest of the Town of Hampton;

additionally to participate in the State Revolving Fund (SRF) RSA 486:14

established for this purpose, and to allow the selectmen to expend such monies

as become available from the Federal and State governments and pass any vote

relating thereto. Any income derived from temporary investment of the bond

proceeds shall be returned to the General Fund.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Michael Plouffe.

Seconded by Brian Warburton.

John Hangen, Public Works Director spoke on the article. He showed

an overview of the wastewater treatment plant and noted the proximity of the

plant to the marsh and stated that the federal regulations regarding the treatment

of wastewater have become stricter. He stated that the 46% to 53% increase in

population in the last 23 years has resulted in a 36% increase of flow at the plant.

This coupled with new requirements requiring more processing time resulted in a

lower percentage of flow processed. We are currently above our recommended

capacity in the tanks.

After all who wished to speak were heard, it was agreed to put Article 7

on the ballot as written. A motion to restrict reconsideration was made by

Frederick C. Rice and seconded by Michael Plouffe. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1872 NO 1100

ARTICLE 7 FAILED (2/3 VOTE REQUIRED)

ARTICLE 8

Shall the Town of Hampton raise and appropriate as an operating

budget, not including appropriations by special warrant articles, the amount set

forth on the budget posted with the warrant, for the purposes set forth therein,

totaling $16,749,141.00. Should this article be defeated, the operating budget

shall be $15,567,379, which is the same as last year, with certain adjustments

required by previous action of the Town Meeting or by law or the governing

body may hold one special meeting, in accordance with RSA 40:13, X and XVI,

to take up the issue of a revised operating budget only." *NOTE: Warrant

Article #8 does not include special warrant articles 6, 7, 9, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22,

23, 24, 25, 26 and individual warrant articles 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, and 17.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by James Tierney.

Seconded by Virginia Bridle.

Mr. Tierney explained the reductions made by the committee to the

budget that was presented to them. After additional comments were heard,

Arthur Moody moved and Robert Ross seconded to end discussion. That motion
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was approved and it was voted to put Article 8 on the ballot as written. A
motion to restrict reconsideration was made by Arthur Moody and seconded by

James Tierney. The motion carried.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1427 NO 1645

ARTICLE 8 FAILED

ARTICLE 9

Shall the Town raise and appropriate $350,000 to contribute to the

Road Improvement Capital Reserve Fund established by Article 16 of the

1998 Town Meeting pursuant to the provisions of RSA 35:1 and to appropriate

$700,000 for use as the Town's 20% match on the Route 1 reconstruction

project and other contingencies related to the Route 1 reconstruction?

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee
Moved by Brian Warburton.

Seconded by Frederick C. Rice.

Selectman Rice said the Town approved re-construction of Route 1 on

the condition that we would do so with 80% funding by the State. Last year the

town voted to establish a capital reserve fund for major road construction. This

article will raise another $350,000 to continue that fund. The State will begin

construction in September if they get the matching 20% from the town. It is not

expected that the town will need to appropriate all of the total of $700,000. The

total amount needed is expected to be between $560,000 and $570,000.

Arthur Moody stated we are being asked to withdraw $700,000 when

we don't need the amount. He moved to reduce the amount to be withdrawn to

$600,000. Seconded by Bonnie Searle.

Discussion followed regarding whether the extra funds could be used

for other highway projects. The moderator explained the withdrawal of whatever

amount of money decided upon today, can only be used for the Town's 20%
match for Route 1. The Moody amendment passed.

James Workman offered to amend the article further by adding the

following "an amount not to exceed $600,000." Seconded by Carolyn Payzant.

The Workman amendment passed. As there was no further discussion, the

moderator said that Article 9 would be on the ballot as amended.

Bonnie Searle moved to restrict reconsideration of Article 9. Seconded

by Brian Warburton. The motion passed.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1841 NO 1265

ARTICLE 9 PASSED

ARTICLE 10

Shall the Town raise and appropriate $277,000 as discussed in Article

14 of the 1998 Town Meeting for the purpose of replacing the HVAC systems,

repairing of the roof, installing Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC
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et seq. as amended) compliant toilets, providing remodeling, and fund move-in

costs from the existing Town Offices at 136 Winnacunnet Road to the Citizen's

Bank building located at 90 and 100 Winnacunnet Road?

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Michael Plouffe.

Seconded by Frederick Rice.

Mr. Barrington spoke on the need to make repairs and upgrade the

Citizens Bank building. Pictures were shown of the interior building to illustrate

the deficiencies. When there were no further questions Moderator Walker called

for a vote to put the article on the ballot as written. So voted.

Fred Rice moved to restrict reconsideration on Article 10. Seconded

by Virginia Bridle. The motion carried.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1594 NO 1505

ARTICLE 10 PASSED
ARTICLE 11

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate $220,000 for sewer

construction, drainage, and additional paving and sidewalk work associated with

the Highland Avenue reconstruction project approved by Article 17 of the

1998 Town Meeting? The sewer portion of the work is entitled to 20% matching

funds which will be applied for. Other funds that may become available will

also be applied for in connection with this project.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Virginia Bridle.

Seconded by Brian Warburton.

Selectman Bridle spoke on the article giving the history of the Highland

Avenue article. It was nate^lhat additional work would be needed. Slides were

presented showing drainage problems on the street. Richard Reniere expressed

the need to complete the project as soon as possible as it has been under

discussion since 1996. Further discussion ensued and when all residents had

spoken it was voted to place Article 1 1 on the ballot as written.

Fred Rice moved to restrict reconsideration on Article 11. Seconded

by Brian Warburton. The motion was approved.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1380 NO 1691

ARTICLE 11 FAILED

ARTICLE 12

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate a sum of up to $150,000 to

contract with a professional planning consultant to prepare a comprehensive

Master Plan for the redevelopment of the beach area of Hampton? This plan

shall include, at a minimum, comprehensive zoning, land use ordinances and
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architectural design standards to implement said vision/mission, and an

inclusive strategy for infrastructure needs. The infrastructure plan shall include,

at a minimum, transportation, utilities, and drainage. This Master Plan and

planning consultant shall be developed through a committee organized by the

Town Manager in cooperation with appropriate State of New Hampshire

departments, Board of Selectmen, Planning Board, Beach Precinct

Commissioners, and citizens-at-large. In addition to authorize the

Selectmen/Manager to apply for any offsetting funds available.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Frederick C. Rice.

Seconded by Brian Warburton.

Mr. Rice spoke on the need of a master plan, prepared by a professional

consultant, to attract hotels, restaurants, and businesses to the beach. Robert D.

Dow offered to amend the article by adding the word "entire" before the words

"beach area" in the first sentence. The intent is to include the entire Hampton

coastline in the master plan. Seconded by Bonnie Searle. The Dow amendment

passed. Thomas Gillick moved to end discussion. Seconded by Russell Bridle.

So voted. It was agreed that Article 12 would go on the ballot as amended.

A motion to restrict reconsideration was made by Brian Warburton and

seconded by Fred Rice. The motion carried.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1304 NO 1813

ARTICLE 12 FAILED

ARTICLE 13

Shall the Town raise and appropriate $140,436 to pay off the existing loan from

the State Revolving Fund for the construction of the methane interceptor trench

at the landfill thereby saving approximately $60,000 in interest payments over

the next 20 years?

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Not Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Michael Plouffe.

Seconded by Brian Warburton

Michael Plouffe stated that the Board of Selectmen put this article in to

save the town $60,000 in interest payments. James Tierney said that the Budget

Committee did not give their recommendation because this would add $140,436

to the tax rate this year while saving only $4,500 this year. He felt that the

article could be presented next year when the budget might be lower.

There was no further discussion and Moderator Walker stated this

article would go on the ballot as written. Michael Plouffe moved to restrict

reconsideration of Article 13. Seconded by Virginia Bridle. The motion passed.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1378 NO 1694

ARTICLE 13 FAILED
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ARTICLE 14

Shall the Town raise and appropriate $120,000 to complete

construction of an elevator at the Citizen's Bank building located at 90 and

100 Winnacunnet Road, owned by the Town of Hampton?

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Frederick C. Rice

Seconded by Brian Warburton

Fred Rice explained that the amount increased because of unforeseen

costs. He stated that we needed the elevator to comply with handicap access

needs. James Barrington further illustrated the process that had taken place in the

construction of the elevator, and stated that he was certain that the additional

$120,000 would be sufficient.

Hearing no additional comments, the Moderator asked the assembly if

they would agree that the article be placed on the ballot. So voted. A motion to

restrict reconsideration was made by Mrs. Bridle and seconded by Mr. Rice.

The motion was approved.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1414 NO 1702

ARTICLE 14 FAILED

ARTICLE 15

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $59,931

($46,176 wages, $13,755 benefits) to create two (2) new police officer positions

to serve as School Resource Officers at Winnacunnet High School and

Hampton Academy Junior High working for the Hampton Police Department?

This amount represents nine months' salary and benefits for the two positions for

1999. The total annual salary of $61,120 and benefits of $15,200, as adjusted,

for the two positions will be included in future budget requests and may be

partially reimbursed by state or federal grants.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Virginia Bridle

Seconded by Brian Warburton

Mrs. Bridle addressed the article saying the positions were proposed by

Captain Sullivan and this article is endorsed by Winnacunnet High School and

Hampton Academy Junior High.

Captain Sullivan explained the function of the officers as a resource for

the school and a liaison between the schools and the police station on various

matters. Ann Kaiser voiced concerns about Hampton paying for officers when

Winnacunnet High School is setting aside money for this purpose. She offered

the following amendment to be added to the end of the article "and by the

Winnacunnet High School District." Seconded by Bonnie Searle. The Kaiser

amendment passed.
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Edward Buck moved to end debate on the article. Seconded by Bonnie

Searle. So voted. It was voted to place Article 15 on the ballot as amended.

Brian Warburton moved and Virginia Bridle seconded to restrict

reconsideration on Article 15. That motion passed and Article 15 was declared

restricted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1121 NO 2020

ARTICLE 15 FAILED

ARTICLE 16

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $49,465

($39,375 wages, $10,090 benefits) to create the new position of Technology

Coordinator as a Town employee? The position will report to the Director of

Accounting and will be responsible for administering and maintaining the

Town's wide area computer network, implementing the Town's technology plan,

and setting up and testing the Town's Y2K solutions. This amount represents

nine months' salary and benefits for 1999. The total annual salary of $52,500

and benefits of $1 1,300, as adjusted, will be included in future budget requests.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Michael Plouffe

Seconded by Frederick C. Rice

Selectman Rice spoke on the need for a technology coordinator to

oversee the town's computer network. Colleen Prescott moved to delete "and

will be responsible for administering and maintaining the Town's wide area

computer network, implementing the Town's technology plan, and setting up and

testing the Town's Y2K solutions." Seconded by Virginia Bridle. The intent of

the amendment was not to limit the scope of responsibility by defining it too

specifically. After some discussion the Prescott amendment failed.

James Workman offered the following amendment. Delete "and will

be responsible for" and add "the responsibilities may include but not be limited

to" Seconded by Carolyn Payzant. The Workman amendment passed.

Carolyn Payzant moved to end discussion on the article. Seconded by

Fred Rice. The motion passed and it was voted to put Article 16 on the ballot as

amended. Brian Warburton moved to restrict reconsideration on this article.

Seconded by Virginia Bridle. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1012 NO 1890

ARTICLE 16 FAILED

ARTICLE 17

Shall the Town raise and appropriate $47,000 for a feasibility study,

design engineering, and permitting for a storm drainage system in the Sun
Valley area? Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Not Recommended by the Budget Committee
Moved by Bonnie Searle.

Seconded by Brian Warburton.
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Selectman Searle spoke about the water problem in the Sun Valley Area

and the need for a drainage system. Slides were presented further illustrating the

drainage problem. James Tierney stated the budget committee would prefer an

expenditure of $10,000 for a feasibility study, not to go further unless it is

deemed possible.

Brian Lacey moved to amend the article by deleting "a feasibility

study, design engineering, and permitting for" to assure that immediate action

would be taken. Seconded by Charles Hayden. The Lacey amendment failed.

John Hangen moved to amend the article to add "and or construction"

after "permitting". Seconded by Bonnie Searle. The Hangen amendment passed.

Brian Lacey moved to further amend the article by deleting "design

engineering". Seconded by Arthur Moody. The Lacey amendment failed.

Bonnie Searle moved with a second by Fred Rice to end debate on the

article. The motion passed and it was voted to put Article 17 on the ballot as

amended. Bonnie Searle made an additional motion to restrict reconsideration

on the article. Seconded by Fred Rice. It was so voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 942 NO 1933

ARTICLE 17 FAILED

ARTICLE 18

Shall the Town of Hampton vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$34,000 to fund the salaries and benefits for six months of 1999 of a full-time

planner and part-time planner's administrative assistant. If approved, both

positions will be filled by the Town Manager in accordance with Chapter 8,

Article 3, Sec. 8:30 II A of the Town of Hampton Ordinances. The planner will

be directly supervised by the Town Manager. The planner will in turn supervise

the administrative assistant. Excluding the cost of living allowances, the costs to

be incurred in future budgets will be approximately $68,000 per year. (By

petition) Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Patrick Hayes.

Seconded by Sandy Buck.

Patrick Hayes spoke on the article and described the differences

between last year's article and Article 18. Mr. Warburton and Mr. Rice spoke in

support of the article enumerating the duties of a planner. Mrs. Payzant feels the

town would be better served with a professional engineer.

When there were no further comments, Mr. Walker called for a vote to

place article 18 on the ballot. So voted. Mr. Rice moved to restrict

reconsideration on the article. Seconded by Mr. Warburton. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 844 NO 2036

ARTICLE 18 FAILED
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ARTICLE 19
On petition of Vivianne G. Marcotte for the Conservation Commission

and at least twenty-five registered voters of the Town of Hampton: To raise and

appropriate $15,000 for the purpose of continuing the restoration of our

degraded salt marshes. This will enable the Conservation Commission to

apply for matching funds from U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Ducks Unlimited,

Gulf of Maine Council, the Office of State Planning, NH Coastal Program, and

others to accomplish projects costing twice this amount and more.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Vivianne Marcotte.

Seconded by Brian Warburton.

Speaking for the article, Vivianne Marcotte detailed the work

previously done by conservation articles. This money would enable work in the

Meadow Pond area. This article would allow the commission to apply for

matching grants. It was voted to place Article 19 on the ballot as written.

A motion to restrict reconsideration was made by Fred Rice and

seconded by Brian Warburton. The motion carried and Article 19 was declared

restricted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 2108 NO 787

ARTICLE 19 PASSED

ARTICLE 20
To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate the

sum of $6,250 to assist Seacoast Hospice, a non-profit organization. (By

petition) Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Constance George.

Seconded by Virginia Bridle.

Ms. George listed the services provided by Seacoast Hospice. Mr.

Norman Silverdick added that the hospice provides both palliative care to the

patient and family care relating to bereavement.

When no further discussion was forthcoming the moderator declared

that Article 20 would be on the ballot as written. Brian Warburton moved to

restrict reconsideration and Fred Rice seconded the motion. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 2236 NO 699

ARTICLE 20 PASSED
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ARTICLE 21

On petition of Richard Gibbons, 102 Mace Road, Hampton, NH and 25

or more registered voters of the Town of Hampton: To see if the Town will vote

to support the Hampton Christmas Parade and related activities and raise and

appropriate the sum of $3,500 to help defray the expense of the 1999 event.

Said funds to be paid to the Hampton Beach Area Chamber of Commerce.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Fred Rice.

Seconded by Michael Plouffe.

There was no discussion and it was voted to put the question on the

ballot as written.

A motion to restrict reconsideration was made by Michael Plouffe and

seconded by Virginia Bridle. The motion passed.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1911 NO 976

ARTICLE 21 PASSED

ARTICLE 22
To see if the Town of Hampton will raise and appropriate the sum of

$3,500 for Cross Roads House, to assist homeless Hampton residents.

Not Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Not Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Lenore Patton.

Seconded by Gary Patton.

Carolyn Payzant noted that the wording of the article did not include

"by petition" and questioned why. Town attorney stated he could assume that

this was a typographical error, and, if in fact, the petition was on file in the

clerk's office, this wording could be added.

Mr. Patton questioned why this was not recommended. Mr. Tierney

stated that there was no response from Crossroads to a letter requesting that they

send a representative to speak for them. Mrs. Bridle stated that Cross Roads

bills the town for residents that stay there.

Colleen Prescott moved to. reduce the money to zero. Seconded by

Sandy Buck. The Prescott amendment passed.

John Payzant moved to end discussion. Seconded by Russell Bridle. It

was voted to end discussion and further to put Article 22 on the ballot as

amended.

Fred Rice, with a second by Sandy Buck, moved to restrict

reconsideration. The motion carried and Article 22 was declared restricted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 741 NO 1943

ARTICLE 22 FAILED

-31-



ARTICLE 23
On petition of Seacoast HealthNet and twenty-five registered voters to

see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $2,000 to support

the health services offered by Seacoast HealthNet to the uninsured, working

families who are residents of the town.

Not Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Not Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Virginia Bridle.

Seconded by Brian Warburton.

Ms. Bridle stated that Seacoast HealthNet provides services to those

who do not have Medicare and cannot afford health insurance. Mr. Tierney

stated that no information was provided by Seacoast HealthNet.

Sandy Buck moved to lower the dollar amount to 0. Seconded by John

Payzant. The amendment passed. There was no other discussion and it was

voted to put Article 23 on the ballot as amended.

Vivianne Marcotte moved to restrict reconsideration. Seconded by

John Skumin. The motion passed.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 754 NO 1916

ARTICLE 23 FAILED

ARTICLE 24
To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to appropriate only $98,000

(20% of the gross lease and rental from town's parking areas located within the

Hampton Village District) for the purpose allocated by Warrant Article #41

(1996) for the purpose of: installing sidewalks, curbs and lighting on Church

Street ($80,000). The remainder to be spent on engineering costs on Church

Street ($8,000) and Ashworth Avenue ($10,000). Grant money may also be

applied for and used in this project. This warrant will not effect the towns tax

rate. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Brian Warburton.

Seconded by Fred Rice.

Arthur Moody made a motion to add the word "Beach" to the name of

the district so it would read "Hampton Beach Village District". Seconded by

Bonnie Searle. The motion carried. With no further questions it was moved and

seconded to put Article 24 on the ballot as amended. A motion to restrict

reconsideration was made by Fred Rice and seconded by John Payzant. The

motion passed.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1482 NO 1400

ARTICLE 24 PASSED

ARTICLE 25

To see if the Town will vote to appropriate only the sum of $21,900 to

be deposited in the Cemetery Burial Trust Fund, the interest from which will
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be withdrawn annually and deposited into the Town's General Fund as an offset

to the amount appropriated for the maintenance of the cemeteries. This

appropriation will not effect the 1999 tax rate.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Brian Warburton.

Seconded by Michael Plouffe.

There was no discussion and the moderator declared that article 25

would go on the ballot as written. A motion to restrict reconsideration was made

by Michael Plouffe and seconded by Fred Rice. The motion passed and Article

25 was declared restricted for additional consideration today.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 2026 NO 840

ARTICLE 25 PASSED

ARTICLE 26
To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate the

sum of Two thousand eight hundred and seventy dollars ($2,870) for the purpose

of defraying the cost of services provided to the Town of Hampton and its

residents by Seacoast Big Brothers Big Sisters of New Hampshire.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

Moved by Michael O'Neil.

Seconded by Brian Warburton.

It was voted to put Article 26 on the ballot as written. Motion was

made by Bonnie Searle to restrict reconsideration on the article. Seconded by

Michael Plouffe. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1746 NO 1132

ARTICLE 26 PASSED

ARTICLE 27
Shall the Town Manager/ Board of Selectmen be given the authority to

make minor adjustments to the sidewalk location as recommended by the New
Hampshire Department of Transportation due to topography and to avoid

eminent domain proceedings on Route 1 to allow construction without delays for

easements where easements are not voluntarily granted?

Moved by Fred Rice.

Seconded by Michael Plouffe.

Fred Rice explained the intent of the article and John Hangen stated the

need for flexibility in making adjustments to the sidewalk placement. Nathan

Page, who was a member of the original Route 1 study committee, wanted

assurance that this would maintain the intent of the original committee. This

assurance was given by the selectmen.
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John Payzant moved to end debate on the article. Seconded by Brian

Warburton. The motion carried. It was voted to put the article on the ballot as

written. Fred Rice moved to restrict reconsideration of the article. Seconded by

Michael Plouffe. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 2148 NO 916

ARTICLE 27 PASSED

ARTICLE 28
To see if the Town wishes to amend the amount excluded under the

authority of Section 218 of the Social Security Act by excluding the services

performed by election workers for a calendar year in which the remuneration

paid for such service is less than $1,000.

Moved by Bonnie Searle.

Seconded by Virginia Bridle.

The moderator explained that there is currently a $100.00 cap and the

State allows the amount to $1,000. This would save paperwork in computing the

salaries of occasional workers such as election workers. David Lang spoke to

commend the election workers for their effort.

It was agreed to put Article 28 on the ballot by a hand vote. James

Barrington moved to restrict reconsideration on the article. Seconded by Fred

Rice. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1806 NO 1074

ARTICLE 28 PASSED

ARTICLE 29
Shall the Town vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to provide for

two polling places in elections and to establish boundaries of the voting districts

as provided by RSA 658: 10?

Moved by Fred Rice.

Seconded by Brian Warburton.

John Walker addressed the article noting the lack of space for the

required number of voting booths in the fire station and the traffic problems

occurring at Marston School.

John Payzant moved to end discussion. Seconded by Brian Warburton.

The motion passed. It was also voted to put the article on the ballot as written.

Fred Rice moved to restrict reconsideration on this article. Seconded

by Michael Plouffe. The motion carried.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1429 NO 1609

ARTICLE 29 FAILED
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ARTICLE 30
Amend Town of Hampton Ordinances, Chapter 1, Regulation of

Animals, Section 1:102 by deleting the definition of cattery; delete Section

1:103 - Animal Control Commission in its entirety; and to delete all references

to cats in that ordinance.

Moved by Fred Rice.

Seconded by Virginia Bridle.

There was no discussion and it was voted to put Article 30 on the ballot

as written. The motion to restrict reconsideration was make by Frederick Rice

and seconded by Michael Plouffe. So Voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1339 NO 1429

ARTICLE 30 FAILED

ARTICLE 31

Shall the Town vote to amend one aspect of the 1982 Town-voted

Leased Land Sales Program, as amended over the years, to delete Section 4, of

the May 11, 1982 Special Town Meeting as amended to date, whereby the Town
is authorized to finance the purchase by lessees of beach lots by becoming the

mortgage holder or mortgagee? Adoption of this Article will result in the Town
no longer financing the sale of leased lots.

Moved by Bonnie Searle.

Seconded by Fred Rice.

Selectman Searle explained that the town still owns about sixty lots

which are individually leased and have been built upon. This will mean that if

the lessees want to purchase their lot, they must seek their own financing.

John Payzant moved to end discussion. Seconded by Carolyn Payzant.

The motion carried. The moderator declared that Article 31 would go on the

ballot as written.

It was voted to restrict reconsideration of Article 3 1 on a motion made

by Fred Rice and a second by Michael Plouffe.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 2041 NO 808

ARTICLE 31 PASSED

ARTICLE 32
Shall the Town vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to purchase

land for aquifer protection under the provisions of the proposed state matching

grant program to be established for that purpose? Such authorization shall

include authorization for the Board of Selectmen to enter into a public/private

partnership with the Hampton Water Works Company to preserve and

protect the Hampton water supply, and to apply to the state matching grant

program proposed to be established during the 1999 legislative session.

Moved by Fred Rice.

Seconded by Bonnie Searle.
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Fred Rice stated that the town should protect its resources. On a

suggestion by James Tierney, Bonnie Searle offered to amend the article by

adding the following "in the Town of Hampton" to the first sentence after the

word "land". Seconded by Brian Warburton. The amendment passed.

Discussion ensued regarding whether we would be limiting ourselves to

only Hampton Water Works if some time in the future they were bought out, or

if we were dealing with several companies.

Carolyn Payzant moved, and it was seconded by John Payzant, to

amend the article by adding after Hampton Water Works Company "its

successors or assigns". John Skumin disagreed with the proposed amendment

saying that this would further limit the town's ability to deal with other

companies. After additional discussion, John Payzant moved to call for a vote on

the amendment. Seconded by Sandy Buck. The motion passed. The Payzant

amendment passed.

Jack Bourgoin offered to additionally amend the article by deleting

"with the Hampton Water Works Company and its successors or assigns"

Seconded by Brian Warburton. The Bourgoin Amendment passed.

It was voted to put Article 32 on the ballot as amended. Bonnie Searle

moved to restrict reconsideration of Article 32. Seconded by Fred Rice. So

voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 974 NO 1870

ARTICLE 32 FAILED

ARTICLE 33
The following voters petition to see if 1999 and subsequent Annual

Reports include the name, position, and gross wages of any person earning a

wage or stipend paid by the Town of Hampton. Additional information may be

included. The intent is that the taxpayers of Hampton have a right to ascertain

what wages and salaries they are supporting with their tax dollars, and the Town
has an obligation to present that information.

Moved by Bonnie Searle.

Seconded by John Skumin.

Bonnie Searle spoke on this article and why she initiated this petition.

Speaking against the petition were: Virginia Bridle, Brian Warburton, Fred Rice.

Thomas Gillick moved to add the words "shall not" between the words

"Reports" and "include" so it reads "Reports shall not include" Seconded by

Richard Reniere. The Gillick amendment passed.

Carolyn Payzant moved to add to the bottom of the article

"Recommended by the first session of Town Meeting." Brian Warburton

suggested to further amend this article to delete "Additional information may be

included. The intent is that the taxpayers of Hampton have a right to ascertain

what wages and salaries they are supporting with their tax dollars, and the Town
has an obligation to present that information." Ms. Payzant agreed to the change

in her amendment. Seconded by Brian Warburton.
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Mr. Moody rose on a point of order stating that this assembly has no

legal right to put a caveat on the bottom of articles.

Discussion followed regarding the original intent of the article and

difficulty understanding the double negatives. Ms. Payzant withdrew her

amendment. The second withdrew also.

Richard Bateman moved to strike "the following voters petition to see

if" and insert "The" and further to add to the end of the article "(by petition)".

Seconded by Fred Rice.

The moderator read the article as amended. Mr. Bateman wished to

further amend by deleting "Additional information may be included. The intent

is that the taxpayers of Hampton have a right to ascertain what wages and

salaries they are supporting with their tax dollars, and the Town has an

obligation to present that information". The second agreed to the change. Mr.

Bateman stressed that this information is available to the public already.

Ms. Payzant questioned the legality of these changes. Attorney

McEachern answered that the article should be in a question so people can vote

yes or no, but in this case one part is contradicting the other.

The moderator took some time to collaborate with several people

regarding the wording of the amendment on the floor. The moderator suggested

the following language at the beginning of the article. "To see if the Town of

Hampton will approve a petitioned article as amended that the 1999 and

subsequent annual reports shall not include the name, position, and gross wages

of any person earning a wage or stipend paid by the Town of Hampton."

Mr. Rice stated that what Mr. Walker read was correct but that was not

the petitioned article and would result in confusion.

Mr. Gillick stated he was satisfied that the language proposed by the

moderator meets his intents and purposes and moved to sustain the chair

recommendation and vote on that proposal. Seconded by Mr. Lacey. It was

voted to sustain the chair and vote on the moderator's amendment.

The moderator read the article as amended. Mr. Rice suggested further

clarification was necessary. Mr. Bourgoin suggested we find a way to deal with

amendment and go back to the original article.

Brian Lacey moved to end debate. Seconded by Bonnie Searle. It was

voted to end debate and vote on the amendment. The amendment as stated by the

moderator passed.

Mr. Bourgoin moved that Article 33 read as follows: "Shall the 1999

and subsequent annual reports include the name, position and gross wages paid

to any person earning a wage or stipend by the Town of Hampton." Seconded by

Ms. Searle. The Bourgoin amendment passed.

Mr. David Lang offered the following as a substitute for Article 33.

"All elected Town officials shall file by the 15th of January annually with the

Town Clerk, a financial disclosure. Said written disclosure shall include all

sources on incomes, all investments both cash and real property, any and all

interests in partnerships, corporation and/or other business ventures. Any Town
elected Official currently in office at the time of adoption of this article shall be

required to file said written disclosure on January 15, 2001 All disclosures shall
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in their original form be printed in the annual town report. Any elected Town
Official shall announce a conflict and be precluded from voting or having

influence over a vote on any issue whereby the elected Town Official derives

income and/or is associated in business with said issue or project. The Town
Moderator shall be required to seek enforcement and removal from office, any

elected official who fails to comply with said written disclosure or who fails to

announce said aforementioned conflict. The moderator shall have the authority

to seek enforcement with the New Hampshire Superior Court. Brian Lacey

seconded. The amendment failed.

Mr. Walker read the article as amended by Mr. Bourgoin, and asked if

the assembly wished to put Article 33 on the ballot as amended. The assembly

voted no.

Carolyn Payzant offered to further amend the article by first going back

to the original Article 33 except at the bottom put "Not recommended by the first

session of the Town Meeting." Seconded by Sandra Nickerson. The amendment

passed.

A motion to restrict reconsideration was offered John Skumin and

seconded by Frederick Rice. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES J850 NO 1187

ARTICLE 33 PASSED
ARTICLE 34

To see if the Town will vote to abandon all rights, title and interest

in a certain parcel of undeveloped property lying between existing land of

Richard and Elizabeth Simon, 16 Richard Street, Map 220, Lot 031 and

Frederick and Dorothy Fuller, 18 Richard Street, Map 220, Lot 033, both shown

on plan of "Tower Park, Hampton, NH" recorded in Rockingham County

Registry of Deeds as plans #02480 and #02695. This 4,000 square foot strip of

land in Hampton, County of Rockingham, State of New Hampshire, being the

northerly half of the western extension of Elaine Street. This parcel to be

equally divided between both parties. Such exchange to be at NO EXPENSE to

the town. (By Petition)

Moved by Frederick Fuller.

Seconded by Richard Simon.

Mr. Fuller stated he has lived here for thirty years and has maintained

the land during this time. Mr. Simon said the Town has no apparent need for it,

therefore why not relinquish it to both parties. Mr. Rice stated that the land was

currently owned by the petitioners and that the town merely had an easement on

the land.

Mr. Skumin moved to end debate. Seconded by David Lang. It was

voted to end debate and put Article 34 on the ballot as amended. It was moved

and seconded to restrict reconsideration on Article 34. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 1984 NO 894

ARTICLE 34 PASSED
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ARTICLE 35
Petition to see if the Town will vote to transfer to Thomas H. Fallon of

79 North Shore Road, Hampton, New Hampshire, all its right, title and interest

in a tax-titled lot of land fronting on North Shore Road to the immediate

south of land owned by said Thomas H. Fallon. Said lot containing 22,600

square feet, including a 60 foot right-of-way, is shown on Tax Map 132, Lot

007. The tax taking of the land is recorded in Rockingham County Registry of

Deeds, Book 3171, Page 1187. Conveyance is to be made for the current

assessed value of $2,500.00 provided that such transfer be at no cost to the town.

Moved by Thomas Fallon.

Seconded by William Wrenn.

Mr. Fallon explained he wanted to purchase a left over piece of land

from a now defunct corporation. He had an agreement to purchase land and

when doing a title search it was discovered it was deeded to the town in a tax

sale. Ann Kaiser former tax collector explained the procedure that resulted in

the town's acquiring the property. Mr. Moody asked if the $2,500 would cover

the back taxes. Mr. Fallon stated that the deed records showed about $140.00

per year owing on taxes therefore the total amount would be about $500.00.

William Wrenn spoke as an abutter to the property and stated that he was in

favor of the article. Mr. Plouffe stated he spoke with the town assessor who told

him the property would now be on the tax rolls and was a good deal for the town.

It was moved by Ann Kaiser and seconded by Sandy Buck to end discussion on

Article 35. The motion carried. It was voted to put Article 35 on the ballot as

written. Fred Rice moved to restrict reconsideration on the article. Seconded by

Michael Plouffe. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 7999

YES 1594 NO 1225

ARTICLE 35 PASSED
ARTICLE 36

On petition of Levi and Mary Kishbaugh, abutters, to see if the Town
will move the gates and bars on White's Lane approximately 320 feet in an

easterly direction towards the SW boundary of the Hampton Conservation area,

to ease owners John (Jack) and Herbert Tobey access to their property, which

abuts White's Lane.

Moved by Levi Kishbaugh

Seconded by Howard Noyes

Mr. Kishbaugh stated that this article will give owners access to their

property. Brian Lacey asked if that were a valid statement. The Town Manager

stated that while the bars and gates do prohibit access, the property owners are

entitled to have a key to be able to get to their property. It does preclude further

development of the property. Mr. Lacey further stated that moving the gates and

bars 320 feet will enable the land owner to develop the entire parcel which is in

our aquifer protection area. He offered to amend the article by adding "this is

not recommended by the First Session of the Town Meeting." Seconded by Mr.

Buck. Herbert and Jack Tobey, residents of Rye were allowed to speak.

-39-



Jack Tobey stated there were no plans for a development there. The

amendment passed.

There was no further discussion and it was voted to put Article 36 on

the ballot as amended. Mr. Buck moved to restrict reconsideration on Article 36.

Seconded by Brian Warburton. So voted.

RESULTS OF BALLOTING MARCH 9, 1999

YES 931 NO 1959

ARTICLE 36 FAILED
Selectman Rice rose to thank the camera operators and the technical

crews for their efforts in setting up the auditorium. Mr. Walker agreed and also

thanked the election workers.

Nathan Page recommended that if the meeting agreed, the 1999 Town
Report be in honor of Clara Gale, a long time election worker and public servant,

on her 100
th
birthday.

A motion to adjourn was made by Nathan Page and seconded by

Bonnie Searle. There was no opposition and the moderator declared the meeting

adjourned at 5:10 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Arleen Andreozzi, Town Clerk

Recount 3-19-99

Upon petition to the Clerk on March 10 by Planning Board candidate Richard

True, the Board of Recount was convened at 9AM on March 17th in the

Selectmen's Meeting Room of the Hampton Town Offices. Present at the

recount were Moderator, John Walker; Clerk, Arleen Andreozzi, and Selectmen

Bonnie Searle and Frederick Rice. Substituting for excused selectman Virginia

Bridle was Capt. Timothy Crotts. The clerk swore in the substitute selectman

and ballot counters. Five recount teams were established. Two Planning Board

candidates, Carolyn Payzant and Richard True were present.

Before the final recount tally was announced the moderator displayed the five

envelopes containing absentee ballots that were not originally counted on March

9. The recount board was satisfied that the ballots did not conform to the signed

affidavit requirements of the law. The recounted vote was announced by the

Moderator: David Blatchford 808

Steven Jusseaume 723

Curtis McCrady 1261*

Carolyn Payzant 1066*

Richard True 1054

As the originally declared winners did not change, the Recount Board

disbanded at 11:45AM.
Respectfully submitted,

Arleen E. Andreozzi, Town Clerk
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Building Inspection / Code Enforcement

1999 was a busy year for our Department, both inside and outside the

office. The number of permits issued represents an increase of 7% over the

preceding year. The total of 1405 building permits issued generated $164,678 in

permit fees.

The following comprises a list of residential and commercial permits

issued and the amount of valuation by month:

RESIDENTIAL PERMITS INCLUDED:
91 New Homes 355 Electrical 233 Plumbing 540 Miscellaneous

COMMERCIAL PERMITS INCLUDED:
6 New Structures 54 Electrical 34 Plumbing 92 Miscellaneous

The entire department with the exception of the Code Enforcement

Officer is new. Eleanor Montague joined us in November as the new Secretary

to the Building Department. Kenneth Maple has joined our staff as Assistant

Building Inspector. Bob Charette is the Electrical Inspector/Code Enforcement

Officer, primarily concerned with inspections directly related to the Certificate

of Occupancy.

Respectfully Submitted,

Kenneth C. Maple, Assistant Building Inspector

Robert Charette, Code Enforcement Officer

Eleanor Montague, Secretary
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REPORT OF THE CEMETERY TRUSTEES

1999 was an eventful year at the cemetery. We would like to thank

Eagle Scout Andrew Ryan for his project of building and installing a new gate

for the Pine Grove Cemetery on Winnacunnet Road. Pine Grove, which was

Hampton's first public cemetery, and one of the oldest in the country, is

frequently visited by people from everywhere, as so much of our town and

country's history can be found there.

The new gate made in the old world style is a wonderful addition.

Thanks again Andrew!

As is the case every year, we labored long and hard for several months

to prepare the High Street Cemetery for the Memorial Day activities, and, as

always, our dedicated and experienced crew worked right up to the last minute

and came through. Great effort guys!

One of the highlights of Memorial Day 1999 was the dedication of the

Roland W. Paige Memorial section of the High Street Cemetery. It is hard to

believe that it has been ten years since Mr. Paige has been gone. His presence

remains with us always. He set the standards years ago and we will endeavor to

meet them.

The A section restoration project .continued in 1999 although, due to

budget restrictions, we were unable to do as much as we had hoped. Section A is

the oldest section of the High Street Cemetery where some five thousand of our

19th and early 20th century ancestors lay at rest. It is our hope and ambition to

have this project completed before the new decade is over.

I would like to thank some whom the public has never met and seldom

see. They are our grave diggers. With more than 30 years of experience behind

him Mr. Charles (Chucky) Hayes and his crew are among the very best in their

field. Thanks for everything Chuck.

Finally a quick note which I think says a great deal about the kind of

people we have working at our cemeteries. Because of budget restrictions I had

to lay off my part-time help on December 1st for the year. On Saturday night,

December 11th, a strong windstorm blew through our town. I drove into the

High Street Cemetery to find fallen trees and limbs everywhere. With two

funerals scheduled early that week I started feeling a bit stressed to say the least.

All my apprehensions were laid to rest Monday morning when I looked up at my
office doorway to see Wendell Ring and Fred Estey with power saws in hand,

ready to go to work. The entire cemetery was cleaned up by noon. These are the

kinds of people I am so blessed to work with. Thanks guys for not only putting

up with your sometimes temperamental boss, but for making him look good!

"Gone from the mirror but still left inside. The feeling remains even

after the glitter fades" -- S. Nicks

Respectfully submitted,

Danny J. Kenney,

Director of Cemeteries
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Recreation & Parks Department

1999 was a fun filled year for the Recreation and Parks Department.

Along with the fun that we were able to provide, through a variety of affordable

programs and trips, for all ages, we did our best to keep Hampton's parks

beautiful and safe, and to give all residents the opportunity to meet people and

grow within the community. This year was definitely a year of change for us.

We had three different locations in the last year and a half, but we are now
finally settled in our new location at the Town Office, 100 Winnacunnet Road.

Other changes for our department would include the new programs that

we added this year. We offered Play Soccer Camps during school vacation and

summer break, we also added a Letters to Santa Program. This program allowed

children to contact Santa during the holiday season. We also offered Tennis

Camp for kids and Little Tykes for preschoolers. These were popular and fun !

The office staff includes Dyana Lassonde, Director, Brenda DeFelice,

Program Coordinator and the newest addition, our Secretary, Shirley Doheny.

The department's major facilities are Tuck Field, Lewis Brown Park and Eaton

Park. We also utilize the Town's schools, the Lane Library, and various

churches to host our programs. These programs include Softball Leagues,

Senior Bingo, Play Soccer Camps, Golf Lessons, Walking Club, Gymnastics

Camp and Classes, Fishing Derby, Senior and Children's Craft Classes, Bridge,

K-4 Sports, Hershey Track & Field, Fleer Diamond Skills Baseball Competition,

Girls & Women in Sports Clinic, Red Cross Baby-sitting Courses, Aerobics,

Hoop Camp, Field Hockey Camp, Lacrosse Camp, Hampton Chorale, Bowling,

Knitting, In-Line Skating Clinics, Creative Crickets Summer Camp, Men's

Soccer League, Tuck Summer Camp, Teen Camp, Tennis Camp, Co-Rec.

Volleyball, Men's Basketball, Summer Basketball and the Senior Citizens Club.

This past year, the Skateboard Park and Kids Kingdom were buzzing as

usual, and through a donation from a generous resident we were able to purchase

new playground equipment for toddlers that will be installed next Spring on the

site of the original playground at Tuck Field.

We are very proud of the programs, special events, trips, lessons and

leagues that we provide. We welcome new ideas and are always looking for new

instructors and volunteers, please call us if you or someone you know would be

interested in instructing or suggesting a new program for our schedule.

Many thanks to the Recreation & Parks Advisory Council, our

instructors, the Lane Library, Hampton Schools, churches, PTA, Department of

Public Works, Police and Fire Departments, Hampton Lions Club, Hampton

Community Issues Coalition, Hampton Area Rotary, Chamber of Commerce,

Atlantic News, Hampton Union and the Hampton Youth Association for your

continued support and assistance.

We hope that you enjoyed our 1999 programs and trips and we are

looking forward to seeing you in 2000 ! The Benefits Are Endless ! !

!

Respectfully Submitted,

Dyana Lassonde, Director
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SUMMER FUN - 1999

Evan O'Connor, Mikal Evans and Owen Martey enjoy snack time during Creative

Cricket Camp.

Jamie Buckley, Ashley Burncss, Katie Callan, Allison Barnaby, Jarcn Wing and Peter

Oliver smile during a break at Tuck Camp.
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SUMMER FUN - 1999

Tuck Field Director, Jay McKenna reads to the campers on a hot day!
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Lucille Regilizio, Laura Milsovic and friends enjoy the Boston Duck Tour.
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REPORT OF THE FIRE & RESCUE SERVICE
1999 A YEAR OF CHANGE

Hampton Fire & Rescue has completed its final year of service in the

:ury and has certainly gone througl

focus on our personnel changes for the year.

20
th

century and has certainly gone through a year of change. I would like to

January - Deputy Chief Tony Chouinard is appointed as Acting Chief after the

retirement of Skip Sullivan.

March - I begin as the new Fire Chief. Additionally that month, Fire Prevention

Officer Steve Bancewicz retired, which created a vacancy in the Fire Prevention

Bureau.

April - The organization lost a true friend and professional. Fire Alarm Operator

Judie Waitt passed away after a long courageous fight with cancer.

June - Fire Inspector Scott McDonald was promoted to Fire Prevention Officer

and veteran Firefighter Bruce Philbrick announced his retirement after 20 years

of service

July - Experienced Fire Alarm Operator Brian Chevalier from Salem, NH was

hired to replace Judy Waitt and Firefighter/Paramedic Don Thibeault from

Pembroke, NH was hired to replace Bruce Philbrick.

August - Firefighter Jon True was appointed as the new Fire Inspector to replace

the vacancy left by Scott McDonald. This promotion left a vacancy among the

firefighter force.

September - Firefighter Paramedic Mike Nickerson from Exeter, NH was hired

as Jon True's replacement.

October - Veteran Captain Jack Goodwin announced his retirement to be

effective in January of 2000.

November - Lieutenant Steve Benotti was announced as the next Captain to

replace Jack Goodwin in January.

December - Firefighter Rusty Bridle was promoted to Lieutenant to replace

Lieutenant Benotti. This promotion created yet another vacancy among the

Firefighters. Firefighter Matthew Newton from Durham, NH accepted the offer

to work for Hampton Fire & Rescue to begin in January 2000. Fire Alarm

Operators' Tom Andrews and Mike Murray retired from the Call Force after

many years of service.
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10 years of Change
Over the past decade, Hampton Fire & Rescue has experienced a huge

increase in call volume. When looking at the historical trend, all indications

point to an equally busy year next year, then, we may experience an upward

spike for years 2001, 2002, and 2003. Several factors, specifically economic

growth, tourism, and demographic changes have driven our business since 1989.

Our fire equipment needs to be replaced due to the increased call

volume. We began the process in 1999 by studying new fire apparatus through

visits to exhibits, manufacturers, and other regional fire departments looking at

new fire apparatus to replace our two first due fire engines. We will be asking

you for the funds in 2000 and 2001 for the new vehicles.

4500
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A Century of Change

As we enter into the new millennium, Hampton Fire and Rescue has had

a tradition of service, courage, and pride. The Hampton Beach Village Precinct

was formed in 1907 and the town fire department became a town expenditure in

1913, as it was no longer considered a miscellaneous order due to three fires in

1912. In 1923, the town was asked to appropriate the money to hire 4 men, thus

becoming a permanent fire department.

In closing my first report to the town, I can proudly say that all the

members of the department rose to the many challenges, demands, and emotional

stress that they encountered on a daily basis. These proud individuals met the

Town mission by "proyJding
=

'proactive and professional quality services that

will meet the needs of all citizens in an effective, coordinated and responsible

manner" while responding to over 4,000 calls for assistance in 1999. Finally, on

behalf of the past and present members of your fire department, I would like to

thank you and your past families for your continued community support this

century since 1907.

Respectfully,

Hank Lipe, Fire Chief
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HAMPTON FIRE DEPARTMENT
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1999 ASSESSOR'S ANNUAL REPORT

The 1999 Tax Year has been a very busy and productive year for the

Assessor's Office. A total update of property values was accomplished for this

tax year, showing an average increase in assessed value of 15% over the 1998

assessment. Individual neighborhoods and condominium projects did vary in

changes from a low of 5% to a high of 50%.

The new values were not used on the first half bill due to the fact they

were not ready. We also had to add to the total 1999 rate because of the State

Education Tax.

GIS MAPPING
With the default budget in place this year, nothing new was added to the

GIS program, however the maps were updated, and the flood zones are available

along with zoning, streets, buildings etc.

TAX RATE STATISTICS
$133,340 in expenditure can change the rate 100

6,334,938 in assessed value can change the rate 100

LEASED LAND UPDATE
The Town still has 61 lots of leased land. There were 4 sales at the end

of the year and many new leases drawn over the year. The article passed to put

an end to Town Financing, so any new sales are cash by certified check only and

are 100% of market value. You can look at the Trustees of Trust Funds' Report

to see the revenues from the sale of leased land.

Robert A. Estey, Assessor, CAE, CNHA
Angela L. Boucher, Deputy Assessor, CNHA
Arlene Mowry, Assessors' Assistant
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1999 TAXABLE VALUATION BREAKDOWN
DESCRIPTION VALUE % OF TOTAL

VALUATION
TOTAL VALUATION 1,404,187,800 100.000%

EXEMPT PROPERTIES 65,019,500 4.629%

SCHOOLS 25,814,600

MUNICIPAL 14,079,100

CHURCHES 9,370,900

OTHER 15,754,900

TOT TAXABLE PROPERTY 1,339,168,300 95.371%

VALUATION EXEMPTIONS (ELDERLY, BLIND, ETC.)

3,763,400 .268%

TOT TAXABLE VALUATION 1,335,404,900 95.103%

DESCRIPTION COUNT VALUE % OF TAXABLE
PROPERTY

SINGLE FAM HOMES 4764± 818,633,500 61.279%

MOBILE HOMES 322± 10,937,300 0.819%

MULTI-FAMILY 299± 68,681,200 5.141%

RES CONDOS 1851± 180,957,300 13.546%

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL
PROPERTIES 7236± 1,079,209,300 80.785%

COMMERCIAL 348± 156,359,100 11.704%

INDUSTRIAL 21± 25,566,100 1.914%

UTILITIES 44,608,500 3.377%

COMM/IND CONDOS 208± 14,581,600 1.091%

TOTAL COMMERCIAL
PROPERTIES 577± 241,115,300 18.086%

TOWN LEASED LAND 62 4,818,500 0.361%

VACANT LAND/CUR USE 355± 13,116,400 0.982%

MARSHLAND 179± 113,600 0.009%

LEASED PARKING SPACES 307,400 0.023%

OTHER TAX IMPR 487,800 0.036%

TOTAL OTHER PROPS 596+ 18,843,700 1.410%

TOTAL TAXABLE PROPERTIES 1,339,168,300 100.000%
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TWO YEAR TAX RATE COMPARISON

1998 1999

GROSS ASSESSED VALUE:
Less Elderly/Blind:

NET ASSESSED VALUE:
NET PRECINCT VALUE:
Assessment Ratio

TOTAL TOWN APPROPRIATION:
TOTAL REVENUES AND CREDITS:

NET SCHOOL APPROPRIATION:
STATE EDUCATION

COUNTY TAX APPROPRIATION:
TOTAL APPROPRIATION:

BPT REIMBERUSEMENT:
WAR SERVICE CREDITS:
OVERLAY:

PROPERTY TAXES TO BE RAISED:

PRECINCT TAXES TO BE RAISED:

GROSS PROPERTY TAXES:

MUNICIPAL RATE:
SCHOOLS RATE: TOWN

STATE
COUNTY RATE:
TOTAL RATE:

Exempt Precinct Rate:

Precinct Rate:

1,214,313,900 1,339,168,300

-3,547,500 3,763,400

1,210,766,400 1,335,404,900

237,467,600 255,719,700

90% 92%

18,744,819 17,227,917

-8,882,530 6,704,282

14,256,901 7,109,025

8,393,435

1,521,575 1,444,878

25,640,764 27,470,973

-201,888 -86,825

+ 134,650 + 138,050

+203,690 +206,362

25,642,567 27,728,560

310,075 379,482

25,952,642 28,108,042

8.37 8.18

11.67 5.32

6.50

1.25 1.08

21.29 21.08

21.67 21.59

22.77 22.77

TAX RATE BREAKDOWN

COUNTY
5°/c

STATE-ED
31%

LOCAL-ED
25%

TOWN
39%

QTOWN
^LOCAL-ED

DSTATE-ED
QCOUNTY
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REPORT OF THE TAX COLLECTOR

It has certainly been a busy year in the tax collectors office and it is my
continued pleasure and privilege to serve you, the taxpayers of Hampton. It was

exciting to be part of the move to the new Town Office. I would like to take this

opportunity to thank the men who work for the Department of Public Works for

their time, patience and good humor in moving us. You were great! The Tax

Office is enjoying its new spacious facility and I am happy that so many

taxpayers took advantage of the drive-thru window this December tax season.

We received many positive comments from taxpayers concerning the drive-thru

and the new Town Office building.

I would like to acknowledge and thank the wonderful people who

volunteer and/or work part-time during the busy property tax seasons. My
appreciation and gratitude to Sylvia Moulton, Glenna Brown and Joanne Morse.

These dedicated and efficient women give unselfishly of their time to serve the

taxpayers of Hampton. Thank you! Special thanks to Dottie Trofatter who came

on board during the crunch time of December tax season, she was instrumental

to our office. Special thanks and recognition to Deputy Tax Collector Jan

Manning for her hard work and dedication. Jan is truly an asset to the office due

to her efficiency and pleasant personality. Thank you, Jan!

In 1999, this office collected a total of $28,509,250.97 for property

tax, land rent, land use change, yield tax and tax liens, and $2,593.39 in interest

on tax liens and late payments. Tax bills mailed totaled 17,170 for the two

billings. Also mailed were 269 certified notices of Impending Tax Lien, 82

certified notices to mortgagees, and 39 certified notices of possible deeding.

Again this year, there were no properties deeded. Liens were executed and

recorded against 182 properties, representing $349,691.55 in unpaid 1998

Property Tax (2% of the Tax Warrant). By the close of 1999, this office

collected 95% of the full year 1999 tax levy.

In closing, I wish a happy and healthy year to everyone. This is a great

Town because of the great people who live in it, and we look forward to

continuing to serve the people of this great community.

Respectfully submitted,

Joyce Sheehan

Tax Collector
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TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1999

DEBITS 1999 1998

UNCOLLECTED TAXES 01/1/99

Property Taxes $1,475,359.68

Yield Tax 78.73

Land Rent 2,982.00

TAXES COMMITTED IN 1999:

Property Taxes $28,108,046.54

Land Rent 62,100.32

Yield Taxes 598.48

Land Use Change Tax 103,000.00

OVERPAYMENT:
Property Taxes 1 60,73 1.16

Land Rent 558.00

Interest Collected-Delinquent Tax 25,353.53 109,629.91

TOTAL DEBITS $28,460,028.03 $1,588,050.32

CREDITS

REMITTED TO TREASURER
Property Taxes 26,730,414.78 1,125,213.05

Tax Converted to Lien 349,691.55

Land Rent 62,154.32 2,982.00

Yield Taxes 78.73

Land Use Change Tax 103,000.00

Interest 25,353.53 67,411.67

Int. & Costs Converted to Lien 42,218.24

ABATEMENTS MADE:
Property Tax 1,956.52 455.08

Land Rent 504.00

UNCOLLECTED TAXES, DEC. 31, 1999

Property Tax 1,536,046.40

Yield Tax 598.48

TOTAL CREDITS $28,460,028.03 $1,588,050.32
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TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT OF LIENS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 1999

DR. 1998 1997 1996 1995

$325,129.32 163,288.51 1,585.28

Unredeemed Liens,

January 1, 1999

Liens Executed during

Fiscal year 391.909.79

Int. & Costs Collected 6,304.34 35,293.73 47,247.38 982.74

TOTAL DEBITS $398,214.13 $360,423.05 $210,535.89 $2,568.02

CREDITS

Remittances to Treasurer:

150,766.97 1,585.28

47,247.38 982.74

Redemptions 133,922.59 199,133.25

Interest & Costs 6,304.34 35,293.73

Unredeemed Liens,

Dec. 31, 1999 257,987.20 125,996.07 12,521.54 -0-

TOTAL CREDITS $398,214.13 $360,423.05 $210,535.89 $2,568.02

The staff of the Tax Collector's Office.
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PERSONNEL: FULL-TIME 40

PART-TIME 22

The last year of the century presented many challenges for the Public

Works Department. The department had to find ways to perform all of the

normally expected services and tasks using a default budget, with less funds than

requested and fewer full-time employees. Many of the reconstruction and

replacement programs were stepped back in order to fund the most necessary

objectives. New and replacement vehicles were also postponed.

Three long time employees retired in December, Shirley McCormack -

secretary, Bob Ross - light equipment operator, and John Chase a heavy

equipment operator. In May, after considerable disability leave, Ed Torosian

retired as Vehicle Maintenance Foreman. Collectively they represent

approximately 65 years of knowledge and experience with the department, the

absence of their expertise will be felt for a long time. We wish Ed, Shirley, Bob
and John the best of luck in the future.

Sidewalks

The department performed asphalt overlay and repair work on Academy

Avenue, Moulton Road, Mill Road and Winnacunnet Road.

Sewers and Drains

The sewer and drain crew has been busy maintaining miles of storm water

collection system with its 1000 catch basins. In addition, nine miles of sewer

main and appurtenant sanitary manholes were cleaned out with the "jet". This is

a never ending task, especially in areas of aging pipes and root intrusion, but

necessary to avoid flooding and back-up problems.

The major project undertaken this year by the crew was construction of

leaching catch basins in the Sun Valley area to help alleviate flooding incidents

in the neighborhood. Ten basins and 356' of pipe were added to allow for

subsurface percolation. As in many areas of the beach, initial road construction

lacked adequate engineering for handling storm water and as lots were built up

and paving added, street flooding was exacerbated.

Two other drain projects were contracted out. The work on Academy
Avenue upgraded inadequate sized pipes, which should eliminate the street

flooding occurrences. Installation of three catch basins and 350' of pipe on

Exeter Road should remove a roadway flooding.

Employees of the sewer and drain section continue to provide

"locations" and construction inspections while assisting homeowners with

problems. Ninety-five sewer permits were issued and 127 inspections

performed. Eighty-three sewer or drain structures were raised and twenty sewer

repairs performed.
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Treatment Plant

The wastewater treatment plant reached a milestone treating over seven

hundred million gallons of sewage this year. We have done our best to run the

plant within the limits set by the EPA and the State DES. The plant is in need of

a major upgrade, to bring our plant up to date and provide the capacity needed to

allow future growth and opportunities for development. The improved

technology will also make the plant easier and more efficient to run. We
continue to take advantage of training opportunities and keep updated on new

technical processes. Employees are proud of the work being accomplished. All

of us here at the plant hope to be able to continue to do an outstanding job for

the town. Citizens wishing to see the plant in operation can arrange a tour by

calling the department. Everyone should better understand that the work here is

more than water flowing in one end and going out the other. The plant treated

3.0 million gallons of septage and processed 3500 tons of sludge in 1999. Wet
wells in pump stations and certain tanks at the wastewater treatment plant were

cleaned for grease removal.

Highway Maintenance

With the funds available we were able to resurface Towle Farm Rd.,

Towle Avenue, portions of Exeter Road, Winnacunnet Road, Ann's Lane,

Ancient Highway, as well as James, Toppan and Shaw Street. We also made a

temporary fix to the condition of Dearborn Avenue by placing a shim coat of hot

top. An effort was made to upgrade gravel shoulders throughout the town.

Solid Waste and Recycling

A great deal of effort was put into changing the rules for solid waste

collection and costs on our end for transport and tipping fees by increasing

volumes of recycling, which is a fixed cost. The beach and uptown was asked to

cooperate with efforts to reduce trash pickup days as well as to increase its

recycling efforts. The same program is planned next year with our intent to

further reduce costs. We would like to extend a whole hearted thanks to the

businesses and residents of the beach area for their cooperation in the new

recycling/rubbish collection program. The rules changed on a daily basis but for

the most part you did a great job. Recycling increased by 32% over the summer

months, while solid waste, town-wide reduced slightly. Overall recycling

(curbside) tonnage was up 21% for the year, to 1600 tons. Solid waste hauled to

Turnkey Landfill decreased 2% for the year to 1860 tons for which we pay

$13.82 per ton hauling fee and $49.00 per ton tipping fee, in addition to the local

collection costs.

From all the employees at Public Works, thanks for allowing us the

opportunity to serve you.

Respectfully submitted,

John R. Hangen

Public Works Director
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HAMPTON POLICE DEPARTMENT

Full-Time Law Enforcement Officers 34

Part-Time Law Enforcement Officers 70

Full-Time Civilian Personnel 9

Part-Time Civilian Personnel 3

A Mission and Value Statement guides the employees of the Hampton Police

Department in the performance of their duties. Those statements further

emphasize our commitment to the philosophy of Community Policing and read

as follows:

MISSION STATEMENT
The mission of the Hampton Police Department is to enhance the quality of

life for all persons who live, work and visit our community by:

* fostering partnerships within our community to promote safe, secure neighborhoods;

* maintaining order and peace, while affording dignity and respect to every person;

* safeguarding individual rights; and,

* preventing crime while aggressively working to solve those crimes which occur.

We strive to accomplish this mission through the delivery of quality police

services; and the pursuit of excellence and dedication in the performance of

those services.

VALUE STATEMENT
All employees of the Hampton Police Department will be guided by the

following shared values:

A. Human Life

We value human life and dignity above all else. Therefore, we give first

priority to any situation that threatens life. We utilize the proper levels of force

and only when necessary. We treat all persons in a dignified and courteous

manner, and exhibit understanding of ethnic and cultural diversity, both in our

professional and personal endeavors. We will remain constantly aware of the

need for compassion, caring, and common sense in dealing with people.

B. Integrity

We believe integrity is the basis for public trust. Therefore, we are

committed to the highest performance standards, ethical conduct, and

truthfulness in all relationships. We hold ourselves accountable for our actions

and take pride in a professional level of service to all.

C. Excellence

We strive for personal and professional excellence. Therefore, we strive to

do our best in all situations and to provide quality service in a courteous,

efficient and accessible manner. We vigorously enforce local, state, and federal

laws; and, are committed to the defense of the Constitutions of the United States
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laws; and, are committed to the defense of the Constitutions of the United States

and the State of New Hampshire. We promote community and employee

interaction through problem solving partnerships. We empower our employees

at all levels to engage in problem identification and problem solving activities.

We will strive for professional performance through continual training,

education, and commitment to our duties. We will not tolerate misconduct by an

employee and we will treat our fellow employees and our work environment with

dignity and respect.

PERSONNEL
In July Captain James Sullivan attended the 198

1

session of the FBI

National Academy. The National Academy is an 11 -week intensive command-
training program held at the FBI Academy in Quantico, Va. The 198

th
Session

included 270 law enforcement officials from 49 States of the Union, the District

of Columbia, five branches of America's military services and three Federal

civilian agencies. Other participants included representatives from 20 foreign

countries. Captain Sullivan graduated from the academy on September 24, 1999.

We congratulate Captain Sullivan for his achievements while at the academy.

Full time Officer Joseph Papsedero resigned his position on September

6, 1999 to take a full time police officer position with his hometown of

Burlington, Massachusetts. While Officer Papsedero was only with us for a short

time, we thank him for his dedicated service to the community; we wish him well

in his new position. This vacancy was filled on November 12, 1999 with the

swearing in of Officer Stephen Champey. Officer Champey joined the Hampton

Police Department in April 1998 as a special police officer serving in that

position until his current appointment. Officer Champey lives in Plaistow with

his wife and young son.

During the past year the department has strived to establish stronger

relationships with the Hampton schools in an effort to provide a safer

educational environment for the students. To meet this goal, the department

established the positions of School Resource Officers at the Winnacunnet High

School and Hampton Academy Junior High. On November 8, 1999 Officers

Richard Sawyer and Thomas Linane were assigned as School Resource Officers.

Officer Sawyer is assigned to the Winnacunnet High School and Officer Linane

to the Hampton Academy Junior High School. In September of this year the

Town of Hampton was awarded and accepted a $250,000 federal grant from the

Department of Justice, Office of Community Oriented Policing for the purpose

of hiring two full time officers to replace the officers assigned to the SRO
program. The grant funds will pay the majority of costs during the next three

years associated with hiring these additional officers. This program continues the

strong commitment of this department to community policing.

On December 1, 1999 Officer Joseph Jones was hired to fill one of

these grant-funded positions. Officer Jones first joined the Hampton Police

Department in April 1998 as a special officer. He served in this position until

his current appointment. Officer Jones previously worked for the Merrimack
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College police department for 10 years; he lives in Lawrence, Massachusetts. A
hiring process is currently being conducted to fill the second position.

The Hampton Police Department is divided into two functional bureaus,

Operations and Support Services. Below is a summary of the major functions of

each bureau with a summary of the year end activity.

INTERNAL AFFAIRS & INSPECTIONS UNIT
This unit commanded by Captain Timothy Crotts has the task of investigating all

complaints concerning the professionalism, integrity, and performance of any

member of the Police Department. It also is responsible for providing

inspections into various areas of the operation of the Department, including

auditing funds received from parking ticket returns, animal control fees, gun

permit fees, etc., and for inspecting evidence inventory to assure adherence to

established policies and procedures.

Internal Investigations 7

Citizen Complaints Initiated 3

Department Initiated 4

Bureau Level Investigations 1

Internal Affairs Level Investigations 6

Adjudication of Investigations

Sustained 3

Not Sustained 2

Exonerated 1

Pending 1

Final Dispositions of those sustained:

Written Warning 2

Verbal Warning 1

OPERATIONS BUREAU
This bureau is under the command of Captain James Sullivan and consists of the

patrol division, communications section, animal control, D.A.R.E./

SRO/Community Support, Mounted Patrol and the Special Response Team.

The patrol division is divided into three primary shifts. Each shift is led

by a Lieutenant and assisted by a Sergeant. Officers on these shifts patrol the

town and respond to all calls for police service within the town, investigate

criminal activity and enforce traffic laws. This division was kept busy again this

year answering over 17,545 calls for service, a breakdown of those calls for

service are contained later in this report. Officers cited motorists for 3,055

violations of motor vehicle offenses and investigated 3,722 incidents and made

1,910 physical custody arrests.

The Motorcycle Unit again provided rapid response to incidents during

the heavy summer traffic, which slows cruiser response. This unit is comprised

of 14 certified motorcycle operators who ride 6 Harley Davidson FLHPI
motorcycles. These officers are certified through a training course designed by
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Harley Davidson and taught by Officer Steven Henderson and Det. Dan Gidley.

The Bicycle Unit continued its popularity among the officers and

public. This unit continues the department's commitment to community

policing. Officers on bicycles have the ability to interact with the public easily

and access problem areas and surprise criminals.

During the summer and busy preseason, the New Hampshire State

Police continued to assist the Hampton Police Department by assigning Troopers

to create an added presence at the beach, and the Rockingham County Sheriff's

Department provided assistance on the busy 4
th

of July weekend. A special note

of thanks to Department of Safety Commissioner Richard Flynn, Colonel John

Barthelmes and Rockingham County Sheriff J. Daniel Linehan for their

continued support and cooperation.

Mounted Patrol

The Mounted Patrol Unit continued to provide a positive police

presence while covering the beach during the summer months. Officers of this

unit made numerous arrests of violators, especially in those areas difficult to

patrol in cruisers or on foot. The Officers have also marched in several parades,

attended several public events and have visited schools to demonstrate the talents

of our horses.

D.A.R.E./Community Support

Officer Tom Linane taught this years 5
th

grade D.A.R.E. class which

graduated in June of 1999. The 1999 D.A.R.E. graduates received certificates at

an well-attended ceremony of parents and School and Town officials. We would

like to thank everyone who has supported this fine program and that helps to

keep Hampton youth and schools DRUG FREE.

Communications Section

Communication Specialists perform an extremely important function

for law enforcement and the community. They answer all phone calls coming to

the department, respond to radio transmissions from officers and greet people

entering the building. They ensure appropriate police response to incidents, calm

fears of victims while awaiting the arrival of an officer, and provide instruction

on life saving techniques to people in emergency situations. While performing

these tasks, they must answer all sorts of questions both related and unrelated to

law enforcement issues, perform computer functions, and still remain cheerful

and stress free. They are to be commended for their dedication and

professionalism displayed throughout the year.

Animal Control

Peter MacKinnon, Animal Control Officer, experienced another very

busy year responding to 383 animal related matters. ACO MacKinnon continued

to educate the public of the dangers from the on-going threat of rabies in the
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community. Several animals were confirmed to have been rabid during this past

year. Mr. MacKinnon continued to be available to the community to assist with

any animal related issues.

Crimeline for the Hamptons

Crimeline for the Hamptons is in its fifth year helping the communities

of Hampton, North Hampton and Hampton Falls fight crime. With increased

recognition in the seacoast area, the number of calls received by the Crimeline

has steadily grown. The Crimeline for the Hamptons receives its funds by

citizen donations and annual fund-raisers. The Board of Directors wishes to

thank Police Coordinator Tim Kerber and Bill Bourque for their assistance

during the past year.

Support Services Bureau

The Support Services Bureau is commanded by Captain Timothy

Crotts, and contains the Criminal Investigations Division, Prosecution section,

Training and Recruitment and Facility maintenance.

The Criminal Investigation Division consists of Detectives Philip

Russell, Daniel Gidley, Lynne Charleston and during the summer Special Officer

Paul Sullivan. I am proud to report that on May 24, 1999 Detectives Dan

Gidley, Lynne Charleston, and Philip Russell received awards for Outstanding

Performance at the New Hampshire Police Standards and Training Council's

"Proactive Law Enforcement Luncheon". These awards recognized these

detectives for their 1998 investigation into a Methamphetamine lab and the arrest

of the two people responsible for the crime. The detectives were further

recognized for their efforts in uncovering this lab by the New England Narcotics

Enforcement Officers' Association and the 3M Corporation. This division

experienced another busy year conducting investigations into felony complaints,

drug crimes, sexual assaults, and cases of a sensitive nature, and all juvenile

matters. Offenses investigated by the detective's follows:

Narcotics Investigations 58

Aggravated Felonious Sexual Assault/ 34

Habitual Offender 11

Theft 46

Burglary 27

Robbery '. 7

Attempted Burglary 3

First Degree Assault 2

Second Degree Assault 7

Simple Assault 19

Shoplifting 6

False Prescriptions 2

Bad Checks 7

Credit Card Fraud 9
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Receiving Stolen Property 9

Criminal Mischief 11

Criminal Threatening 5

Reckless Conduct 5

Conduct After an Accident 5

Arson/Suspicious Fires 5

Disorderly Conduct 6

Background Investigations 17

Harassment 2

Computer Fraud 1

Criminal Trespassing 2

Fraud 2

Violation of Protective Orders 1

Assist other Departments 6

Allowing Improper Persons to Operate 1

Fugitive from Justice 3

Violation of Court Orders 2

Suicide Investigations 1

Alcohol Violations 7

Felony Driving While Intoxicated 6

Receiving Stolen Property 2

Child Abuse 1

C.H.I.N.S 2

Endangering Child Welfare 1

Deceptive Business Practices 1

False Reports 2

Theft of Rental Property 2

Sexual Offender Registration 2

Cruelty to Animals 1

Weapons Violations 2

Stalking 1

Total Investigations: 358

Total Cases Presented to Rockingham Grand Jury

for Felony Indictments 66

Juvenile Investigations

Petitions Filed 29

Diversion/Counseling 21

Suspended 16

Nolle Prossed 5

Total Juvenile Matters Investigated: 71
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Prosecution Section :

This section led by Sergeant Joseph Galvin and assisted by Secretary Marcia

Hess and Officer Al Roach during the summer. This section is responsible for

prosecuting all District Court related matters, as well as, building and fire code

violations, juvenile trials; maintaining and updating arrest files, warrant files,

domestic violence petition files, pending civil litigation files; and performing

records checks and issuing subpoenas. The following statistics are reported for

1999:

Total Arrests/Summonses 6,934

Cases Scheduled for Trial 1,346

Scheduled Trials which Resulted in Not

Guilty, Nolle Prossed, or Dismissed

Decision 43

Scheduled Trials which Resulted in

Defaults 96

Town Ordinance Violations/Fines Total $45,950.58

SUMMARY OF STATION ACTIVITY
Traffic Stop 5440

Disorderly Conduct 1373

Fire Department Assist 1099

Suspicious Activity 953

Alarms(Burglar/Auto) 883

Abandoned 911 Call 585

Request for Police Officer 585

Accidents 556

Legal Paper Service 462

Theft 446

Parking Violations 403

Follow-up Investigations 387

Domestic Disturbance 385

Motorist Assistance 310

Liquor Law Violations 300

Criminal Mischief 300

Assist other Police Agency 290

Public Assist Transportation 263

Administrative Errand 233

Assault 138

Civil Standby 121

Criminal Trespass 106

Obstructing Public Way 97

Harassment 94
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Burglary : 72

Public Assist Welfare Check 68

Lockout 67

Criminal Threatening 67

Fingerprinting 61

Firearm, Fireworks Violations 60

Missing Person 59

Reckless Operation 58

Drug Offenses 53

Endangering Welfare of Child 53

Warrant Service 51

Found Property 47

Lost Property 44

Fraud 44

Driving under Influence 42

Public Assist/ Message Delivery 35

Request for Police Supervisor 34

Motor Vehicle Theft 32

Protective Custody 31

Utility Company Matters 29

Runaway 29

Sexual Assault 26

Traffic Control 24

Unsecured Property 19

Suicide 18

Neighbor Dispute 18

Landlord Tenant Dispute 18

Public Works Matters 15

Abandoned Vehicle 15

Wanted Person 14

Reckless Conduct 14

Traffic Monitoring 13

Cruelty to Animals 12

Sexual Offender Registration 1

1

Property Check 9

Shoplifting 8

Unattended Death 7

Prowling or Loitering 7

Other Criminal Offenses 7

Hawkers & Peddlers 6

Forgery 6

Public Indecency 6

Injured Animal 5

Robbery 5

VIN Verification 4
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Hit and Run 4

Bomb Threat 3

Speeding Violations 3

Fraudulent Use Credit Cards 3

Animal Waste 2

Court Security 2

Kidnapping 2

Stalking 2

Sick Wild Animal 1

Weapons Violations 1

School Bus Violations 1

Rollerskate Violations 1

Arson 1

Receiving Stolen Property 1

Obscene Matter 1

Skateboard Violations 1

Abandoned Refrigerator 1

Total Calls for Service 17,545

SUMMARY OF CRIMINAL ARRESTS/OFFENSES COMMITTED
Kidnapping/ Abduction 1

Forcible Rape 7

Forcible Sodomy 1

Forcible Fondling 17

Robbery 6

Aggravated Assault 15

Simple Assault 180

Intimidation 6

Arson 2

Burglary / Breaking And Entering 59

Shoplifting 46

Theft From Building 23

Theft From Motor Vehicle 7

All Other Larceny 313

Motor Vehicle Theft 32

Counterfeiting / Forgery 14

False Pretenses / Swindle 17

Credit Card / Automatic Teller 8

Welfare Fraud 1

Stolen Property Offenses 1

Destruction / Damage / Vandalism 369

Drug / Narcotic Violations 156

Drug Equipment Violations 53

Weapon Law Violations 9
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Bad Checks 13

Disorderly Conduct 180

Driving Under The Influence 160

Drunkenness 192

Family Offenses, Nonviolent 16

Liquor Law Violations 692

Runaway 79

Trespass Of Real Property 6

All Other Offenses No Traffic 573

Traffic, Town By-Laws, Misc 468

Totals 3722

SUMMARY OF MOTOR VEHICLE ARRESTS/SUMMONS
Speeding 1 162

Noise 338

Inspection Requirements 174

Stop Signs; Yield Signs 137

Front Lights 100

Tail Lamp and Reflectors 100

Improper Stopping/ Standing/ Parking 69

Obedience toTraffic Signs 67

Registration Required 66

Lane Violations 66

Misuse of Plates 56

Vehicle Entering Stop Yield Intersection 56

One-Way Violations 55

Pedestrian's Right of Way in Crosswalks 41

Turning Movements and Required Signals 71

License Required 38

Child Passenger Restraints Required 27

Passing on Right 24

Highway Markings 21

Motorcycle License 20

Required Position Turning at Intersections 19

Dimming Lights 17

Eye and Face Protection 15

Muffler, Horn and Lamps 15

Passing on Left 14

Improper Lighting 14

Muffler; Prevention of Noise 14

Possession of License Required 12

Skateboards on Public Highways 12

Chan»e of Address 16
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Possession of Certificate Required 10

Residency Requirements 9

Littering 9

Following Too Closely 9

Restricted Licenses 8

Equipment Violations 8

Period of Lighting 6

Limitations on Backing 6

Obstruction Driver's View 6

Lighting Required 6

Tinted Glass 6

Jet Ski Violations 6

Miscellaneous Violations 133

Totals 3055

CONCLUSION:
On behalf of the members of our Department, I would like to extend our sincere

appreciation to the Town Manager, James Barrington, and the Board of

Selectman, all Town Committees, and Town Departments for their help,

cooperation, and continued support throughout the year. We also wish to thank

the business community and the people of the Town of Hampton for their

continued generosity and gracious support.

Finally, I wish to thank the families of our employees for the sacrifices they

make every day due to the nature of this job, and I commend all our members for

their professionalism, dedication and hard work towards providing the Town of

Hampton with the best law enforcement services.

Respectfully submitted,

William L. Wrenn

Chief of Police
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CONSERVATION COMMISSION

It was with regret that our Commission accepted Betty Callanan's

resignation after her many years of service. Ellen Goethel has filled this position

joining Ralph Fatello, Dan Gangai, Nancy Olney, Bonnie Thimble, Peter Tilton,

Jr., and myself to serve on this seven member commission. Presently, Dr. Ralph

Falk and Fred Palazzolo are serving as alternates, and Sue Launi as our

dedicated secretary. Wedding bells rang for Nancy in November.

Commissioner Batchelder is now Commissioner Olney. Congratulations Nancy

and Peter!

This year our Commission reviewed and made recommendations on

twenty-three NHDES Wetland Bureau applications, twenty-six Special Permit

applications, and fifteen Planning Board referrals. Unfortunately, we also had to

investigate several violations. The majority of these violations were the result of

home owners not being aware of the regulations. Our responsibilities include

guiding and helping all to comply with both state and town regulations. We will

be happy to answer any questions you might have regarding these rules; and we

are ready to help with the preparation of all wetland applications.

Our salt marsh restoration program is proceeding with our efforts being

directed to the Meadow Pond and the Charles Street areas. Again this year the

$15,000 special money article was matched with grants from the Office of State

Planning Coastal Program ad from NH Estuaries Stormwater Management

Project. Because of our continued commitment to these projects, we are also

receiving non-match money from U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Ducks

Unlimited, Gulf of Maine Council and others. Much has been accomplished to

date, and with the Town's continued support of the salt marsh restoration money

article, we will save our marshes not only for our own benefit but for that of

future generations.

The enormous task of marking, monitoring, and cleaning conservation

land and easements was begun this year. The conservation easements in the

Hampton Meadows development, between Drakeside Road and Route 101, was

marked, as was some of the conservation land off Barbour Road. Ralph Fatello

and his family led Commission members and Victory Garden tenants on a clean-

up venu=ture starting at the garden and ending at the White's Lane entrance.

Bags and bags and more bags were filled with all sorts of debris. We couldn't

possibly clean it all out. It was sad to see beautiful wooded areas and trails

trashed. We'll be back picking up, trying to keep our open space free of

garbage. Hopefully all who enjoy the walks through the woods will help by not

only not littering, but by picking up just a small amount along the way. That

would be great!

Bonnie reported that all 40 gardens were cultivated again this year.

Violette's Flower Wagon continued it's support of Mike's Place with it's

donation of vegetable plants. The Victory Garden membership is most grateful

for the flower shop's yearly donation. Despite the very dry year, it was a
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successful growing season.

This year the Conservation Commission established a scholarship fund.

We are grateful to the Victory Garden for its donation to the fund. The

scholarship award is to be presented to a deserving Hampton graduating senior

of Winnacunnet High School who is interested in pursuing his studies in

environmental sciences. Ellen Goethel had to honor to present the first

Conservation Commission Scholarship to Kathleen Maltais who is presently

studying at the University of New Hampshire. At the Hampton Academy Jr.

High School graduation, Ralph Fatello presented the first Environmental Science

Award Plaque to Allison Vandersall for her excellence in the studies of science

and the environmental sciences. Congratulations Allison and Kathleen, and best

wishes for continued success in your studies.

Ellen was kind enough to entertain both young and old with her live

touch tank of local marine animals at the Town's 361
st

Founder's Day
Celebration. Many thanks, Ellen. She is also in the process of placing a Town
owned parcel of land on Island Path under the jurisdiction of the Conservation

Commission so that it might eventually be used for the study and enjoyment of

the salt marsh and its wildlife.

Our Commission has been working with Julia Peterson, Extension

Specialist, Sea Grant, of the UNH Cooperative Extension Project SERVE. This

project, Students for Environmental Resource Volunteerism & Education, is

working directly with the leaders of the WHS Senior Project Program. Our role

is to choose for the student a project which will benefit the community, have a

Commissioner serve as the student's mentor, make information available to the

student, and provide the time for the student's final presentation. Our

involvement with Project SERVE is an enjoyable adventure, and we look

forward to working directly with the Senior students.

In September our Commissioners joined in the efforts of the nationwide

coastal cleanup sponsored by the Office of State Planning; and in October we co-

sponsored a slide show with the Citizen's for NH Land & Heritage at the Lane

Library.

The Heritage Commission made a great discovery off Mill Road during

the year - a cooper's shop. In order to save this historic find from demolition, it

had to be moved. The conservation land off Barbour Road, next to the

Blacksmith Shop seemed to be a logical place for the cooperage. The move was

made in September. Our conservation land is now home ti authentic, original

blacksmith and cooper shops!

The Federal Emergency Management Agency has created a Hazard

Mitigation Grant Program. This grant money, derived from flood insurance

money, is to be made available to correct existing conditions that place

properties in jeopardy of being damaged or destroyed in storm events. Our

Commission has applied for this grant to correct the erosion problems along Eel

Ditch at the Winnacunnet Road culvert area. There is yet much work to be done

in pursuing this grant, but we are hopeful that we will qualify.
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The Conservation Commission will soon have a new home, an office

space downstairs in the Town Office building. Once the phone lines and other

necessary office furniture are in place, all Conservation files, maps, wetlands

regulations and applications will be available to the public in our office. We
plan to be there at set office hours for your convenience. All of this should

happen in the very near future. We are looking forward to it!

This marks the end of a busy, productive year. As always, I am grateful

to the Town's Selectmen, Board and Commission members, and the Town Hall

personnel for their help and continued support of our Commission's endeavors.

We look forward to continue working in the pursuit of our goals in this, the

beginning of a new millennium.

Respectfully submitted,

Vivianne Marcotte

Chairperson
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LANE MEMORIAL LIBRARY
Looking Forward to a New Millennium

One hundred years ago as the nineteenth century came to a close, my
great grandfather would have been writing the report for the Hampton Public

Library. Simeon Albert Shaw was Hampton's first public librarian from 1881 to

1931. In 1899 the library was one room in the town hall and was open only

Wednesday evenings. Customers had to ask him for a specific book by

consulting a list of books acquired. As the twentieth century comes to a close his

great granddaughter (me) is the librarian in a building made up of the original

library building (donated in 1910 by the Lane Family) and a 1985 addition. The

library is open six days a week and customers can browse the stacks themselves
,

physically or electronically. I am sure Simeon would be astonished at the

advances the town and technology has made.

Staff

From a one person part-time library staff in 1899, the library has grown

to six full-time and seven part-time staff in 1999. There are now three

departments, Reference Services under the supervision of Bobb Menk;

Children ' s Services under the supervision of Beverly Vetter; and Public

Services (Circulation) under the supervision of Bill Teschek. Bobb has himself,

Alice Alford, Joanne Straight, Beverly Vetter, Bill Teschek and myself take

shifts so that there is a professional librarian in the Reference Department every

hour that we are open, ready to assist any person in any query he or she may

have. Bill schedules Charlene Carliell, Barbara Chapman, Sandra Kent, Lynda

Miller, Joanne Mulready, and Mary Twomey to staff the two circulation desks.

Jean Keefe, who processes interlibrary loan requests and catalogs children's

fiction, also works the Circulation Desk when needed, as do Bill and I, when an

extra pair of hands is useful. We had staff changes this year when Kelly

Bucknam decided to move away from the Seacoast. We replaced her with Mary

Twomey. In August we lost another part-time employee, Karen Ryan, to a full

time position at Winnacunnet High School. We hired Lynda Miller and shuffled

hours once again in our attempt to better serve you. Another development is a

newly organized Staff Development Committee made up of Sandra Kent and

Jean Keefe as we prepare to gain the continuing education mandated by the

Legislature for all public library employees.

Service

Along with the staff of 13, the Lane Library is fortunate to have a

volunteer staff of twelve to fifteen dedicated people. Some volunteers are

through RSVP (Retired Senior Volunteer Program), some are through their

church outreach program and some are just avid library supporters. Long time

volunteer Arlene Farrell has been joined in great number of hours served by

relative newcomer to the library, John Holman. John has taken on the task of

adding much of Hampton ' s history to the library ' s web page. We are
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appreciative of all of these wonderful people giving of their time on a regular

basis: shelving books, mending books, entering information, organizing work

spaces, and lending a hand where needed.

The library offers a variety of programs to the local community. There

are programs geared to youngsters, young adults and adults. The Children's

Department offers several story times and after school programs during the year

as well as a big summer reading program. The Friends group still sponsors trips

to the symphony throughout the year and has offered programs with local

authors. Bobb Menk offers free computer classes one evening a week after the

library closes. The capability of borrowing materials from almost any library in

the state has greatly expanded what we can offer locally.

Trustees

Tom Donaldson, James Ingliss, Gerald McConnell, Mary Lou

O ' Connor, and Barbara Rallis served as the Lane Memorial Library Trustees for

the last year of the twentieth century. During 1999 policy updating and budget

preparation took up much of their meetings. In September the Board honored

former trustee Catherine Anderson, fondly known as Katie, by naming the

Children ' s Room KATIE ' S ROOM, celebrating her eighteen years of service to

the children of Hampton. In October, Trustee James Ingliss resigned. He will

be missed for his cheerful demeanor and his dedication to the library. The

trustees remain committed to moving the library forward into the new

millennium, representing the community to the library and the library to the

community.

Future Plans

We are proceeding with plans to reopen the front entrance on

Winnacunnet Road. Making that entrance handicapped accessible will mean

access for everyone, no matter the weather, as we still have to close the existing

ramp (which is under the sloping roof) when snow accumulates. The Rotary

Club of Hampton has generously started us on our way with a donation this year

and a promise of another next year. We will be meeting with a library consultant

from the State Library for input how to best use the existing space in the library.

The Friends group is looking to expand their group and offer more programs in

the coming year.

Conclusion

The library has something for everyone of every age and stage, from

picture books for preschoolers to the parenting books and videos that explain the

different years of a child's life, from resume books for career changes to craft

books for the home handymen, from audio tapes for the commuters to videos for

the homebound, from large print books for the failing eyesight to reference

works that tell you what might cause that failing eyesight, from financial

information for the investors to the helpful hints for the penny pinchers, and on

and "ii All ol this is available by physically coming to the library or by
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accessing us and the library catalog from home by going to our web site

www.hampton.lib.nh.us. Check out our reference page for links to consumer

information, homework sites, local government, travel information, or to search

the Internet. We look forward, in the new millennium, to improved service,

access, and resources.

Respectfully Submitted,

Catherine Redden, Director

Library Trustees Mary-Lou O'Connor and Gerry McConnell being sworn in by

Town Clerk Arleen Andreozzi, March 1999.
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PLANNING BOARD

1999 continued the frenetic pace that 1998 set. The election brought a

changed line-up to the Board. Bob Viviano returned for another term.

However, Carolyn Payzant decided to forgo a re-election effort in favor of a seat

on the Zoning Board of Adjustment. Her insight and dedication will be missed.

The open seat offered Tom Gillick a chance to return to the Board and

provide his expertise. The reorganization found Tom Gillick being appointed

Vice-Chairman, Peter Olney remained as Clerk and Brian Warburton was the

Selectmen's Member. Veteran alternate members Dan Trahan and "Sandy"

Buck were joined by Craig Salomon who was appointed to fill a vacancy. Tracy

Lang, continued as the Rockingham Planning Commission Circuit Rider Planner,

offering her expertise and efforts. Janet Perkins, our secretary, continues her

indispensable role of managing the administrative aspects of the Board.

The Planning Board worked diligently on maintaining the Zoning

Ordinances, and other relevant regulations to ensure they remain current and

consistent. In addition, a number of important issues arose during the year that

required the Board's careful consideration. Discovery of numerous

inconsistencies in the sign ordinance prompted the Board of Selectmen to direct

the Building Inspector to halt enforcement of the provision until such time as a

replacement article could be put in place. The Board considered the issues,

consulted outside counsel and prepared a replacement for the Town Meeting

ballot. As a result of tragic fires at the beach and harbor, attention was focused

upon the zoning of the affected districts and whether or not this might provide

the Town with an opportunity and an appropriate time to update the regulations.

An ad hoc committee, with representatives from the Board of Selectmen, Zoning

Board, Planning Board, Beach Precinct Commission, and the populace at large,

provided the Board with suggested amendments. The Board, citing its

responsibility to the future of the Town and potential effect of changes, took the

suggestions under advisement, and is weighing the implications and considering

seeking outside consultation. The Board is continuing efforts for a Master Plan

dealing with the beach area.

In 1999 the Planning Board approved the following: Eight subdivisions

that created 43 new lots. One such application presenting unique issues was the

Wayside Farms subdivision, which accounted for 12 of the lots created. The

Board also approved 8 minor lot line adjustments and 18 site plans. Approved

under the Site Plan Review were an addition to the Seacoast United Soccer

facility, an elderly assisted living facility, an manufacturing facility for QA
Technologies, and 13 condominium units. The Board also granted 12 Special

Permits and 7 Use Change Applications. The Planning Board meets on the first

and third Wednesday evening of each month and on additional evenings as

circumstances warrant. The Board invites all to attend or view its proceedings

on the local cable television channel.

Respectfully submitted,

James A. Workman, Chairman
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LEASED LAND REAL ESTATE COMMISSION

The Commission, established by Chapter 3, State Sessions Laws of

1983, met twice during 1999 in order to approve the sale of four leased lots of

the Town for a total of $266,000 in sales. This amount is earmarked for deposit

in the Hampton Real Estate Trust Fund, whose income benefits (reduces) the

property tax rate each year.

After a busy year of six meetings in 1997, the Commission had no sales

to approve during 1998 and did not meet. There are 60 remaining Town-leased

lots at the beach that can be sold to the individual lessees thereof; the original

inventory in 1982 was 650 lots.

At its September 8, 1999 meeting the Commissioners discussed the

rising real-estate market and the benefit to the Town of selling at 100% of fair

market value "at the time of the sale," as voted at the Special Town Meeting in

May, 1982. Indexing property-tax valuations to the rapidly increasing FMV at

the time 90-day sales agreements are signed can, in this period, only increase the

revenues to the Town.

We express our appreciation to Deputy Assessor Angela Boucher who

is the liaison from the Town's Executive Branch to the Commission.

Glyn P. Eastman, Chairman

Arthur J. Moody, Clerk

Raymond E. Alie

Holhs W. Blake

John F. Woodburn
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Hampton Historical Society

The Hampton Historical Society continues to offer a variety of

programs to the community. Although our primary mission is the preserving

of Hampton's unique history and artifacts, we have always paid close attention

to keeping this history alive. This is most evident through our educational

programs for local schools and organizations. This has included visits from

home-schooled children and the British Exchange Students Program at

Winnacunnet High School. The program is directed by Betty Moore, Suzanne

Falzone and Janet Caylor as well as many other volunteers who have worked

tirelessly in this effort.

The Society hosted several social events which are available to the

general public, the most interesting and enjoyable being the historical program

"Traditional New England Fiddle Music and Old Time Barn and Square

Dance". Our seasonal museum opening day program in June centered around

a wine and cheese reception for members and guests. It was a beautiful day,

held on the museum grounds and enjoyed by all. There were cookouts for

volunteers with a "Family Day" picnic theme. The Hampton Historical

Society/Tuck Museum provided the food concession for the Rockingham

County Craft Fair which was held on the grounds. It was very profitable and

the proceeds went to support the museum.

The main museum contains a very impressive collection of Hampton's

memorabilia. Also on the grounds are an 1850's School house, a Fire Museum
and a Farm Museum. Please come and join us as a member and volunteer. It

is truly a rewarding experience. We are located at Tuck Field, 40 Park

Avenue. The Tuck Museum Volunteer Committee meets each Wednesday

morning, January through May to work on collections care, exhibits, research

and maintenance, while enjoying great fellowship. The Tuck Museum is open

during the summer months on Wednesday, Friday and Sunday afternoons.

Please write us at The Hampton Historical Society, P.O. Box 1601, Hampton,

NH 03843, or call at 929-0781.

Respectfully submitted,

Paul T. Corbett, President
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MOSQUITO CONTROL COMMISSION

The Hampton Mosquito Control District, whose jurisdiction

encompasses all of the area within the Town bounds, was established by Town
Meeting vote in the mid-1970's. The three Commissioners are appointed by the

Board of Selectmen for staggered three-year terms. At this time, the Board will

be appointing two new members to fill vacant positions.

The Commission, which once directly hired employees holding State

licenses for applying pesticides, now contracts with a private firm to carry out

the seasonal control problem. In mid- 1997 the Commission sought sealed bids

for larviciding the fresh and saltwater wetlands, and for adulticiding/spraying the

airborne mosquito population. There were two bidders and we accepted the

proposal of Michael Morrison's Municipal Pest Management Services, Inc. of

York, Maine, for 2000 (subject to March appropriation).

In addition to mosquito work, the 200 program includes the midge

control project along the back beach area as well as the annual repair and

placement of greenhead trap boxes in the marshes. Some birdhouses for flying-

insect-eating birds also remain installed in the marshes. Due to the 1997-98

marsh restoration work that Mr. Morrison did for the Conservation Commission,

Landing Road areas no longer need larviciding; the mid- 1998 sealed bid process

resulted in a further $1,000 reduction in our budget request for 1999.

Hampton residents can assist in the Commission's work by abating, on

their property, mosquito breeding sites. These include any pools of rainwater —

especially, stagnant water in manmade objects such as containers and uncovered

vehicle tires (the latter made unlawful by Town Meeting Ordinance, Article 9,

Chapter 2, "Health & Welfare," Town Ordinance Book.

Respectfully submitted,

John P. Skumin, Chairman
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TRUSTEES OF THE TRUST FUNDS

For 1999, the Town's trust funds earned nearly $800,000 for the

General Fund to reduce the 1999 property tax rate. About $16 million in

revenue has benefited tax rates over the sixteen-year history of the Real Estate

Trust Fund alone. The sale of town-owned lots at the beach was voted in 1982;

sales began in 1984 and a great majority of the land was sold to the lessees at

30% of fair market value until the percentage was increased by Town Meeting in

the late 1980's. Presently, the sales price is 100% of fair market value; 60 lots

remain to be sold of the original 650 with one sale pending. The Trustees

received a total of $226,000 in 1999 upon the sale of four lots of land.

The three year investment management and bookkeeping contract on

the $13.5M Real Estate Trust Fund became due in October. The Trustees, after

reviewing five Requests-For-Proposal submissions, remained with Trust and

Investment Services of Bank of New Hampshire. The Trustees were quite

satisfied with the detail that Bank of New Hampshire carried out the Board's

Investment Policy and thought it prudent to keep the operation in state and not

change in the face of the generally held Y2K concerns.

The Trustees also have fiduciary responsibility for several older and

smaller Town trusts. These include cemetery, library, "poor" and the Campbell

Sports Scholarship trust fund. Four Capital Reserve Funds are held for the Town
and Beach Village taxing district (two each).

Since the FDIC's 1991 foreclosure of Bank Meridian, there has been no

distribution from recovered assets to make any payment on $10,000 in 1971

bank-construction notes - - despite approval by FDIC of our claim in 1992.

Thus, the current Trustees have written them off, as the town auditor did at the

end of 1998.

TRUSTEES OF THE TRUST FUNDS

John J. Kelley, Sr., Chairman

Robert V. Lessard, Bookkeeper

Jane P. Kelley, Clerk
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USS HAMPTON COMMITTEE REPORT

After months of anticipation, the nuclear attack submarine USS
HAMPTON (SSN 767) returned to the Seacoast for its second namesake visit in

three years. At 1300 hours on Friday 27Aug99, the massive submarine rounded

the final bend in the Piscataqua River and docked at the Portsmouth Navy Yard.

Several Hampton town officials, members of the USS Hampton Committee, and

area dignataries were present to "Welcome Back" the submarine and it's crew.

Proclamations from Governor Jeanne Shaheen and the Town of Hampton were

presented to Captain Mike Matthes.

The crew was officially welcomed back to Hampton soil with a lobster

bake at Tuck Field on Sunday. Kate Pratt, Rockingham County Commissioner

and USS Hampton Committee member led the Pledge of Allegiance. The

Invocation was given by Rev. Debra Knowlton, First Congregatinal Church. My
"Welcome Back" remarks included reading congratulation letters from

Congressman John Sununu and Senator Judd Gregg. Procalamations were

presented by State Senator Beverly Hollingworth and State House

Representative Sheila Francoeur. Town Board of Selectmen Chairman Fred

Rice announced that August 29
th
was now officially USS HAMPTON Day in

Hampton.

The traditional softball game pitting the crew of the sub against the

Hampton Police and Fire Departments followed the meal. In a thrilling fame the

crew, coming back from a five run first inning deficit, won to even the series at

1-1. The Winnacunnet High School basketball team had an easy time with the

crew during a pick-up basketball game. The American Legion Post 35 hosted

the crew for more food and refreshments following the games.

I would like to thank the major sponsors, sponsors in-kind, and donors

for their vital contributions. I also want to thank the Committee, officials,

employees and the citizens of Hampton who donated their time and effort to

make this a successful weekend to remember.

Respectfully submitted,

Edward "Sandy" Buck

Chairman

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Edward "Sandy" Buck, Chairman Walter Connor

Katharin "Kate" Pratt, Vice Chair. Dyana Lassonde

Theresa McGinnis, Secretary/Clerk Kenneth Malcolm

Richard Reniere, Treasurer Dan Nersesian

Doug Aykroyd Mark Ryan
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USS HAMPTON VISIT

Major Sponsors
Fisher Scientific Technologies Foundation-Winthrop, Inc.

Foss Manufacturing Company
Forsley & Eggleston, PA

Whellabrator Technolgy Corp.

Hampton Rotary Club

Sponors In-Kind

American Legion Post 35

Cumberland Farms, Hampton

Seacoast Screen

McDormand's Menswear

First Congregational Church of Hampton

Colt News Store

Bruce Transportation

Hampton Falls Volunteer Fire Dept.

Hampton Playhouse

Peter Tilton Family

Coca-Cola Bottling CO. of Northern N.E.

Galley Hatch Catering

Betty's Kitchen

Smuttynose Brewing Company
Lane Memorial Library

Seacoast Newspapers

Hampton Union

Portsmouth Herald

Atlantic News
Ashworth Hotel

Casino Ballroom

Donors
Michael J. Donahue, CAPT, USNR, JAGC (Ret.)

Hampton Shell Station

Holmes & Ells, PLLC
Hampton Center True Value

Bank of New Hampshire

Tobey & Merrill Insurance

Professional Firefighters of Hampton

Shaines & McEachern, Attorneys

Hampton Police Association

Tom Donaldson



USS HAMPTON VISIT
August 27 - 29, 1999

Top to Bottom: The USS HAMPTON pulling into Portsmouth Harbor;

Commander Matthes being welcomed by "Sandy" Buck, Chairman of the USS
HAMPTON Committee; Members of the Committee at the welcoming

ceremony.
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Top to Bottom: William Sullivan, "Sandy" Buck, Commander Matthes, Fred

Rice and Brian Warburton at a reception for the crew at the Ashworth; cake

donated by Galley Hatch Catering; Many residents enjoyed a lobster bake with

the crew members. (Photos courtesy of Tom Donaldson)
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HIGHWAY SAFETY COMMITTEE

Since 1967, the New Hampshire Highway Safety Agency has assisted

state agencies, cities and towns with the purchase of equipment, funding or

personnel and support of programs related to highway safety. This assistance is

provided through funds which are allocated to the State of New Hampshire by

the National Highway Safety Administration and the Federal Highway

Administration of the US Department of Transportation. However, federal law

requires that these funds be disbursed only to those communities which have an

active Highway Safety Committee.

Therefore, the Hampton Highway Safety Committee plays an important

role in the development of programs designed to benefit all of its citizens. In

order to qualify for funding assistance, our Highway Safety Committee must:

1

.

Be appointed by the Town's governing body;

2. Meet regularly to develop and/or update our community's long-

range highway safety planning'

3. Determine the type of projects we plan to develop that qualify for

funding; and

4. Complete and submit the necessary forms and questionnaires.

The Hampton Highway Safety Committee meets monthly at 1:00 p.m.

on the last Monday of the month in the conference room located on the second

floor of the Town Hall. Acting in an advisory capacity, the Committee is

charged with the responsibility of encouraging, recommending and supporting

highway safety programs to minimize both the occurrence and the severity of

traffic accidents on all streets and highways within the Town of Hampton and to

promote health and economic growth within our community. To this end, the

Committee has advised the Town on a number of matters over the past year,

these include evaluation of a number of plans for proposed subdivisions

forwarded by the Planning Board for review, and numerous inquiries and

requests from private citizens for STOP signs, cautionary signs, parking

restrictions, additional street lighting, etc.. Once received by the Committee,

these requests are evaluated, surveys are performed, and recommendations are

presented to the Board.

The Committee expresses its sincere appreciation to the members of the

Hampton Police Department, Hampton Fire Department and the Department of

Public Works for their assistance in maintaining safe streets and highways for the

citizens of Hampton. Residents are encouraged to submit their request to the

Committee and we welcome the input from anyone interested in helping us

maintain the excellent record that Hampton has for highway safety.

Respectfully submitted,

Alfred I. Greenfeld, Chairman Jane Cameron, Secretary

Robert Ross Dean Ellis

Fred Palazzolo Judith Park

A I Roach
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SCHEDULE OF TOWN BUILDINGS

Municipal structures covered by the New Hampshire Municipal Association -

Property Liability Insurance Trust, Inc.

Total Insured Value

Town Office $ 458,800

Fire Station 477,800

Police Station 562,800

Courthouse 88,000

Locker House 35,000

Lane Library 2,178,700

Grist Mill 18,000

Cemetery Building 58,000

Public Works

Garage and Office $1,306,612

Storage Shed 4,200

Shed 10,000

Shed 3,200

Salt Shed 11,000

Wastewater Treatment Plant:

Secondary Building $1,000,000

Primary Building 300,000

Headworks Building 400,000

Influent Pump Station 166,816

Pump Stat on - Tide Mill Road 413,000

Pump Stat on - Church Street 305,000

Pump Stat on - Falcone Circle 296,000

Pump Stat on - Maplewood Avenue 40,000

Pump Stat on - Merrill Industrial Drive 40,000

Pump Stat on - High Street (West) 40,000

Pump Stat on - High Street (East) 40,000

Pump Stat on - Kings Highway 40,000

Pump Stat on - Vanderpool Drive 40,000

Total: $,373,528
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%%>%% NEW FACES IN TOWN 3€3€3§

We are pleased to introduce the following new Town of Hampton

employees:

\
Candice Colby, Welfare Officer Eleanor Montague, Bldg.

Department, Secretary

Shirley Doheny, Recreation Secretary Kenneth Maple

Asst. Building Inspector
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Dawna Duhamel,

Director of Accounting

Hank Lipe, Fire Chief

Brian P. Chevalier

Fire Alarm Operator

Michael E. Nickerson

Firefighter-EMT-Paramedic
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IN RECOGNITION

The Town of Hampton would like to recognize the

following Town employees who have retired from Town
service this year. The Town of Hampton has been
extremely fortunate to have such loyal, dedicated and
talented employees. They will be missed both

professionally and as friends.

John Chase, Public Works Foreman
Forty-three years of service.

Stephen Bancewicz -Fire Prevention Officer

Twenty-three years of service.

Bruce Philbrick, Firefighter

Twenty years of service

Robert Ross, Public Works Laborer

Eighteen years of service.

Shirley McCormack - Public Works Secretary

Eleven years of service.



1999 WAGES OF TOWN EMPLOYEES

Last Name First Position Reg. Wages O/T Total Wages
Abbott Leon Transfer Station 9,812.10 619.58 10,431.68

Adams John Director of Accounting 32,260.00 32,260.00

Ahams James Police Officer 30,542.40 5,375.90 35,918.30

Aldrich Leonard Cemetery Labor 182.00 182.00

Alford Alice Library Staff 17,310.49 17,310.49

Alonardo John Police Special 6,534.46 1,200.39 7,734.85

Anderson Karen Administrative Asst. 35,082.91 35,082.91

Andreozzi Arleen Town Clerk 40,704.33 40,704.33

Andrews Thomas Fire Alarm Operator 29,304.30 19,190.58 48,494.88

Arakelian Jr John Police Special 3,906.59 2,003.55 5,910.14

Arcieri Stephen Public Works 32,826.21 4,428.67 37,254.88

Arlington Chad Seasonal Laborer 3,807.38 250.62 4,058.00

Aslin Steven Treatment Plant 40,276.47 11,266.44 51,542.91

Baillargeon Jeffrey Firefighter 41,197.51 17,549.99 58,747.50

Bancewicz Stephen Fire Prevention 41,751.54 1,382.31 43,133.85

Barrett Larry Police Officer 39,468.25 8,598.58 48,066.83

Barrington James Town Manager 73,100.56 73,100.56

Barrington Cari Ballot Clerk 115.50 115.50

Barry Richard Police Special 3,402.43 606.10 4,008.53

Bateman Richard Police Special 6,327.12 2,789.09 9,116.21

Bates Scott Police Special 2,871.84 144.75 3,016.59

Beaudoin David Seasonal Laborer 252.00 252.00

Beaudry Lisa Bud. Com. Secretary 510.00 510.00

Becotte Brian Transfer Station 32,756.85 3,534.59 36,291.44

Beliveau Kenneth Laborer 34,282.69 7,631.26 41,913.95

Benotti Steven Fire Lieutenant 46,086.42 13,936.11 60,022.53

Blain Dennis Mechanic 43,837.45 11,170.54 55,007.99

Blais Marcia Payroll Coordinator 30,971.31 30,971.31

Boucher Angela Deputy Assessor 33,218.53 33,218.53

Boudreau Rene Recreation Intern 3,788.00 3,788.00

Bouorieau Clinton Seasonal Laborer 4,410.50 251.96 4,662.46

Bourque William Police Officer 32,566.04 12,254.74 44,820.78

Bowen Kevin Police Special 4,873.60 2,063.69 6,937.29

Bowen Dorothy Ballot Clerk 45.50 45.50

Bowley William Public Works 33,174.46 5,185.74 38,360.20

Boyd Lorraine Parking Lot Labor 3,237.50 3,237.50
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1999 WAGES OF TOWN EMPLOYEES

Bratsos iGary Police Special 5,746.93 140.51 5,887.44

Bridle Russell Firefighter 42,858.42 24,620.31 67,478.73

Bridle Virginia Selectman 3,500.00 3,500.00

Brillard Michael Firefighter 39,791.44 16,768.76 56,560.20

Brooks Roland Police Special 4,041.32 473.15 4,514.47

Brown Glenna Tax Collector's Office 798.00 798.00

Bryan jWilliam Parking Lot Labor 769.50 769.50

Bucknam Kelly Library Staff 1,719.85 1,719.85

Budroe Edward Police Special 6,096.73 5,126.25 11,222.98

Burke John Public Works 36,770.47 4,808.52 41,578.99

Burke Paul Seasonal Laborer 5,737.88 5,737.88

Cameron Mark Laborer 16,944.00 267.77 17,211.77

Carliell jCharlene Library Staff 6,411.25 6,411.25

Carter iCherri Recreation Secretary 2,517.99 2,517.99

Caruso Mauro Police Special 4,344.64 281.01 4,625.65

Champey Stephen Police Officer 7,914.21 1,288.11 9,202.32

Chapman Barbara Library Staff 14,786.04 14,786.04

Charette Robert Code Enforcement Offi 20,108.40 20,108.40

Charleston Lynne Detective 42,389.33 9,185.83 51,575.16

Chase Jr. John Public Works 35,049.45 33.63 35,083.08

Chevalier Brian Fire Alarm Operator 12,604.74 4,242.53 16,847.27

Chingros Basil Police Special 3,665.66 813.13 4,478.79

Chisholm (Charles Laborer 10,120.09 596.85 10,716.94

Chouinard
\
Anthony Deputy Fire Chief 64,596.34 64,596.34

Clapham Ronald Police Special 509.52 509.52

Clark Matthew Firefighter 43,567.62 8,977.03 52,544.65

Coates Robert Laborer 24,104.69 3,402.51 27,507.20

Cobb Mark Call Firefighter 625.63 625.63

Colby Candice Welfare Clerk 12,352.70 12,352.70

Collins Roland Police Special 2,790.78 737.60 3,528.38

Collins Timothy Police Officer 16,362.74 6,153.32 22,516.06

Collins Cornlius Seasonal Laborer 2,929.14 2,929.14

Connolly Christopher Ballot Clerk 15.75 15.75

Connolly Gayle Ballot Clerk 59.50 59.50

Cooper Richard Emerg. Medical Officer 52,658.08 2,600.75 55,258.83

Cooper Christine Ballot Clerk 101.50 101.50

Correll James Firefighter 25,011.42 5,591.53 30,602.95 J
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1999 WAGES OF TOWN EMPLOYEES

Costa Jamie Police Special 5,822.97 2,254.21 8,077.18

Cotter Patrick Call Firefighter 467.50 467.50

Cray Matthew Firefighter 36,362.37 14,656.88 51,019.25

Cronin William Police Officer 32,837.53 16,936.51 49,774.04

Cross John Police Special 3,539.70 784.89 4,324.59

Crotts Timothy Police Captain 59,364.68 59,364.68

Cullinane Jeffrey Program Instructor 519.12 519.12

Cutting Justin Firefighter 37,379.84 18,278.74 55,658.58

Dalton Timothy Laborer 32,110.82 2,338.81 34,449.63

Dearborn Tammy Recreation 1,153.25 1,153.25

DeFelice Brenda Program Coordinator 25,230.41 25,230.41

DelGreco Michael Police Special 3,888.38 319.16 4,207.54

Demeritt Danielle Recreation 2,054.34 2,054.34

Denio Nathan Call Firefighter 1,182.13 1,182.13

Denio Adam Seasonal Laborer 1,980.01 71.16 2,051.17

Dennett Margaret Ballot Clerk 138.25 138.25

Derosiers Robert Laborer 33,153.95 4,448.58 37,602.53

Doheny Shirley Recreation Secretary 16,327.08 16,327.08

Dolan Anne Ballot Clerk 45.50 45.50

Donaldson John Police Special 8,768.31 3,906.14 12,674.45

Dowd Patrick Seasonal Laborer 2,772.00 77.35 2,849.35

Downer Lea Ballot Clerk 63.00 63.00

Downing Jennifer Recreation 2,331.00 2,331.00

Dube Richard Police Special 2,289.95 185.28 2,475.23

Dube Michael Laborer 30,486.01 2,636.42 33,122.43

Dubois Judith Ballot Clerk 1,000.00 1,000.00

Duhamel Dawn Director of Accounting 28,901.74 28,901.74

Eaton Charles Police Special 450.35 450.35

Eldridge Tobi Laborer 31,233.80 2,695.90 33,929.70

Emery John Cemetery Labor 4,197.61 4,197.61

Esposito Margaret Secretary 23,302.93 23,302.93

Estey Robert Assessor 64,451.10 64,451.10

Estey Frederick Cemetery Labor 4,197.61 4,197.61

Evans Tom Call Firefighter 591.51 591.51

Felch Donald Firefighter 39,964.04 16,077.61 56,041.65

Fenlon Todd Police Special 5,388.46 1,719.18 7,107.64

Fetzner Robert Police Special 3,475.84 631.68 4,107.52



1999 WAGES OF TOWN EMPLOYEES

Fincher John Police Lieutenant 55,080.16 3,892.84 58,973.00

Fugere Michelle Police Special 10,685.95 5,135.05 15,821.00

Galvin Joseph Police Sergeant 45,588.32 25,646.49 71,234.81

Galvin John Police Sergeant 49,008.92 26,036.42 75,045.34

Galvin Timothy Police Officer 43,079.12 5,741.85 48,820.97

Gannon Sean Firefighter 35,623.75 16,944.64 52,568.39

Gaudet Robert Police Special 9,549.50 2,547.07 12,096.57

Gay William Custodian 28,183.84 416.85 28,600.69

Genova Maura Parking Lot Labor 1 ,470.60 1,470.60

Gidley Daniel Police Officer 39,976.11 30,007.11 69,983.22

Gillick Dennis Call Firefighter 2,196.51 2,196.51

Gillick William Parking Lot Labor 1,338.00 1 ,338.00

Gillis Frederick Recreation 1,851.50 1,851.50

Gladkowski Andrea Recreation 1,910.61 1,910.61

Golden Kenneth Seasonal Laborer 5,290.31 321.75 5,612.06

Goldsmith Melissa Recreation 2,029.62 2,029.62

Goodwin Jack Firefighter 52,658.14 9,945.12 62,603.26

Goodwin John Call Firefighter 34.13 34.13

Goryl Scott Recreation 1,944.00 1,944.00

Goss Jean Ballot Clerk 45.50 45.50

Gram Robert Seasonal Laborer 143.78 143.78

Grant Health Seasonal Laborer 9,347.25 640.41 9,987.66

Gregory Brian Parking Lot Labor 3,444.00 3,444.00

Gregory Christine Parking Lot Labor 929.10 929.10

Gudaitis Thomas Police Officer 40,967.84 17,647.24 58,615.08

Gurick George Police Special 4,155.31 554.05 4,709.36

Haggart Scott Police Special 3,920.37 55.10 3,975.47

Hall Marie Secretary 30,990.80 635.52 31,626.32

Hamilton Brian Police Special 2,996.80 220.96 3,217.76
|

Hamlen Timothy Police Officer 25,787.37 12,125.36 37,912.73

Hangen John Public Works Director 66,930.53 66,930.53

Hanglin Kevin Recreation 2,831.71 2,831.71

Hardardt Forrest Call Firefighter 1 ,440.26 1,440.26

Harrington Arthur Police Special 6,278.72 943.55 7,222.27

Healey Kenneth Police Special 1,007.46 318.45 1,325.91

Heaslip Ruth Ballot Clerk 87.50 87.50

Hedman Michael Laborer 33,700.61 3,551.82 37,252.43
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1999 WAGES OF TOWN EMPLOYEES

Heiman Kelly Recreation 1 ,472.58 1 ,472.58

Heiman 1 Robert Recreation 94.05 94.05

Henderson [Steven Police Officer 43,403.50 14,635.91 58,039.41

Hersey David Seasonal Laborer 1,895.44 21.65 1,917.09

Hess Marcia Secretary 31,383.49 31,383.49

Hobbs Jr. David Police Special 5,427.35 2,164.39 7,591.74

Hogan Ann Recreation Instructor 944.10 944.10

Houston Darrel Laborer 33,510.38 1,107.27 34,617.65

Imbracsio Jr. Leonard Police Special 8,202.67 3,253.55 11,456.22

James George Firefighter 42,897.95 13,541.69 56,439.64

Janetos Dona Ballot Clerk 175.00 175.00

Jautaikis Steven Call Firefighter 2,003.76 2,003.76

Jones Joseph Police Officer 6,639.25 5,563.62 12,202.87

Jones Alan Public Works 36,421.28 1,664.49 38,085.77

Jowett Andrew Police Officer 38,604.50 19,485.46 58,089.96

Joyce John Police Special 9,186.27 2,313.59 11,499.86

Kaiser Ann Recreation Secretary 124.18 124.18

Kalil David Police Special 5,129.68 725.74 5,855.42

Kapelos Karen Recreation Instructor 2,628.63 2,628.63

Karmen Christine Police Special 3,812.45 543.25 4,355.70

Karmen III John Firefighter 43,867.70 15,204.31 59,072.01

Karpenko Jr. Charles Police Special 6,740.02 1 ,629.04 8,369.06

Kaye Denis Seasonal Laborer 800.25 800.25

Keefe Michael Laborer 37,415.84 3,341.79 40,757.63

Keefe Jean Library Staff 32,931.72 32,931.72

Keefe Daleyn Ballot Clerk 43.75 43.75

Kelly Kevin Asst. Building Inspector 9,833.83 9,833.83

Kennedy William Firefighter 43,867.70 15,607.28 59,474.98

Kenney Daniel Cemetery Superintende 29,452.43 29,452.43

Kent Sandra Library Staff 7,760.27 7,760.27

Kerber Timothy Police Officer 32,246.96 17,239.50 49,486.46

Kilroy Denis Ballot Clerk 133.00 133.00

Klish Justin Seasonal Laborer 5,323.32 374.36 5,697.68

Knowles Franklin Police Officer 51,863.68 14,100.63 65,964.31

Knowles Bridgette Seasonal Laborer 1,560.56 1,560.56

Kotkowski Sean Recreation 3,739.31 3,739.31

LaDuke Allen Laborer 36,477.21 3,805.35 40,282.56
I
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1999 WAGES OF TOWN EMPLOYEES

Lajoie Jason Call Firefighter 249.63 249.63

Lally William Police Officer 55,443.55 5,561.16 61,004.71

Lally Frederick Parking Lot Labor 4,123.00 4,123.00

Lamie Jennifer Police Dispatcher 30,807.58 786.99 31,594.57

Lang Jr. David Firefighter 43,659.66 14,445.67 58,105.33

Larivee Guy Firefighter 52,690.69 17,724.77 70,415.46

Larivee Davina Town Clerk Assistant 5,737.13 5,737.13

Lassonde Dyana Recreation Director 36,042.39 36,042.39

Laudansky Peter Parking Lot Labor 1,631.25 1,631.25

Lavin Ellen Treasurer 14,313.42 14,313.42

Lavoie Mark Treatment Plant 48,711.75 4,846.49 53,558.24

LeDuc Jeffrey Firefighter 34,848.74 13,776.64 48,625.38

LeFavour Richard Call Firefighter 972.13 972.13

Lemoine Kevin Firefighter 41,168.84 5,921.93 47,090.77

Lessard Dorothy Ballot Clerk 66.50 66.50

Lessard Paul Ballot Clerk 178.50 178.50

Levin Liza Police Special 355.66 136.31 491.97

Lilly Donald Recreation 2,292.78 2,292.78

Linane Thomas Police Officer 39,955.27 3,243.64 43,198.91

Linane Alfred Police Special 3,796.39 816.32 4,612.71

Lipe III Henry Fire Chief 50,712.89 50,712.89

Lundahl Leslie Recreation 415.00 415.00

MacDonald Corey Police Special 6,436.87 2,501.78 8,938.65

MacDonald Charlene Recreation Instructor 432.00 432.00

Mackinnon Peter Animal Control Officer 32,923.71 4,743.96 37,667.67

Maietta Michael Police Special 7,781.85 11,687.57 19,469.42

Maloney Shawn Police Officer 51,913.40 10,433.88 62,347.28

Manning Matthew Seasonal Laborer 792.00 792.00

Manning Janice Deputy Tax Collector 15,534.93 15,534.93

Maple Kenneth Asst. Building Inspectoi 17,156.20 17,156.20

Martin Anthony Seasonal Laborer 2,664.56 70.88 2,735.44

Masker Brian Police Special 1,893.33 3,989.61 5,882.94

Mason Al Recreation Maint. 8,049.88 8,049.88

Mastin Cindy-Sue Secretary 30,234.58 76.33 30,310.91

Mattson David Firefighter 44,687.29 15,668.50 60,355.79

McAtavey Michael Seasonal Laborer 132.00 132.00

McAteer Richard Recreation Instructor 1,030.20 1,030.20
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1999 WAGES OF TOWN EMPLOYEES

McCall Shane Seasonal Laborer 2,318.21 2,318.21

McClelland Frederick Parking Lot Labor 2,842.00 2,842.00

McCormack Shirley Public Works Secretary 38,888.76 540.10 39,428.86

McDonald Scott Fire Inspector 50,344.16 5,137.37 55,481.53

McEachern Mary-Eilee Ballot Clerk 98.00 98.00

McGann Paul Police Lieutenant 55,498.47 5,571.18 61,069.65

McGinnis Theresa Asst. To Op. Manager 40,522.75 3,161.77 43,684.52

McGowan Diane Parking Lot Labor 2,910.00 2,910.00

McGowen Thomas Parking Lot Supervisor 9,600.00 9,600.00

McHugh Joseph Parking Lot Labor 924.00 924.00

Mclnerney Michael Seasonal Laborer 4,401.38 420.75 4,822.13

McKenna James Recreation Instructor 3,477.01 3,477.01

McMahon Michael Firefighter 38,009.04 21,016.77 59,025.81

McNally Steven Recreation Maint. 5,739.03 5,739.03

McNamara David Seasonal Laborer 342.00 342.00

McRobbie III Charles Police Special 2,941.32 3,453.74 6,395.06

Mellin Douglas Operation Manager 62,237.85 62,237.85

Menk Robert Library Staff 41,714.58 41,714.58

Merrill Ada Ballot Clerk 42.00 42.00

Merrill Jonathan Cemetery Labor 623.75 623.75

Miller Lynda Library Staff 2,401.08 2,401.08

Milton Christophe Police Dispatcher 25,248.47 4,826.25 30,074.72

Mission Karen Building Dept. Secretar 17,216.49 17,216.49

Montague Eleanor Building Dept. Secretar 1 ,874.05 1,874.05

Moore Betty Ballot Clerk 1,000.00 1,000.00

Moran Jan Ballot Clerk 103.25 103.25

Moulton Sylvia Tax Collector's Office 488.00 488.00

Mowry Arleen Assessing Assistant 14,565.45 14,565.45

Mulcahy James Seasonal Laborer 2,662.76 2,662.76

Mulready Joanne Library Staff 19,503.12 19,503.12

Munday Ronald Laborer 41,842.39 6,131.89 47,974.28

Murray Sean Firefighter 38,486.46 18,904.87 57,391.33

Murray William Call Firefighter 308.50 308.50

Murray William Fire Alarm Operator 30,730.11 25,725.10 56,455.21

Muxie Daniel Recreation Instructor 3,201.66 3,201.66

Newcomb Barry Police Officer 32,241.40 8,448.83 40,690.23

Newman Jason Recreation 5,168.10 5,168.10
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1999 WAGES OF TOWN EMPLOYEES

Nickerson Michael Firefighter 1 1 ,021 .03 4,103.39 15,124.42

Nickerson Russell Laborer 32,566.28 1,400.82 33,967.10

Norris Matthew Recreation 603.75 603.75

Norton James Public Works 41 ,930.78 4,272.75 46,203.53

Noyes Randall Transfer Station 39,670.52 4,495.21 44,165.73

Noyes Debra Ballot Clerk 66.50 66.50

O'Brien John Carpenter 36,156.71 1,486.99 37,643.70

Ouellette Mark Firefighter 42,858.40 17,190.49 60,048.89

Ouellette Michelle Recreation 250.00 250.00

Ouellette Donna Ballot Clerk 45.50 45.50

Outwater Robert Police Special 2,692.35 57.90 2,750.25

Owens Noreen Bud. Com. Secretary 1 ,275.00 1,275.00

Page Nathan Ballot Clerk 105.00 105.00

Palmisano Anthony Police Special 780.18 520.08 1 ,300.26

Papsedero Joseph Police Officer 22,018.96 6,845.66 28,864.62

Patton James Police Officer 41,631.26 12,191.25 53,822.51

Pelletier Michael Cemetery Labor 140.00 140.00

Perenick Andrew Police Officer 31 ,974.20 12,362.64 44,336.84

Perkins Janet Planning Bd. Secretary 6,054.25 6,054.25

Petit Carolyn Police Dispatcher 30,175.21 2,354.81 32,530.02 I

Philbrick Bruce Firefighter 54,458.71 9,654.44 64,113.15

Pierce Ronald Cemetery Labor 1,915.95 1,915.95

Piatt Jr. James Police Dispatcher 2,248.59 2,248.59

Pleshaw Rebecca Bldg. Dept. Secretary 696.50 696.50

Plouffe Michael Selectman 875.00 875.00

Plouffe Sharron Ballot Clerk 70.00 70.00

Plummer Jane Fire Chief's Secretary 36,883.02 36,883.02

Poliquin Betty Deputy Town Clerk 24,201.34 24,201.34

Poliquin Jr. Lawrence Ballot Clerk 35.00 35.00

Polychronis Donna Recreation Instructor 1 ,676.35 1,676.35

Pomeroy Maureen Police Special 2,384.86 989.77 3,374.63

Portiello Heather Special Officer 4,056.00 4,056.00

Pray David Firefighter 28,351.59 1 ,793.37 30,144.96

Preston Charlotte Sup. Checklist 1,100.00 1,100.00

Price Isaac Seasonal Laborer 5,544.01 5,544.01

Pulliam Kristi Accounting 10,187.55 10,187.55

Quadros Gary Police Special 3,259.77 92.64 3,352.41
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1999 WAGES OF TOWN EMPLOYEES

Quinn Christophe Police Special 3,310.50 792.14 4,102.64

Raynes Felicia Recreation 4,691.50 4,691.50

Redden Catherine Library Director 48,925.49 48,925.49

Regan Robert Firefighter 52,658.14 19,418.10 72,076.24

Rembisz Keith Police Special 3,826.71 1 ,472.73 5,299.44

Rice Frederick Selectman 3,500.00 3,500.00

Ring Wendell Cemetery Labor 6,358.63 6,358.63

Roach Alan Police Officer 41,851.55 5,517.82 47,369.37

Roggenkamp Tiffany Recreation 2,360.31 2,360.31

Ross Robert Public Works 53,865.53 6,331.65 60,197.18

Royal Dennis Police Special 2,831.76 61.56 2,893.32

Ruel Joanne ZBA Secretary 780.00 780.00

Ruonala Frederick Police Dispatcher 29,946.62 13,006.79 42,953.41

Russell Philip Detective 44,058.42 28,018.59 72,077.01

Russell James Seasonal Laborer 5,587.52 32.25 5,619.77

Ryan Daniel Police Special 5,252.65 1,002.46 6,255.11

Ryan Mark Call Firefighter 1,781.76 1,781.76

Ryan Michael Treatment Plant 34,620.51 2,249.42 36,869.93

Ryan Karen Library Staff 9,511.81 9,511.81

Ryan Theresa Ballot Clerk 140.00 140.00

Rycerz Anna Ballot Clerk 80.50 80.50

Santin Peter Police Special 4,189.97 1,665.08 5,855.05

Sawyer Richard Police Officer 32,179.51 15,261.76 47,441.27

Sawyer Richard W Call Firefighter 1,431.50 1,431.50

Schultz Kevin Asst. Building Inspectoi 2,620.81 2,620.81

Seamans Charles Public Works 36,869.93 2,411.14 39,281.07

Searle Bonnie Selectman 3,500.00 3,500.00

Sharpe Ryan Laborer 28,842.03 3,098.17 31,940.20

Sheehan Raymond Ballot Clerk 113.75 113.75

Sheehan Joyce Tax Collector 35,001.67 35,001.67

Sheffert Kenneth Cemetery Labor 31.80 31.80

Silver Christophe Firefighter 44,737.93 12,216.75 56,954.68

Skumin John Parking Lot Labor 1 ,550.00 1,550.00

Snow John Public Works 37,063.11 2,984.31 40,047.42

Spainhower David Treatment Plant 44,853.45 6,923.91 51,777.36

Sparkes Jr. Robert Police Special 5,007.51 348.48 5,355.99

St.Louis Anthony Firefighter 42,238.16 15,880.98 58,119.14
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Stevens Rhonda Police Dispatcher 2,719.95 2,719.95

Stevens John Firefighter 41,157.61 15,367.40 56,525.01

Stickney Elizabeth Ballot Clerk 82.25 82.25

Stockbridge Kristin Recreation 2,264.50 2,264.50

Stoessel Laura Police Officer 42,879.64 3,526.86 46,406.50

Straight Joanne Library Staff 28,804.18 28,804.18

Sullivan James Police Captain 59,364.67 59,364.67

Sullivan Paul Police Special 7,525.71 607.92 8,133.63

Sullivan William Fire Chief 25,148.48 25,148.48

Sullivan William Selectman 2,625.00 2,625.00

Summerlin Sarah Recreation 425.00 425.00

Surgue Phyllis Ballot Clerk 66.50 66.50

Swift Frank Highway Foreman 44,767.19 8,105.46 52,872.65

Syphers Roger Recreation 885.60 885.60

Tapper Joan Ballot Clerk 45.50 45.50

Teschek William Asst. Library Director 44,986.55 44,986.55

Thibeault Donald Firefighter 14,443.41 4,395.65 18,839.06

Thompson Jr Robert Firefighter 42,061.04 15,800.99 57,862.03

Tilton Peter Public Works 3,322.48 3,322.48

Torosian Edwin Mechanic 5,557.75 5,557.75

Tousgnant Steven Police Special 4,702.52 3,336.89 8,039.41

True Jonathan Fire Prevention 42,103.79 14,063.85 56,167.64

Towler Robert Police Sergeant 51,909.32 31,919.47 83,828.79

Trofatter Dorothy Tax Collector's Office 644.00 644.00

Turner Edward Seasonal Laborer 1 ,245.75 111.38 1,357.13

Twomey Mary Library Staff 6,191.99 6,191.99

Vaughan Timothy Police Special 3,960.25 209.38 4,169.63

Vetter Beverly Children's Librarian 35,019.95 35,019.95

Vincent Daniel Building Inspector 41,154.34 41,154.34

Violette Richard Grease Trap Inspector 10,463.15 205.02 10,668.17

Wagner Frank Ballot Clerk 148.75 148.75

Waitt Judith Fire Alarm Operator 8,600.46 1,668.34 10,268.80

Walker Robert Public Works Foreman 41,946.14 4,524.74 46,470.88

Walker Elizabeth Ballot Clerk 113.75 113.75

Warburton Brian Selectman 3,500.00 3,500.00

Wardle Margaret Ballot Clerk 66.50 66.50

Way Claire Ballot Clerk 66.50 66.50
j
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Weber Michael Police Special 4,886.76 1,885.77 6,772.53

Weber David Firefighter 42,858.40 21,189.53 64,047.93

Weinhold William Police Special 5,945.21 435.02 6,380.23

Welsh William Firefighter 52,337.09 22,883.75 75,220.84

White Angelus Ballot Clerk 66.50 66.50

Whitney Eleanor Bookkeeper/Cemetery 2,229.00 2,229.00

Wholey John Ballot Clerk 232.75 232.75

Wilbur Stephen Laborer 37,511.20 3,229.19 40,740.39

Willey Cory Seasonal Laborer 4,757.88 570.57 5,328.45

Williams Martha Ballot Clerk 190.75 190.75

Williams Joyce Bookkeeper/Clerk's Off 30,390.82 30,390.82

Wiser Brian Firefighter 39,964.05 17,825.19 57,789.24

Wrenn William Police Chief 73,129.12 73,129.12

Wright Rosanna Ballot Clerk 108.50 108.50

Wright Kathleen Accounting 29,458.76 29,458.76

Yarrison Bret Seasonal Laborer 3,215.44 3,215.44

Young John Police Special 3,896.52 434.25 4,330.77
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Several fires occurred during 1999, with remarkable efforts put in by the

Hampton Fire Department and departments from surrounding towns. Top: A 5

alarm fire in three multi-story buildings at K Street and Ocean Boulevard "The

Old Salt" block, June 16, 1999; Middle: 3 Alarm fire in residnetial structure on

Exeter Road, 1 1/25/99; Bottom: 4 Alarm fire in 10-unit apartment complex on B
Street.
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TOWN CLERK'S REPORT

With the end of 1999, we celebrate a new beginning! Our celebration

began early with the move into our new offices. We left an old building behind

but literally took all of Hampton's history with us. Volume after volume of town

historical records were packed up and transported. From the carefully preserved

records of the first settlers in 1638, to the newest files of the births and marriages

of today, all were safely relocated to the new vault. We spent the next several

weeks working around the chaos, but as we got organized we started to

appreciate our new surroundings.

Last year was the final year for the old green and white license plates.

Beginning in January we issued the new style plates, as registrations were

renewed. It was hectic at times, and not without its frustrations, but there was a

lighter side too. One such time was when a call came from a very annoyed

registrant who, stated "I just got my plates and they are defective, they only have

five numbers and I've noticed that everyone else has six." All in all, the new

plate issue went smoothly and by the year's end we registered more than 20,000

vehicles and distributed 40,000 plates. This year we're back to the old system of

decals only. The state is no longer providing mailing envelopes so remember to

send a self addressed stamped envelope with your renewal form.

We will continue to register boats at our office. The state is currently

working on new forms, and promises to forward the new ones to us in plenty of

time for the boating season. These registrations must be signed by the boat

owner so all boats must be registered in person.

As the election and voting period begins we remember Howard Noyes.

Howie passed away last year. He was familiar face here and a willing volunteer

delivering absentee ballots during election. He is missed by all of us.

A special thanks to Betty Poliquin, Joyce Williams and Davina Larivee

for their dedication and efficiency in making this year go so smoothly, and my
continued thanks to the residents of Hampton for making our job so pleasant.

Respectfully submitted,

Arleen E. Andreozzi, Town Clerk

Motor Vehicle Permits Issued: $2,224,399.00

Title Applications: 8,006.00

Agent Fee Vehicle Transactions: 45,514.50

Dog License - Town Portion: 4,754.00
- State Portion: 2,398.50

U.C.C. Tranactions: 8,049.88

Vital Statistics - Town Portion: 2,507.00
- State Portion: 7,961.00

Boat Registrations 6,849.06

Miscellaneous: 6,130.10
*Some figures were not available at time of Publication.

TOTAL $2,316,569.04
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BIRTHS TO HAMPTON RESIDENTS IN 1999

Child's Name Date Place Of
Birth

Father's Name Mother's Name

Gasperoni, Charles 01-01-99 Exeter Gasperoni, Jeffrey Gasperoni, Kelly

Rahn, Jake W. 01-04-99 Portsmouth Rahn, Craig Rahn, Deborah

Cooney, Matthew 01-10-99 Exeter Cooney, Gregory Cooney, Kathy

George, Jacqueline 01-17-99 Portsmouth George, Patrick George, Nicole

Nicholas, Jake T. 01-22-99 Exeter Nicholas,Christopher Nicholas, Robin

Schaake, Frederick 01-27-99 Exeter Schaake, Fred Schaake Leah

Biron, Jeffrey T. 01-29-99 Portsmouth Biron, Thomas Biron Debra

DomingOS, Isabelle Healy 02-03-99 Portsmouth Domingos, Frank Domingos, Christine

Stiles, Madison Rose 02-05-99 Exeter Stiles, Richard Stiles, Deborah

Boucher, Danielle Elise 02-09-99 Portsmouth Boucher, Donald Boucher, Sheila

Dumond, Lindsey M. 02-26-99 Exeter Dumond, Robert Dumond, Laurie

Gee, Kyle Esteban 03-05-99 Exeter Gee, Steven Gee, Mary

Fenton, Cara Elizabeth 03-06-99 Exeter Fenton, Stephen Walker-Fenton, Jane

McDaniel, Bailey B. 03-06-99 Portsmouth McDaniel, Justin McDaniel, Julie

Arsenault, Kelly Anne 03-07-99 Portsmouth Arsenault, Robert Arsenault, Ellen

Craig, Tatiana Inge 03-09-99 Portsmouth Craig, Steven Craig, Deborah

Cutler, Cameron Patrick 03-17-99 Exeter Cutler, Lawrence Cutler, Mary
McCarthy. Elizabeth M. 03-22-99 Portsmouth McCarthy, Brian Keenan-McCarthy, J

Willett, Nikolai Robert 03-22-99 Portsmouth Willett, Eric Willett, Margaret

Pender, Maxwell Stone 03-23-99 Portsmouth Pender, Daniel Pender, Jacqueline

Savage, Schyler Ann 03-29-99 Portsmouth Savage, Jon Savage, Judith

Murray, Connor Griffin 03-31-99 Exeter Murray, David Murray, Anne

Kennedy, Erin Elizabeth 04-19-99 Portsmouth Kennedy, John Kennedy, Donna

Peirson, Timothy Edward 04-22-99 Exeter Peirson, Neil Peirson, Deborth

Cummings, Cody Ryan 04-24-99 Portsmouth Cummings, James Plaisted, Michelle

Kacmarcik, Meaghan 04-25-99 Exeter Kacmarcik, Robert Kacmarcik, Trade

Fitzgerald, Olivia Lee 04-25-99 Exeter Fitzgerald, Benjamin Fitzgerald, Laura

Booth, Jacob Robert 04-25-99 Exeter Booth, Robert Booth, Marcy

Birmbas, Alex John 04-26-99 Salem, MA Birmbas, John Birmbas, Debra

Collins, Caitryn Gabrielle 04-28-99 Exeter Collins, Michael Collins, Monica

Belanger-Shaw, Isaac A. 05-02-99 Portsmouth Belanger, Monroe Shaw, Tonwya
Kennedy, Colleen Rose 05-04-99 Exeter Kennedy, David Kennedy, Maureen

Holihan, Kylic Elizabeth 05-06-99 Boston, MA Holihan, Jeffrey Holihan, Grace

Lawlor, Alexandra C. 05-09-99 Newbuiyport Lawlor, Michael Lawlor, Jodie

Burgon, Amanda Kate 05-11-99 Portsmouth Burgon, Eric Burgon, Karen
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Childs Name Date Place Father Mother

Fratto, Nicholas Richard 05-14-99 Newburyport Fratto, Mark Fratto,Lisa

Nastasia, Erica Jordan 05-14-99 Exeter Nastasia, Matthew Nastasia, Elizabeth

Langton, Rebecca Morgan 05-15-99 Portsmouth Langton, Steven Langton, Jamie

Aliouche, Tesa Cielle 05-17-99 Exeter Aliouche, El-hachemi Aliouche, Christine

Gray, Noah John 05-17-99 Exeter Gray, Mark Gray, Lee

Jautaikis, Brian Daniel 05-19-99 Exeter Jautaikis, Steven Jautaikis, Nicole

Valencia, Emma Rose 05-21-99 Portsmouth Valencia, Ricardo Baptiste, Mary

Cicale, Sarah Margaret 05-21-99 Exeter Cicale, Michael Cicale, Dianna

Chouinard, Elise Nicole 05-24-99 Exeter Chouinard, Robert Chouinard, Camie

Whicker, Briana Haley 05-25-99 Portsmouth Whicker, Brian Whicker, Heidi

Viselli, Trina Jean Marie 05-27-99 Exeter Viselli, Robert Viselli, Lisa

Bessemer, Olivia Ann 05-29-99 Portsmouth McCarthy, Daniel Bessemer, Beth

Lamprey, Michael Morris 05-29-99 Exeter Lamprey, Douglas Lamprey, Joanne

Christiansen, Jacob J. 06-04-99 Portsmouth Christiansen,Jonathan Christiansen, Marisa

Rage, Anthony Charles 06-06-99 Exeter Rage, Charles Rage, Jackie

Smith, Adam Francis 06-07-99 Exeter Smith,Edward Smith, Margorie

Waye, Zachary Ryan 06-13-99 Lebanon Waye, Joshua Waye,Roseann

Potter, John Robert 06-18-99 Portsmouth Potter, James Potter, Nancy

Batchelder, Natalie Rose 06-22-99 Portsmouth Batchelder,William Batchelder,Jennifer

Plaisted, Dylan Scott 06-22-99 Exeter Plaisted, Scott Plaisted, Pamela

Sisson, Allan Gilbert 06-24-99 Portsmouth Sisson, Allan Cormier, Rachael

Scibisz, Krista Marie 06-26-99 Portsmouth Scibisz, John Scibisz, Meredith

Muglio, Joseph Robert 07-02-99 Exeter Muglio, Robert Muglio, Kristen

Joiner, Joseph David 07-03-99 Exeter Joiner, Glenn Joiner, Sheila

Wilkinson, Hannah Marie 07-05-99 Exeter Wilkinson, Tod Wilkinson, Renee

Guida, Jack Odin 07-20-99 Portsmouth Guida, Richard Shaw, Kathleen

Hammond, Ryan Doyle 07-23-99 Portsmouth Hammond, Craig Hammond, Lisa

Pierce, Abigail Faith 07-28-99 Portsmouth Pierce, Donald Sowan, Tracey

La Rosa,Alexandra Isabel 07-29-99 Portsmouth La Rosa, Joseph La Rosa Dorothy

Haas, Curtis Murphy 07-29-99 Portsmouth Haas, Paul Haas, Karen

Cady, Anna Bradford 08-02-99 Portsmouth Cady, Eric Cady, Christen

Dzialo, Meghan Suzanne 08-03-99 Portsmouth Dzialo, Michael Dzialo, Lindsay

Lauder, Faith Elizabeth 08-03-99 Lebanon Lauder, Ralph Lauder Erin

Grella, Joseph Anthony 08-04-99 Exeter Grella, John Grella, Cheryl

Rulli, Brent John 08-06-99 Exeter Rulli , John Rulli, Holly

Eames, Allison Elizabeth 08-12-99 Exeter Eames, Kevin Eames, Bettina

Ricardo, Nicole A. 08-24-99 Exeter Ricardo, Richard Ricardo, Wanda

Considine, Lauren Ashley 08-26-99 Portsmouth Considine, Joseph Considine, Vivian
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Childs Name Date Place Father Mother

Perroni, Tyler David 09-05-99 Exeter Perroni, David Perroni, Maureen

Laluna, Jake Thomas 09-08-99 Exeter Laluna , Barry Laluna, Roberta

Newman,Christopher E. 09-13-99 Exeter Newman, Michael Newman Lisa

O'Brien, Kailee Marie 09-16-99 Exeter O'Brien, Thomas O'Brien, Laura

Vogel, Jessica Kathleen 09-17-99 Exeter Vogel, Paul Vogel, Justine

Ryan, Joshua David W 09-17-99 Exeter Ryan, James Ryan, Susan

Fletcher, Emily Rose 09-22-99 Exeter Fletcher, Daniel Fletcher, Jennifer

Grover, Anik 09-24-99 Exeter Grover, Manish Narang, Jyoti
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TOWN OF HAMPTON
Resident Marriage Report

1999

Groom's Name Groom's
Residence

Bride's Name Bride's

Residence

Place of

Marriage

Date

Judkins, Raymond H. Hampton Flynn, Susan F. Hampton Hampton 01-23-99

Boice, Eric E. Hampton Hughes, Amber E. Hampton Hampton 01-29-99

Mailhoit, Bruce W. Hampton Beaulieu, Jenna E. Hampton Hampton 02-06-99

Neider, Michael P. Hampton DeBarros Antonia Everett,MA Newton 02-14-99

Ciesluk, John Z. Hampton Bobola, Debra A. Hampton Hampton 02-14-99

Marsden, Milon C. Hampton Mercurio,Winifred Hampton Seabrook 02-22-99

Laurritsen, Joseph P. Portsmouth Bowley, Wanda J. Hampton Exeter 02-28-99

Ross, Robert W. Epping Mulready, Patricia Hampton Fremont 03-17-99

Ceberek, Thomas W. Hampton Cunningham, Debora Hampton Newmarket 04-03-99

Difeo, Robert A. Hampton Everett, Teresa A. Hollywd FL Hampton 04-12-99

Chambers, Peter A. Hampton Mombrun,Claudette Amsbry, MA Rye 04-17-99

Seabrooke,Theodore Hampton Lebarge, Jennifer A. Portsmouth Rye 04-17-99

McGary, Carl R. Hampton Fortier, Cheryl A. Hampton Hampton 04-18-99

Pennewaert, Brian M. J^ampton Toplak, Dawn L. Epping Fremont 04-24-99

Warner, Douglas D. Benton,ME St Germain,Marianne Hampton Hampton 04-24-99

Lovering,Kenneth M. Hampton Cross, Mary K. Newmarket N.Hampton 04-24-99

Lassey, Peter J. Wolfeboro McDonald Lisa J. Hampton Portsmouth 04-24-99

Paul, Daniel P. Hampton George, Suzanne E. Dover Portsmouth 04-25-99

Rulli, John C. Hampton Stillson, Holly A. Hampton Hampton 04-25-99

Lauder, Ralph S. Mass. Lividoti, Erin L. Hampton Hampton 04-29-99

Trempe, Aaron P. Hampton Kent, Michelle L. Hampton Pittsfield 05-02-99

Kleven, Robert Hampton Conway, Gloria M. Hampton Hampton 05-04-99

Lang, Wesley B. Hampton Warren, Deirdre A. Hampton Durham 05-08-99

Scheib, Richard H. Derry Reagan, Nicole M. Hampton Derry 05-08-99

Miele, Stephen F. Hampton Gentilini, Karen G. Hampton Rye 05-08-99

Fisher, William Brookline May, Lori C. Hampton Plaistow 05-22-99

Fichera, John J. Hampton Mede, Elizabeth A Hampton Hampton 05-22-99

Pickard, Robert M Hampton Pickard, Susan M Hampton Rye 05-23-99

Schmidt, Edmund T. Hampton Lovejoy, Carolyn Hampton Hampton 05-28-99

Frank, Jamie P. Hampton Aylward, Ann Marie Hampton Seabrook 05-29-99

McCarthy, Allen E. Rye Wieczorek, Lee A. Hampton Rye 06-05-99

Niemi, Paul D.Jr. Hampton Heckscher, Lela C. Portsmouth Hampton 06-12-99

Dawson, David W. Hampton Aubuchon, Debi Ann Hampton Hampton 06-12-99
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Groom's Name Groom's Bride's Name
Residence

Bride's

Residence

Place of

Marriage

Perin, James N. Hampton Hersey, Trisha Ann Hampton Exeter 06-12-99

Sauvageau, John J. Hampton Kiah, Jessica L. Hampton Hampton 06-12-99

Larocque, Paul R. Hampton York, Heather Hampton Hampton 06-12-99

Niejadlik, Jeffrey T. Hampton Chaberek, Jennifer Hampton Barrington 06-26-99

Warth, Matthew K. Hampton Robinson, Kristen D. Hampton Durham 07-10-99

Avery, John A. Hampton Keen, Amy L. Hampton Dover 07-17-99

Mcllveen, Leonard Jr. Hampton Powers, Lisa A. Hampton Portsmouth 07-17-99

Cuevas Garcia, Noe C.Gir. MO Stanton, Sharon M. Hampton Rye P7-17-99
McDonough Timothy Hampton Murphy, Amy Beth Hampton Hampton 07-31-99

Barstow, Bruce J. Hampton Fillion, Renee K. Hampton N.Hampton 07-31-99

Palavanchuk, David Hampton Edge, Loretta F. Hampton Hampton 08-01-99

Stern, Albert P. Hampton Overlock, Karel A. Hampton Hampton 08-02-99

Keaney, Stephen Hampton Xavier, Danielle Seabrook Seabrook 08-20-99

Murray, Dan S. Hampton Martin, Sharon A. Hampton N.Hampton 08-07-99

Bickley, Donald F. Hampton Carpenter, Julia E. Hampton Hampton 08-14-99

Buckley, Michael J. Hampton Webster, Patricia B Hampton Newmarket 08-14-99

Valhouli, Nicholas Hampton Fraser,Leanne E. Hampton Portsmouth 08-21-99

Burbank, Erik T. Portlnd,ME Nichols-Evans, Terri Hampton Hampton 08-23-99

Laframboise, Mark S. Hampton Dalphond, Karen A. Dracut,NH N.Hampton 08-21-99

Grant, Kevin P. Hampton Gabardina, Nancy Hampton Manchester 08-28-99

King, Jeffrey F. Hampton Morrison, Marianne Hampton Hampton 08-28-99

Fuller, Michael P. Hampton Gordon, Amy Lee Hampton Hmptn. Fls. 08-28-99

McGee, Matthew J. Hampton Follansbee, Sherrie Hampton Seabrook 08-28-99

Clyde, Norman R. Hampton Duquette, Susan M. Hampton Hampton 08-28-99

Lavertue, Jason A. Hampton Ferree, Tracie J. Hampton Portsmouth 09-04-99

Polizzo, Jeffrey J. Hampton Parker, Kimberly Hampton Greenland 09-04-99

Leary, Ronald A. Hampton Masse, Danielle L. Atkinson Seabrook 09-11-99

Facey, Sean C. Hampton Gerrior, Karen J. Hampton Bretn.Wds 09-11-99

Coombs, Timothy Hampton Manduca, Stacy L. Hampton Hampton 09-11-99

Collyer, David P. Hampton Babkirk, Donna J. Hampton Hampton 09- 11-99

Swift, Robert F. Hampton West, Patricia D Hampton Dover 09-15-99

Burnham, Carleton Hampton Govoni, Jackie Ann Hampton Hampton 09-17-99

Morse, Michael Sr. Hampton Forchielli, Joanne M. Naugauct.CT Hampton 09-18-99

Tocci, James R. Hampton Ouellette, Michelle Hampton Exeter 09-18-99

Sicard, Mark, E. Hampton Malone Kara J. Rochester Rochester 09-18-99

O'Hara, Stephen J. Seabrook Britton, Heather A. Hampton Rye 09-18-99

Page, Howard C. IV Hampton Sullivan, Denise Hampton Hampton 09-23-99

Paradis Paul D. Hampton Bowden, Carly M. Hampton Hampton 09-23-99

Boudreau, Yvon P. Dover Godfrey, Nicole D. Hampton N.Hampton 09-25-99
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Groom's Name Groom's Bride's Name
Residence

Bride's

Residence

Place of

Marriage

Boies, David W. Hampton Emerick, Tracey Hampton Hampton 09-25-99

Deane, Brian K. Hampton Manley, Patricia Hampton Rye 09-26-99

Harris, Gary P Hampton Morrison, Lyn Ann Hampton Pittsburg 10-02-99

Belinsky, Chad J. Hampton Bergeron, Kim A. Hampton Jackson 10-09-99

Laskey, Alan L., Jr. Hampton Bowley, Martha S. Hampton Hampton 10-17-99

Brigandi, Alfred S. Hampton Brigandi, Camille Hampton Hampton 10-29-99

Joaquin, Russell Hampton Consiglio, AnnMarie Hampton HmptnFls 11-20-99

Douglas, Wayne E. Hampton Langton, Michelle A. Hampton Hampton 11-20-99

Siegal, Michael A. Hampton D'Cruz, Alice C. Hampton HmptnFls 11-20-99

Maloney, John P. Hampton Spence, Annette Hampton Hampton 12-02-99

Amodie, John T. Hampton McCahill, Cara S. Hampton Hampton 12-11-99

Domfnguec-Belandria J. Hampton Geller, Alicia A Hampton Derry 12-17-99

Dionne, Craig A. Hampton Herb, Jennifer L. Hampton Durham 12-19-99

Letourneau, Jeremy Hampton Donaghy, Caitlyn Hampton Hampton 12-19-99

Herrick, David M. Hampton Mears, Kimberly Nwbrypt.MA Seabrook 12-31-99
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TOWN OF HAMPTON
Resident Death Report

1999

Decedent's Name Date Of
Death

Place Of
Death

Father's Name Mother's Maiden
Name

Webb, Phillip H 01-01-99 Hampton, NH Webb, Joseph Porter,Minnie-Clyde

Drakos, Alice 01-06-99 Dover, NH Kafegelis, Apostolis Kopanou, Merope

Leverone, Thomas 01-07-99 Exeter, NH Leverone, Antonio Cordano, Matilda

Russell, Henry Z. 01-08-99 Hampton, NH Russell, Zenas Crooker, Isabel

Norton, Harrison R. 01-08-99 Hampton, NH Norton, Fred Barton, Nina

Chaney, Catherine 01-10-99 Manchester,NH O'Brien, James Moran, Ethel

Logan, Richard W. 01-10-99 Portsmouth, NH Logan, Leon Andrews, Grace

Biery, Gertrude A. 01-12-99 Exeter, NH Patton, Thomas Hermance, Rebecca

Vellucci, Peter 01-13-99 Hampton, NH Vellucci, Pasquale Masci, Quidalina

Driver, Helen C. 01-20-99 Hampton, NH Thompson, Hans Anderson, Evelyn

Redington, Paul E 01-22-99 Exeter, NH Redington, John Hanlon, Margaret

Sinisgalli, Rocco J. 01-22-99 Exeter, NH Sinisgalli, Antonio Robilotto, Dora

Hamilton, Theresa 01-22-99 Exeter, NH Perreault, Ernest Legasse, Maria

Fisher, Virginia G 01-23-99 Hampton, NH Fanning, William Carmody, Johanna

Strong, Marjorie 01-24-99 Hampton, NH Clarke, Victor Thorpe, Marguerite

Janvrin, Allison B. 01-29-99 Hampton, NH Janvrin, William Brown, Dora

Kafejelis, Annie 02-01-99 Manchester.NH Stewart, James McGovern, Jeanie

Gooch, Joan E. 02-07-99 Hampton, NH Eaton, Paul B. Rebmann, Katherine

Marston, Ermyntrude 02-11-99 Hampton, NH Hoyt, James D. Fogg, Lillian N.

Best, David N. 02-11-99 Exeter, NH Not Listed Not Listed

Mcallister, Helen R. 02-16-99 Portsmouth, NH Ingram, John McDevitt, Helen

Heath, Richard T. 02-19-99 Nashua, NH Heath, Gordon Hutchison, Evelyn

Van Rossum, John 02-25-99 Portsmouth, NH VanRossum,Clarence Sylvester, Grace

Dudley, Ralph A. 03-01-99 Exeter, NH Dudley, Ralph Noonan, Ida

Tabor, Harriet M. 03-03-99 Hampton, NH Brown, Rufus Welch, Elfrida

Scanlon, William C. 03-06-99 Hampton, NH Scanlon, John Hurd, Dorcus

Hart, Walter A. 03-08-99 Exeter, NH Hart , Walter Johnson, Caroline

Shellmer, Margaret 03-10-99 Exeter, NH Smith, Charles Hyson,Ruth

Hamel, Theresa, M. 03-11-99 Hampton, NH Daigle, Alexis Thellen, Aurea

Gagalis, Andrew G. 03-12-99 Exeter, NH Gagalis, George Papachasiou, Stella

Marsolini, Joseph R. 03-14-99 Sarasota, EL Marsolini, Giacomo Puleo, Anna

Coolidge, Margaret 03-14-99 Hampton, NH Dalton, William Bryan, Catherine

Fitzgerald, Leo T. 03-19-99 Hampton, NH Fitzgerald, Leo Murray Anna

Sutera, Marie E 03-24-99 Hampton, NH Bruni, Antonio Di Scssa, Nunziata

Atwood, Althea E 03-25-99 Hampton, NH Sweet, Hiram Smith , Katherine

Destefano, John J. 03-26-99 Hampton, NH Destefano, Frederick Desanti, Victoria

Brewster, Carolyn, B 03-26-99 Hampton, NH Bartlett, Norman Pletsch, Gertrude

Frank, Dorothy S. 04-02-99 Hampton, NH Smith, George Concanon, Anne

Snow, Albert L. 04-02-99 Hampton, NH Snow, William Orr, Clara
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Death

Father's Name Mother's Maiden
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Leary, Gladys 04-06-99 Hampton, NH Bowden, Charles Jennie (unknown)

Splittorff, Helen I. 04-07-99 Exeter, NH Baldauf, F. Arno Campbell , Sarah

Waitt, Judith R. 04-23-99 Exeter, NH Ryan, Kenneth Meyer, Hazel

Noyes, Howard H. 04-24-99 Exeter, NH Noyes, Roland Meyers, Greta

McAteer, Joycelee 04-26-99 Hampton, NH Lee, Roy Palmer, Mary

Osgood, Ruth F. 04-29-99 Portsmouth, NH Keirstead, Charles George, Augusta

Mercier, Marguerite 05-08-99 Exeter, NH Sullivan, John Shea, Susan

Stark, Helen A. 05-09-99 Exeter, NH O'Leary, Denis O'Brien, Catherine

Small Dorothy L. 05-10-99 Hampton, NH Jones, Frank W. Randall, Lillian

Reynolds, Brian F. 05-15-99 Hampton, NH Reynolds, James H. O'Sullivan, Agnes

Reardon, Robert J. 05-20-99 Hampton. NH Reardon,Michael MacDonald, K.

Lawler, Dorothy E. 05-25-99 Exeter, NH Sanborn, Arthur Dow, Anne

Lassen, John P. 05-25-99 Dover, NH Lassen, Jens Rhodes, Glady

Haight, Beatrice M. 06-05-99 Exeter, NH MacDonnell, Samuel McNulty, Mary
Goodwin, Thomas E. 06-09-99 Portsmouth, NH Goodwin, Keith Macintosh,Elizabeth

Zych, Chester J. 06-12-99 Portsmouth, NH Zych, John Slate, Mary

Capone, Gloria H. 06-14-99 Exeter,NH Capone, Archille Caruso, Caroline

Lewis, Stanley 06-16-99 Hampton, NH Not listed Not listed

Devore, Edwin E. 06-18-99 Exeter,NH Devore, Clayton Winland, Grethel

Kim, Yongshim 06-21-99 Hampton, NH Park, Youngeun C. Kim, Cheon

Philbin, Jeannette H. 06-24-99 Concord, NH Martin, Henry Rivers, Laura

Bourassa, Robert L 06-25-99 Hampton, NH Bourassa, Leo Lareau, Delia

Sheehan, Thomas F. 07-01-99 Exeter, NH Sheehan, Thomas Moran, Irene

Kaplan, Soloman I. 07-02-99 Exeter, NH Kaplan, Israel Hoffman, Anna

Hurd, Ethel L. 07-07-99 Hampton, NH Murphy, Joseph J. Anderson, Alma L.

Hayes, Helen F. 07-08-99 Hampton, NH Hayes, Samuel Corson, Annie

Ring, Donald A. 07-10-99 Exeter, NH Ring , Robert Valquet, Clara

Felch, Emma D. 07-11-99 Hampton, NH Addison, William M. Eaton, Emma D.

D'Ambrosio, Rose T. 07-14-99 Exeter, NH D'Ambrosio, Sabato Signori, Giovannina

Miller, Ronald C. 07-18-99 Brentwood, NH Miller, Ronald Currier, Sally

Gilbert, William F. 07-18-99 Exeter, NH Gilbert, Ralph Call, Madeline

Wagemann, Albert F. 07-20-99 Hampton, NH Wagemann,Frederick Koch, Florence

Bohne, Lucy M. 07-21-99 Hampton, NH Hirst, Linius Bowler, Maude

O'Donnell, Ruth G. 07-22-99 Portsmouth, NH Buzzell, Ralph Not listed

Tessier, Emile A. 07-24-99 Portsmouth, NH Tessier, Arsene Hebert, Pulcherie

Nudd, Anne L. 07-25-99 Exeter, NH Davis, John Walker, Mary

Grange, Mariem G. 07-26-99 Hampton, NH Dunlop, William Haag, Pauline

Corcoran, Paul J. 07-29-99 Hampton, NH Corcoran, William Arsenault, E.

Rosenbloom, Florence 08-02-99 Florence, KY Cohen, Joseph Not listed

Egan-Lary, Madeleine 08-04-99 Hampton, NH Lord, Elmer H. Goodrich, G.
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Decedent's Name Date of

Death

Place of

Death

Father's Name Mother's Maiden
Name

Gilman, Merle C. 08-06-99 Hampton, NH Leighton, Albert Berry, M. Blanche

Gavin, Edward S. 08-06-99 Hampton, NH Gavin, John Stanley, Elizabeth

Place, Daisy L. 08-08-99 Hampton, NH Place, John J. Buckman, Alma

Pacheco, Nancy S. 08-11-99 Hampton, NH Wright, Vern Brown, Pauline

Stephenson, Nancy 08-15-99 Hampton, NH Downs, William Litchfield, Minnie

Ferland, Woodrow 08-15-99 Manchester.NH Ferland, Napoleon Roy Anna

Buck, Alice 08-18-99 Hampton, NH Seccus,Constantinos Despoutopuolos, V.

Bouchard, Mary E. 08-19-99 Brentwood. NH Sullivan, Jeremiah Roach, Catherine

Frisbee, Alberta A. 08-19-99 Hampton, NH Adams, Albert Trefethen, Maud
April, Sylvia M. 08-20-99 Hampton, NH Gray, Claude Oaks, Mildred

Timbas, Lambros V. 08-21-99 Hampton, NH Timbas, Vasilios Nathaniel, Maria

Ham, Hazel L. 08-22-99 Hampton, NH Sawyer, Frank Johnson, Elsie

Provencal, Martha J. 08-24-99 Hampton, NH Dowd, John Campbell, Martha

Laduke, Henry, E. 08-24-99 Hampton, NH Laduke, Forrest Landeville, Agnes

McCue, Ellen M. 08-30-99 Exeter, NH McCue, James O'Donnell.C.

Marchand, Roger J. M. 09-01-99 Hampton, NH Marchand, Romeo Roussel, Delia

Garrett, Murray J. 09-07-99 Hampton, NH Garrett, Louis Kimmelman R.

Tobin, Geneva M. 09-08-99 Exeter, NH Cote, Alcide Nadeau, Emily

Trefethen, Josephine 09-08-99 Hampton, NH Philbrick, Esra Not listed

Piatt, James D. 09-09-99 Hampton, NH Piatt, James O'Connor, Ruth

Ring, Olive M. 09-19-99 Exeter, NH Wood, John Dyer, Eva

Simms,Ruby L. 09-21-99 Hampton, NH Pentz, Amos Matthews, Annie

Nordahl, Henry F. 09-23-99 Hampton, NH Nordahl, Henry Curran, Lillian

Gallagher, John D. 09-27-99 Hampton, NH Gallagher, John J. Cronin, Katherine

Karagianis, Paras 09-30-99 Hampton, NH Karagianis, Christos Sapounas, A.

Fowler, Norwood S. 10-01-99 Hampton, NH Fowler, William A. Clarke, Evelyn

Smith, Lloyd W. 10-02-99 Hampton, NH Smith, Edward Martin, Leola

Redmond, Esther J. 10-12-99 Hampton, NH Sweeney, Edward, J. Parkenson, Julia

Bridges, Hurley R. 10-26-99 Hampton, NH Bridges, Hurley C. Schwartz, Lillian

Cram, John Gilman 10-31-99 Hampton, NH Cram, Joseph B. Connor, Georgia M.

Johnson, Elvie V. 11-06-99 Hampton, NH Hardy, Bernard Freeman, Sarah

Stein, Dale R. 11-10-99 Hampton, NH Stein, James Unknown, Elsie

Quinlan, Bernard L. 11-11-99 Hampton, NH Quinlan, John Carroll, Catherine

Cooper, Doris E. 11-12-99 Hampton, NH Christy, Frank W. Grant, Elizabeth M.

Leach, Freda M 11-12-99 Hampton, NH Bourgois, Frank Not listed

Harris, Harriet A. 11-12-99 Hampton, NH Collis, Sidney Lamprey, Susan

Connor, David 11-15-99 Hampton, NH Connor, Daniel Herlihy. Anna

Duncan, William V. 11-20-99 Hampton, NH Duncan, Ralph Sollow, Ruby

Miles, Lorraine P. 11-28-99 Hampton, NH Young, Earle Hall. Lillian

Savastano, Deborah 11-29-99 Hampton, NH Savastano, I larry Rea, Maria

Dudck. Veronica F. 12-01-99 Hampton, NH Polchlopek, Frank Ziemba, Zofia
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Peterson, Richard R. 12-05-99 Hampton, NH Peterson Roy D. Mahoney, Irene M
Gaudet, Eugene A. 12-06-99 Hampton, NH Gaudet, Alfred Boudreau, Laura

Levasseur, Henry P. 12-07-99 Hampton, NH Levasseur, Alphonse Roux, Alma

Fitzgerald Marion J. 12-07-99 Chelmsfd.MA Finn, Charles Carrigan, Elizabeth

Brooks, Mary F. 12-13-99 Hampton, NH Brooks, Eugene Troy, Elizabeth

Daneault,Marie A. 12-23-99 Hampton, NH Ouellette, Henry Belleveau, Emilia

Knowles, Nellie 12-24-99 Hampton, NH Hamell, Napoleon Laclair, Delia

Therrien, Irene F. 12-25-99 Hampton, NH Boisvert, Louis Beaudry, Evaleda

Czick, Margaret E. 12-29-99 Hampton, NH Berta, John Kuchinski, Mary

Hood, Richard L. 12-30-99 Hampton, NH Hood, Richard Lamont, Catherine
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TOWN OF HAMPTON

WARRANT
&

BUDGET

2000
(As Amended at Deliberative Session 2/5/00)



TOWN OF HAMPTON
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

2000 TOWN WARRANT

To the Inhabitants of the Town of Hampton, in the County of

Rockingham, and State of New Hampshire, qualified to vote in town affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at eight-thirty o'clock in the

forenoon in the auditorium at Winnacunnet High School on Saturday,

February 5, 2000 for the first session on the Annual Town Meeting for the

transaction of all business other than voting by official ballot.

In accordance with the action in Article 14 in the 1996 Town
Warrant (pursuant to RSA 40:13) the second session of the Annual Meeting

to elect officers by official ballot, to vote on questions required by law to be

inserted on said official ballot, shall be held on Tuesday, March 14, 2000 at

seven o'clock in the forenoon at the Marston School, Marston Way. The

polls will not close before eight o'clock in the evening.

ARTICLE 1

To choose by non-partisan ballot: One (1) Moderator for Two Years;

Two (2) Selectmen for Three Years; One (1) Tax Collector for Three Years;

One (1) Supervisor of the Checklist for Six (6) Years; One (1) Trustee of the

Trust Funds for Three Years; Two (2) Library Trustees for Three Years; One (1)

Library Trustee for One Year;Two (2) Planning Board Members for Three

Years; One (1) Cemetery Trustee for Three Years; Four (4) Municipal Budget

Committee Members for Three Years; One (1) Municipal Budget Committee

Member for Two Years; One (1) Municipal Budget Committee Member for One
Year; Two (2) Zoning Board of Adjustment Members for Three Years; One (1)

Zoning Board of Adjustment Member for Two Years; Nine (9) Charter

Commission members for Eighteen Months.

ARTICLE 2

Shall we adopt an exemption for the disabled? The exemption based

on assessed value, for qualified taxpayers shall be $25,000. To qualify, the

person must have been a New Hampshire resident for at least 5 years and own
and occupy the real estate individually or jointly, or if the real estate is owned by

a spouse, they must have been married for at least five years. In addition, the

taxpayer must have a net income of not more than $21,000 or, if married, a

combined net income of not more than $30,000; and own assets not in excess of

$50,000 excluding the value of the person's residence.

ARTICLE 3
Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 1 to amend Article

I, Section 1.6, Definitions as proposed by the Planning Board to add the

following:
"
Fence : An artificially constructed barrier of any material or

combination of materials erected to enclose, screen, or separate areas."



ARTICLE 4

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 2 to amend Article

I, Section 1.6, Definitions as proposed by the Planning Board to add the

following:
"Motor Home : A motor home built on a truck or bus chassis and

designed to serve as self-contained living quarters for recreational travel."

ARTICLE 5

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 3 to amend Article

I, Section 1.6, Definitions as proposed by the Planning Board to add the

following:
"
Tent : A portable shelter, as of canvas, stretched over a supporting

framework of poles with ropes and pegs."

ARTICLE 6
Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 4 to amend Article

I, Section 1.6, Definitions as proposed by the Planning Board to add the

following:
"
Trailer : A structure standing on wheels, towed or hauled by another

vehicle, and used for short-term human occupancy, carrying of materials, goods,

or objects, or as a temporary office."

ARTICLE 7

Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment No. 5 as proposed by

the Planning Board to replace in its entirety Article V, Signs, with Section 5.1

Purpose, Section 5.2 Definitions, Section 5.3, Size, Design Construction and

Maintenance, Section 5.4 Permitted, Prohibited and Non-Conforming Signs, and

Section 5.5 Sign Permits and Fees.

ARTICLE V - SIGNS
5.1 PURPOSE: The purpose of this article is to encourage the effective use of

signs as a means of communication in the Town while maintaining and

enhancing the aesthetic environment and the Town's ability to attract sources of

economic development and growth; to improve pedestrian and traffic safety and

to enable the fair and consistent enforcement of these sign ordinances.

5.2 Definitions: These definitions apply only to this article.

Animated sign: Any sign that uses movement or change of lighting to depict

action or create a special effect or scene.

Banner: Any sign of lightweight fabric or similar material that is mounted to a

pole or a building at one or more edges. National flags, state or municipal flags,

or the official flag of any institution or business shall not be considered banners.

Beacon: Any light with one or more beams directed into the atmosphere or

directed at one or more points not on the same lot as the light source; also, any

light with one or more beams that rotate or move.

Building Sign: Any sign attached to any part of a building, as contrasted to a

freestanding sign.

Canopy Sign: Any sign that is a part of or attached to an awning, canopy, or

other fabric, plastic, or structural protective cover over a door, entrance,

window, or outdoor service area. A marquee is not a canopy.

Changeable Copy Sign: A sign or portion thereof with characters, letters, or
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illustrations that can be changed or rearranged without altering the face or the

surface of the sign. A sign on which the message changes more than eight times

per day shall be considered an animated sign and not a changeable copy sign.

Commercial message: Any sign, wording, logo, or other representation that,

directly or indirectly, names, advertises, or calls attention to a business, product,

service, or other commercial activity.

Directory sign: Any sign containing the name of a commercial building,

commercial complex or industrial development that contains the names of the

businesses located in those buildings, complexes, or developments.

Advertisements for lease, rent or purchase shall not be allowed on directory

signs.

Flag: Any fabric, banner, or bunting containing distinctive colors, patterns, or

symbols, used as a symbol of a government, political subdivision or other entity.

Freestanding sign: Any sign supported by structures or supports that are

placed on, or anchored in, the ground and that are independent from any

building or other structure.

Incidental sign: A sign, generally informational, that has a purpose secondary

to the use of the lot on which it is located, such as "no parking", "entrance",

"towing zone", "loading zone", and other similar directives.

Marquee: Any permanent roof-like structure projecting beyond the wall of a

building, generally designed and constructed to provide protection from the

weather.

Marquee sign: Any sign attached to, in any manner, or made a part of a

marquee.

Non-conforming sign: Any sign that does not conform to the requirements of

this ordinance.

Pennant: Any lightweight plastic, fabric, or other material whether or not

containing a message of any kind, suspended from a rope, wire, or string,

usually in series, designed to move in the wind.

Political sign: Any sign or poster advertising a person's or political party's

intent to run for any free election.

Portable sign: Any sign not permanently attached to the ground or other

permanent structure, or a sign designed to be transported by means of wheels;

signs converted to "A" or "T" frames; menu and sandwich board signs; balloons

used as signs; and signs attached to or painted on vehicles parked and visible

from the public right-of-way, unless said vehicle is used in the normal day-to-

day operations of the business.

Projecting sign: Any sign affixed to a building or wall in such a manner that its

leading edge extends more than six inches beyond the surface of such building

or wall.

Real Estate sign: Any sign advertising the sale, lease or rental of any property,

having the name, address and telephone number of any legal Real Estate Office.

Residential sign: Any sign located in a district zoned for residential uses that

contains no commercial message except advertising for goods or services,

legally offered on the premises where the sign is located, if the offering of such

goods and services conforms with all requirements of the zoning ordinance.

Roof sign: Any sign erected and constructed wholly on or over the roof of a
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building, supported by the roof structure, and extending vertically.

Roof sign, integral: Any sign erected or constructed as an integral or

essentially integral part of a normal roof structure of any design, such that no

part of the sign extends vertically above the highest portion of the roof and such

that no part of the sign is separated from the rest of the roof by a space of more

than 6 inches.

Sign: Any device, fixture, placard, or structure that uses any color, form,

graphic, illumination, symbol, or writing to advertise, announce the purpose of,

or identify the purpose of a person or entity, or to communicate information of

any kind to the public.

Suspended sign: A sign that is suspended from the underside of a horizontal

plane surface and is supported by such surface.

Temporary sign: Any sign that is used only temporarily and is not

permanently mounted.

Wall sign: Any sign attached parallel to, but within six inches of, a wall,

painted on a wall surface of, or erected and confined within the limits of an

outside wall of structure, which is supported by such wall, and which displays

only one sign surface.

Window sign: Any sign, pictures, symbol, or combination thereof, designed to

communicate information about an activity, business, commodity, event, sale, or

service that is placed inside a window or upon the window panes or glass and is

visible from the exterior of the window.

5.3 Size, Design, Construction and Maintenance

5.3.1 The area of a sign face (which is also the sign area of a wall sign or

other sign with only one face) shall be computed by means of the smallest

square, circle, rectangle, triangle, or combination thereof that will

encompass the extreme limits of the writing, representation, emblem, or

other display, together with any material or color forming an integral part of

the background of the display or used to differentiate the sign from the

backdrop or structure against which it is placed, but not including any

supporting framework, bracing, or decorative fence or wall when such fence

or wall otherwise meets zoning ordinance regulations and is clearly

incidental to the display itself (see Table II).

5.3.2 The sign area for a sign with more than one face shall be computed

by adding together the area of all sign faces visible from any one point.

5.3.3 All signs shall be designed, constructed, and maintained in accordance

with the following standards:

a) All signs shall comply with the latest approved version of the

BOCA Building Code and the National Electric Code and shall be

maintained in good structural condition, in compliance with all

building and electrical codes, and in conformance with this

ordinance at all times.

b) Except for flags, temporary signs, and window signs conforming in

all respects with the requirements of this ordinance, all signs shall

be constructed of permanent materials and shall be permanently

attached to the ground, a building, or another structure by direct

attachment to a rigid wall, frame or structure.
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5.4 Prohibited, Permitted and Non-Conforming Signs

5.4.1 The following signs are expressly prohibited in all zones.

a) Animated signs.

b) Beacons.

c) Portable signs.

d) Signs which imitate, and may be confused with, an official traffic

control sign or signal, or an emergency or road equipment vehicle.

e) Signs which bear or contain statements, words or pictures of

obscene, pornographic or immoral character or which contain

advertising matter which is untruthful, or as otherwise prohibited

by State law.

f) Off premises signs except for directory or political signs.

g) No advertisement shall be affixed, attached, or displayed upon

any object of nature, utility

pole telephone booth, or highway sign per RSA 236:75.

5.4.2 Permitted signs for all zones are indicated in Table I with the

following restrictions:

a) Freestanding signs

1) Where a zoning lot fronts on more than one public street, the

provisions of this ordinance shall apply to each frontage.

2) Where more than one freestanding sign is permitted the

minimum distance between the signs shall be 300 feet.

3) The maximum portion of a freestanding sign dedicated to

changeable copy is 20 percent.

b) Roof signs

1) All roof signs must be set back a distance of at least 4 feet

from all the outside walls of the building on or over which they

are located.

c) Projecting signs

1) The projecting sign may exist instead of, but not in addition to,

a freestanding sign.

d) Directory signs

1) The development identification shall be at the top and shall

have a maximum display area of 8 square feet.

2) The sign shall be freestanding and shall not exceed 12 feet in

overall height.

e) Banners

1) Banners in the residential zones are limited to thirty days.

f) Flags

1 ) Flags shall not exceed 3 per lot and 50 square feet per flag.

g) Window Signs

1) Window signs shall not exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total

window area of the business which they advertise.

5.4.3 Non-conforming signs are signs that were legally in place and not

in violation of any previous sign ordinance prior to the enactment

of this ordinance and shall immediately lose its legal non-

conforming status when:
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a) The sign is altered in any way such that its effect is more intensive

and/or obtrusive.

b) The sign is relocated.

c) The sign has not been repaired or properly maintained within 30

days after written notice to that effect has been given by a Building

Official.

5.5 Sign Permits and Fees

5.5.1 Applications: All applications for sign permits of any kind shall be

submitted to the Building Inspector on an application form.

5.5.2 Drawings: All applications for new signs or modified signs shall be

accompanied by a detailed drawing to show the dimensions, design,

structure, color, and location of each particular sign. One application and

permit may include multiple signs on the same lot.

5.5.3 Fees: Each application for a sign permit shall be accompanied by the

applicable fees per Table III.

5.5.4 Action: Upon receipt of a complete application, the Building

Department shall, within seven working days, either:

a) Issue the sign permit; or

b) Reject the sign permit if the sign(s) that is the subject of the

application fails in any way to conform with the requirements of

this ordinance. In case of a rejection, the Building Inspector shall

specify in the rejection the section or sections of the ordinance

with which the sign(s) is inconsistent.

c) Any rejected permit can be resubmitted after being made to

comply with the appropriate section(s) or the applicant can seek

relief with the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

5.5.5 Inspection: The Building Inspector shall schedule an inspection

of the lot for which each permit for a new sign or for modification of an

existing sign at such time as the owner has installed or modified the sign. If

the construction is complete and in full compliance with this ordinance and

the building and electrical codes, the Building Inspector shall approve the

sign. If the sign is found to be not in compliance with this ordinance or the

building or electrical codes, the Building Inspector shall give the owner or

applicant notice of the deficiencies and shall allow an additional 10 days for

the deficiencies to be corrected. If the deficiencies are not corrected within

the 10 day period, the sign permit shall become void.

5.5.6 Temporary Sign Permits: Temporary signs shall be allowed only

upon the issuance of a Temporary Sign Permit, subject to the following:

a) A temporary sign permit shall allow the use of a temporary sign for

a specified 30-day period.

b) Only two temporary sign permits shall be issued to any one lot in

any calendar year.

c) A temporary sign shall be allowed only in accordance with Table I

of this ordinance.

5.5.7 Political Signs: Political signs are allowed in all zones subject to

the following:
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a) Political signs shall not be erected sooner than 15 days prior to the

election for which they pertain.

b) All signs shall be removed within 24 hours following the election.

ARTICLE V TABLE 1 PERMITTED SIGNS PER ZONE
RAA RA RB RCS B BS 1 G

Animated Sign X X X X X X X X

Banner P P P P P P P P

Beacon X X X X X X X X

Building Sign X X X X P p p P

Canopy Sign X X X X P p p P

Changeable Copy X X X X P p p P
Sign

Commercial Sign X X X X P p p P

Directory Sign ZBA ZBA ZBA ZBA P p p P

Flag P P P P P p p P

Freestanding Sign X X X X P p p P

Incidental Sign P P P P P p p P

Marquee Sign X X X X P p p P

Pennant X X X X P p p P

Political Sign P p P P P p p P

Portable Sign X X X X X X X X

Projecting Sign X X X X p p p p

Real Estate Sign p p P p p p p p

Residential Sign ZBA ZBA ZBA ZBA X X X X

Roof Sign X X X X PB PB PB PB

Roof Sign, Integral X X X X PB PB PB PB

Suspended Sign X X X X P P P P

Temporary Sign B B B B P P P P

Wall Sign X X X X P P P P

Window Sign B B B B B B B B

E Permitted b> ' the Bijilding

Department

P - Permitted

PB- Permitted with P lanninjI Boarc1 Appnaval
X- Not Permitted

ZBA- Permitted with sr>ecial exception from the Zoning

Board of Adjustment



ARTICLE V - TABLE II - SIZE CHART
(In Square Feet)

RA RB RCS B BS I

RAA
Animated Sign

Banner 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50

Beacon

Building Sign - - - - 50 50 50 50

Canopy Sign - - - - 32 32 32 32

Changeable Copy Sign - - - - 32 32 32 32

Commercial Sign - - - - 32 32 32 32

Directory Sign 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32

Flag 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50

Freestanding Sign - - - - 50 50 50 50

Incidental Sign 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Marquee Sign - - - - 32 32 32 32

Pennant - - - - 4 4 4 4

Political Sign or Poster 6 6 6 6 50 50 50 50

Portable Sign

Projecting Sign - - - - 32 32 32 32

Real Estate Sign 6 6 6 6 32 32 32 32

Residential Sign 6 6 6 6 - - - -

Roof Sign - - - - 32 32 32 32

Roof Sign, Integral - - - - 64 64 64 64

Suspended Sign - - - - 32 32 32 32

Temporary Sign 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Wall Sign - - - - 50 50 50 50

Window Sign % % % % % % % %

% - fifty % (50%) of the window area

ARTICLE V - TABLE III - Sign Fees

All incidental signs, Pennants, Political Signs, Real Estate Signs: No
Fee

All other signs: Initial application & inspection $25.00

ARTICLE 8

To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate a sum

not to exceed $4,999,000 for the construction of a Police Facility on public

property at Brown Avenue and all related activities necessary for said



construction. Necessary funds to be raised through the issuance of bonds or

notes in an amount not to exceed $4,999,000 under and in compliance with

provisions of the Municipal Finance Act pursuant to RSA Chapter 33, Municipal

Finance Act, as amended; and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to issue and

negotiate such bonds or notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon, and

to take such other actions as may be necessary to effect the issuance,

negotiations, sale, and delivery of such bonds or notes as shall be in the best

interest of the Town of Hampton. Any income derived from temporary

investment of the bond proceeds shall be returned to the General Fund. (3/5

vote required)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 9

To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate the

sum of $4,750,000 for the purpose of preparing plans and specifications, permit

applications, land acquisitions, and/or easements and for the construction of

sewerage facilities recommended in the Town's 201 Facilities Planning Study

for additions and improvements at the Waste Water Treatment Plant,

requirements which are contained in the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as

amended (33U.S.C. 1251 et seq.), and will qualify the Town for Federal and

State funds, such sum to be raised by the issuance of Serial Bonds and Notes not

to exceed $4,750,000 under and in compliance with provisions of the Municipal

Finance Act (NH RSA 33:1 et seq. as amended) and to authorize the Selectmen

to issue and negotiate such bonds or notes to determine the rate of interest

thereon, and to take such actions as may be necessary to effect the issuance,

negotiations, sale and delivery of such bonds or notes as shall be in the best

interest of the Town of Hampton; additionally to participate in the State

Revolving Fund (SRF) RSA 486:14 established for this purpose, and to allow

the Selectmen to expend such monies as become available from the Federal and

State governments and pass any vote relating thereto. Any income derived from

temporary investment of the bond proceeds shall be returned to the General

Fund. Additionally, the sewer moratorium will remain in effect until an

approximate 20% increase to the capacity of the wastewater treatment plant is

completed. (3/5 vote required)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 10

Shall the Town of Hampton raise and appropriate as an operating

budget, not including appropriations by special warrant articles, the amount set

forth on the budget posted with the warrant, for the purposes set forth therein,

totaling $16,531,844? Should this article be defeated, the operating budget shall

be $15,628,132.63, which is the same as last year, with certain adjustments

required by previous action of the Town Meeting or by law or the governing

body may hold one special meeting, in accordance with RSA 40:13, X and XVI,
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to take up the issue of a revised operating budget only."

*NOTE: Warrant Article #10 (Operating Budget Article) does not include

special warrant articles 8, 9, 13, 31, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46,

47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57; and individual warrant articles 11, 12,

14, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, and 30.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 11

To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate a sum
not to exceed $360,000 for the construction of athletic fields, including

lighting for said fields, and restroom and concession facilities at the Campbell

property purchased by the Town of Hampton in 1996 for the purposes of

recreation and conservation, and all related activities necessary for the design

and construction of said athletic fields and facilities.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Not recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 12

To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate a sum
not to exceed $350,000 for the purchase of a pumper truck for the Hampton
Fire Department and all related activities necessary for the design,

construction, acquisition, and transportation of said fire truck.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 13

Shall the Town raise and appropriate $350,000 to contribute to the Road
Improvement Capital Reserve Fund established by Article 16 of the 1998

Town Meeting pursuant to the provisions of RSA 35:1?

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 14

To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate a sum
of $80,000 to demolish the existing dilapidated structures at Tuck Field and

construct new recreation facilities at Tuck Field?

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee
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ARTICLE 15

Shall we adopt the provisions of RSA 31:95-c to restrict 100% of

revenues from Hampton ambulance and EMS calls to expenditures for the

purpose of providing ambulance and emergency medical services? Such

revenues and expenditures shall be accounted for in a special revenue fund to

be known as the Hampton Emergency Medical Services Fund, separate from

the general fund. Any surplus in said fund shall not be deemed part of the

general fund accumulated surplus and shall be expended only after a vote by the

legislative body to appropriate a specific amount from said fund for a specific

purpose related to the purpose of the fund or source of the revenue.

ARTICLE 16

If the voters of the Town of Hampton approve Article 15, shall the

town appropriate only the sum of $350,000 from revenues generated from

ambulance and emergency medical services calls for providing, improving,

and/or enhancing ambulance and emergency medical services? Adoption of this

article will have no effect on the town's tax rate.

ARTICLE 17
Shall we adopt the provisions of RSA 31:95-c to restrict 100% of

revenues from police and fire department private details to expenditures for the

purpose of providing police and fire department private details? Such revenues

and expenditures shall be accounted for in a special revenue fund to be known
as the Hampton Private Detail Fund, separate from the general fund. Any
surplus in said fund shall not be deemed part of the general fund accumulated

surplus and shall be expended only after a vote by the legislative body to

appropriate a specific amount from said fund for a specific purpose related to the

purpose of the fund or source of the revenue.

ARTICLE 18

If the voters of the Town of Hampton approve Article 17, shall the

town appropriate only the sum of $150,000 from revenues generated from police

and fire department private details? Adoption of this article will have no effect

on the town's tax rate.

ARTICLE 19
Shall we adopt the provisions of RSA 31:95-c to restrict 100% of

revenues from recreation department programs and activities to expenditures for

the purpose of providing recreation programs and activities? Such revenues and

expenditures shall be accounted for in a special revenue fund to be known as

the Hampton Recreation Fund, separate from the general fund. Any surplus in

said fund shall not be deemed part of the general fund accumulated surplus and

shall be expended only after a vote by the legislative body to appropriate a

specific amount from said fund for a specific purpose related to the purpose of

the fund or source of the revenue.
-11-



ARTICLE 20
If the voters of the Town of Hampton approve Article 19, shall the

town appropriate only the sum of $150,000 from revenues generated from

recreation department programs and activities? Adoption of this article will have

no effect on the town's tax rate.

ARTICLE 21
Shall we adopt the provisions of RSA 31:95-c to restrict 100% of

revenues from Cable TV local origination franchise agreement funds to

expenditures for the purpose of providing local public, educational, and

government access broadcasts in compliance with franchise agreements and/or

future assigns? Such revenues and expenditures shall be accounted for in a

special revenue fund to be known as the Hampton Cable TV Local

Origination Fund, separate from the general fund. Any surplus in said fund

shall not be deemed part of the general fund accumulated surplus and shall be

expended only after a vote by the legislative body to appropriate a specific

amount from said fund for a specific purpose related to the purpose of the fund

or source of the revenue. This fund will be under the jurisdiction of the Board of

Selectmen.

ARTICLE 22
If the voters of the Town of Hampton approve Article 21, shall the

town appropriate only the sum of $35,000 from revenues generated from Cable

TV local origination franchise agreement funds for upgrading, expanding, and

enhancing the development of the local origination channel? Adoption of this

article will have no effect on the town's tax rate.

ARTICLE 23
Shall the Town of Hampton vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$90,626. 1 1 to fund the cost items relating to the Professional Firefighters of

Hampton, Local #2664 - IAFF, salaries and benefits for 2000. Such sum

representing the additional salaries and benefits contained in a collective

bargaining agreement between the Town of Hampton by it's Board of

Selectmen and the Professional Firefighters of Hampton, pursuant to NH RSA
273-A.

Note: The above agreement is for the years 2000, 2001, and 2002. The

additional amounts necessary to fund the cost items for the following years are:

2001: $94,744.90 over the amounts for contract year 2000 for salaries and

benefits

2002: $98,987.24 over the amounts for contract year 2000 & 2001 for salaries

and benefits

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee
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ARTICLE 24
Shall the Town of Hampton vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$51,433.06 to fund the cost items relating to the Hampton Fire Department

Supervisory Association, Local #3017 - IAFF, salaries and benefits for 2000.

Such sum representing the additional salaries and benefits contained in a

collective bargaining agreement between the Town of Hampton by it's Board

of Selectmen and the Hampton Fire Department Supervisory Association,

pursuant to NH RSA 273-A. Note: The above agreement is for the years 2000,

2001, and 2002. The additional amounts necessary to fund the cost items for the

following years are:

2001: $52,976.06 over the amounts for contract year 2000 for salaries and

benefits.

2002: $54,565.34 over the amounts for contract year 2000 & 2001 for salaries

and benefits. Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 25
Shall the Town of Hampton vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$48,594.29 to fund the cost items relating to the State Employees Association,

Local 1984, salaries and benefits for 2000. Such sum representing the additional

salaries and benefits contained in a collective bargaining agreement between

the Town of Hampton by it's Board of Selectmen and the State Employees

Association (Public Works), pursuant to NH RSA 273-A. Note: The above

agreement is for the years 2000, 2001, and 2002. The additional amounts

necessary to fund the cost items for the following years are:

2001: $50,052.12 over the amounts for contract year 2000 for salaries and

benefits.

2002: $51,553.68 over the amounts for contract year 2000 & 2001 for salaries

and benefits.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 26
Shall the Town of Hampton vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$50,226.51 to fund the cost items relating to the Hampton Police Association,

salaries and benefits for 2000. Such sum representing the additional salaries and

benefits contained in a collective bargaining agreement between the Town of

Hampton by it's Board of Selectmen and the Hampton Police Association,

pursuant to NH RSA 273-A. Note: The above agreement is for the years 2000,

2001, and 2002. The additional amounts necessary to fund the cost items for the

following years are:

2001: $68,977.73 over the amounts for contract year 2000 for salaries and

benefits

2002: $7 1 ,047.07 over the amounts for contract year 2000 & 2001 for salaries

and benefits

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee
-13-



ARTICLE 27
Shall the Town of Hampton vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$10,144.08 to fund the cost items relating to the Hampton Police Association

(Sergeants), salaries and benefits for 2000. Such sum representing the

additional salaries and benefits contained in a collective bargaining agreement

between the Town of Hampton by it's Board of Selectmen and the Hampton
Police Association (Sergeants), pursuant to NH RSA 273-A.

Note: The above agreement is for the years 2000, 2001, and 2002. The

additional amounts necessary to fund the cost items for the following years are:

2001: $13,931.21 over the amounts for contract year 2000 for salaries and

benefits.

2002: $14,349.14 over the amounts for contract year 2000 & 2001 for salaries

and benefits.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 28
Shall the Town of Hampton vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$31,345.28 to fund the cost items relating to the Teamsters, Local #633, salaries

and benefits for 2000. Such sum representing the additional salaries and benefits

contained in a collective bargaining agreement between the Town of Hampton
by it's Board of Selectmen and the Teamsters (Clerical, PW Foremen, PD
Dispatchers), pursuant to NH RSA 273-A.

Note: The above agreement is for the years 2000, 2001, and 2002. The

additional amounts necessary to fund the cost items for the following years are:

2001: $32,285.63 over the amounts for contract year 2000 for salaries and

benefits.

2002: $33,254.20 over the amounts for contract year 2000 & 2001 for salaries

and benefits.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 29
Shall the Town of Hampton, if any or all of the six collective

bargaining agreement articles are defeated (Article 23, Firefighter's; Article 24,

Fire Officers; Article 25, Public Works employees; Article 26 Police Officers;

Article 27, Police Sergeants; and/or Article 28, Teamsters), authorize the

Governing Body to call one special meeting, at its option, to address cost items

only of the defeated said article or articles?

ARTICLE 30
Shall the Town raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000 to prepare a

comprehensive Master Plan for the redevelopment—of the beach area of

Hampton? This plan shall include, at a minimum, comprehensive zoning, land

use ordinance, and infrastructure needs, including transportation, utilities and

drainage. This plan shall be coordinated with an additional State funded Master
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Plan for State owned areas of the beach area, and will only be funded if

a matching grant is received. The total amount required for the development of a

Master Plan may be less than $50,000 based upon additional in kind support.

Shall the Town raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000 to serve as a

50/50 match for federal funds through the Office of State Planning 's Coastal

Zone Program for the creation of a Master Development Plan for the beach and

coastal areas ofHampton?

This plan will be in partnership with the Department of Resource and

Economic Development (DRED), which has committed $50,000 in additional

support to bring the total budget for the Master Development Plan to $150,000

(State $100,000/Town $50,000).

The plan will include, at a minimum, studying land use,

zoning, infrastructure needs, transportation, traffic, parking, utilities, drainage,

safety issues, and public facilities for both State and Town owned and managed
areas.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 31
Shall the Town raise and appropriate the sum of $30,000 to fund the

salary and benefits for six months of 2000 for a full-time Planner? If approved,

the position will be filled by the Town Manager in accordance with Chapter 8,

Article 3, Section 8:30 II A of the Town of Hampton Ordinances. The Planner

will be directly supervised by the Town Manager. The salary and benefits, as

adjusted, shall be included in future budget requests.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 32
Shall the Town of Hampton authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter

into a lease agreement for the purpose of leasing four fire department "small"

vehicles, four public works department vehicles, one public works department

stainless steel sludge roll-off, and one recreation department pickup truck?

ARTICLE 33
Shall the To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to rescind Section 3

of Article VI of the 1948 Town Meeting that requires the Board of Selectmen to

annually appoint change the hiring, annual appointment and supervision of the

Building Inspector and to provide that the appointment, supervision, and

removal—of the—Building—Inspector shall—be

—

unde r the

—

authority—of the

TownManager or his designee , from the Board of Selectmen to the status of a

department head under the direct supervision of the Town Manager.
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ARTICLE 34
To see if the Town will vote to appropriate only the sum of $23,648 to

be deposited in the Cemetery Burial Trust Fund, the interest from which will be

withdrawn annually and deposited in the Town's General Fund as an offset to

the amount appropriated for the maintenance of the cemeteries. This

appropriation will not affect the 2000 tax rate.

ARTICLE 35
To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to appropriate only

$56,899.63 (20% of the gross lease and rental from town's parking areas located

within the Hampton Beach Village District) for the purpose allocated by

Warrant Article #41 (1996) for the purpose of: installing lighting on Highland

Avenue ($46,899.63). The remainder to be spent on engineering costs on

Ashworth Avenue ($10,000). Grant money may also be applied for and used in

this project. This warrant will not effect the town's tax rate. Should this money
be put in the operating budget, this article would be withdrawn. (By petition)

ARTICLE 36
To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate the

sum of Forty Thousand and xx/100 ($40,000.00) Dollars to assist Seacoast

Visiting Nurse Association, a non-profit organization. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 37
We, the undersigned voters, petition the Town of Hampton to raise and

appropriate the sum of $20,708 to Rockingham Community Action (RCA), a

private, non-profit, anti-poverty agency. This amount represents 5 lA% of

$394,434 the value of services rendered to Hampton residents from July 1, 1998

through June 30, 1999. The services provided by RCA include over 25

programs, including fuel assistance, homelessness prevention and intervention,

emergency food programs, Women, Infants & Children (WIC), literacy services,

Head Start and crisis intervention services. RCA's services greatly reduce the

need for Hampton residents to apply for town welfare, thus reducing the town's

welfare rolls and saving the town money. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 38
On petition of Vivianne G. Marcotte for the Conservation Commission

and at least twenty-five registered voters of the Town of Hampton: to raise and

appropriate $15,000 for the purpose of continuing the restoration of our

degraded salt marshes. This will enable the Conservation Commission to

apply for matching funds from U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Ducks
-16-



Unlimited, Gulf of Maine Council, the Office of State Planning NH Coastal

Program, and others to accomplish projects costing twice this amount and more.

(By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 39
To see if the Town of Hampton will raise and appropriate the sum of

$10,000 for Cross Roads House, to assist homeless Hampton residents. (By

petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 40
On the petition of Area HomeCare & Family Services, Inc. and 25

registered voters of the Town of Hampton, the following request is made of the

Hampton Town Meeting. To see of the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and

appropriate the sum of $8,000 for the purpose of partially defraying the cost of

services provided to 58 low income, frail, elderly residents of the Town of

Hampton, which actually costs Area HomeCare and Family Services a total of

$171,000. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 41

We, the undersigned Hampton town voters, request that the Town of

Hampton raise and appropriate $8,000 in their 2000 budget for the support of

Seacoast Mental Health Center, Inc. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 42
To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate the

sum of $6,250 to assist Seacoast Hospice, a non-profit organization. (By

petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 43
To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate the

sum of Five thousand six hundred and seventy dollars ($5,670.00) for the

purpose of defraying the cost of services provided to the Town of Hampton and

its residents by Seacoast Big Brothers Big Sisters of New Hampshire. (By

petition) Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee
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ARTICLE 44
On petition of Seacoast HealthNet and twenty-five registered voters to

see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $5,000 to support

the health services offered by Seacoast HealthNet to the uninsured, working

families who are residents of the town. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 45
On petition of Carol Hollingworth and 25 other registered voters of the

Town of Hampton, to see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum
of $4,800 to assist with counseling services to families and children. Child and

Family Services of NH is an independent, non-profit agency dedicated to

advancing the well-being of children by providing an array of social services to

strengthen family life and by promoting community commitment to meet the

needs of children. Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 46
On petition of A Safe Place, 6 Greenleaf Drive, Suite 101, Portsmouth,

NH 03801 and at least twenty-five registered voters of the Town of Hampton:

To raise and appropriate the sum of $4,800, an amount equal to previous years'

funding, to assist Hampton residents and their children who are affected by

domestic violence. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 47
On petition of Nancy Higgins and 25 other registered voters of the

Town of Hampton, to see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum

of $4,000.00 to help defray costs acquired by Seacoast Area Feline Education

and Rescue, Inc. S.A.F.E.R. operates on a volunteer basis only for humanely

trapping feral and/or abandoned cats on Hampton Beach. Our responsibility is

to medically clear and spay or neuter any feral cat on the beach, with feline

education, adoption and/or monitored feeding stations in policy at all times. (By

petition) Not Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 48
We, the undersigned residents of Hampton, petition the Town of

Hampton to place on the warrant the request to support Rockingham Nutrition

& Meals on Wheel's Program's services for older, homebound and disable

Hampton residents by allocating $3,930 in the Town's 2000-2001 budget by

raising and appropriating these funds.

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee
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ARTICLE 49
On petition of Richard Gibbons, 102 Mace Road, Hampton, NH and 25

or more registered voters of the Town of Hampton: To see if the Town will vote

to support the Hampton Christmas Parade and related activities and raise and

appropriate the sum of $3,500 to help defray the expense of the 2000 event.

Said funds to be paid to the Hampton Beach Area Chamber of Commerce. (By

petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 50
To see if the Town of Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate the

sum of $3,300.00 (Thirty three hundred dollars) from the FY 2000 municipal

budget to support the Senior Citizen Transportation Program and the Medical

Care service provided by Lamprey Health Care. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 51
We, the residents of Hampton, petition that $3,300.00 be raised and

appropriated for The Richie McFarland Children's Center, which provides

home-based therapies to young children with delays and disabilities, and support

to their parents, in Hampton. (Requesting $275 for each child from Hampton
receiving services - 12 children served.) (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 52
We, the undersigned Hampton town voters, request that the Town of

Hampton raise and appropriate $2,000 in their 2000 budget for the support of the

Seacoast Area Chapter of the American Red Cross. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 53
We the undersigned registered voters in the Town of Hampton petition

the Town of Hampton to take appropriate action to make available the sum of

$1800 for use by the Retired and Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) of

Rockingham County. The money would be used to help defray the cost of

Liability Insurance, Volunteer Recognition and mileage reimbursement. Sixty-

five Hampton residents are members of RSVP. These members served thirty-

eight Town and County agencies. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee
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ARTICLE 54
To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$2,500.00 to assist AIDS Response-Seacoast, Inc., a non-profit corporation, in

providing direct services to persons with HIV infection or AIDS, and in

providing education and prevention programs which inform the public how to

stop the spread of HIV infection. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 55
We request the Town of Hampton to raise and appropriate the amount

of $2,000 $0 to support the Community Diversion Program assisting youth at

risk. (By petition)

Not Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Not Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 56
On petition of Ann Bert of 4 Raymond Lane, Hampton, NH and

twenty-five registered voters of the Town of Hampton, to see if the Town of

Hampton will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $1,610 for Sexual

Assault Support Services, a non-profit agency serving Rockingham, Strafford

and Southern York Counties. Sexual Assault Support Services has served the

Town of Hampton for twenty years and provides crisis intervention,

education/prevention programs and support groups to survivors of sexual

violence, their parents, partners and friends. These services are available to

Hampton residents upon request. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 57
On petition of John and Constance Holman and at least twenty-five

registered voters of the Town of Hampton: To see if the Town will vote to raise

and appropriate the sum of $1,850 to purchase and install a permanent 112 feet

of 18-inch "Kroy Vinyl" Picket Fence, including all materials and labor for the

installation in a section of the High Street Cemetery known as "BABYLAND."
This special section of the cemetery is designated for babies. (By petition)

Recommended by the Board of Selectmen

Recommended by the Budget Committee

ARTICLE 58
Are you in favor of reclassifying the existing Town-owned highway

known as Hardardt's Way from a Class VI Highway to a Class V highway

pursuant to RSA 231:22-a. Said highway presently provides access to the

Town's transfer station, treatment plant, public works maintenance facility, and
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various recreational facilities and already conforms to the construction standards

and requirements of the Town. (By Petition) Not Recommended by the

Deliberative Session of Town Meeting.

ARTICLE 59
Shall a charter commission be established for the purpose of revising

the municipal charter or establishing a new municipal charter?

ARTICLE 60
Shall the Town vote to approve a hazardous waste/material abatement

mandate for all town buildings that will require the following: 1) There must be

appropriate notification to the public 10 days prior to and during any hazardous

waste/material abatement. This will include: A) Written notice to all public

employees. B) Written notice in the local newspapers and notification via the

local cable programming channel. C) Notice posted at all building entrances

throughout the entire abatement process. 2) All hazardous waste/material

abatement shall be scheduled when there is an extended vacancy of the public

building, thereby allowing for enhanced safety. At no time shall hazardous

waste/material abatement occur when personnel, or the public, may return to our

public buildings in less than one week (7 days) from the completion of the

abatement activity. This would include any emergency situation. (By petition)

ARTICLE 61

On petition of Ellen Goethel for the Conservation Commission and at

least twenty-five registered voters of the Town of Hampton: to see if the voters

will place a Town-owned 5.75 +/- acre parcel of land located on the South side

of Island Path between Garland Street and #184 Island Path, abutting the marsh,

shown on Tax Map #281 Lot #1, under the jurisdiction of the Conservation

Commission. The Commission will make use of the parcel as an educational

area for the study of the marsh and it's wildlife. The passage of this article will

be at no cost to the town.

ARTICLE 62
On petition of Bonnie B. Searle and at least 24 other legal voters of the

Town, to see if the Town will vote to send the following resolution to the New
Hampshire General Court: RESOLVED, New Hampshire's natural, cultural and

historic resources in the Town and throughout the State are worthy of protection

and, therefore, the State of New Hampshire should establish and fund a

permanent public/private partnership for the voluntary conservation of these

important resources.

ARTICLE 63
On petition of Bonnie B. Searle and at least 25 other registered voters,

to see if the Town will vote to prohibit the Board of Selectmen, Shade Tree

Committee, and/or their designees, from removal/destruction of any live tree(s)

growing on public property, unless said tree(s) are destroyed by forces of nature,

removed lor transplantation, or declared diseased by a certified arborist.
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ARTICLE 64
By petition of Bonnie B. Searle and others, to see if the Town will vote

to have all additional full-time employee positions in the Town of Hampton
approved in advance by Town Meeting vote.

ARTICLE 65
WHEREAS, the Town Meeting in 1996 adopted a stipulation that 20%

of the revenues from the Town's parking lots be used for infrastructure

purposes; turned ove r to the Hampton Beach Village District (commissioners)

and WHEREAS, the Town provides for infrastructure though the municipal

budget and warrant articles for both "the Town: and "the Beach" in the warrant

each year; and WHEREAS, this 20% amounts to approximately $50,000

annually. Which could be used to reduce the tax rate . The undersigned 24 or

more legal voters, and BONNIE B. SEARLE of the Town of Hampton petition

the following question be placed on the ballot per RSA 31:95:d: "Shall we
rescind the provisions of RSA 31:95-c to restrict 20% of revenues from the

gross lease and rental income from the town's parking areas within the Hampton
Beach Village District to expenditures for the purpose of town owned
infrastructure within the Village District boundaries? Such revenues and

expenditures shall be accounted for in a special revenue fund to be known as the

20% town Parking Lot Revenue Reserve for Village District area infrastructure

fund, separate from the general fund. Any surplus in said fund shall be

expended only after a vote by the legislative body to appropriate a specific

amount for a specific purpose related to the purpose of the fund or source of

revenue." Not Recommended by the Deliberative Session of the Town
Meeting.

ARTICLE 66
To see if the Town will vote to abandon all right, title and interest in a

certain parcel of property laid out as a proposed 50 foot street running from

East to West between Lot #12, 16 Windmill Lane and Lot #13, 20 Windmill

Lane as shown on the "Plan of subdivision, Hampton, NH of Harrington and

Palmer". Said proposed street to be discontinued and easement of town over

this private property to be released. This transaction to be completed at no cost

to the Town of Hampton.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION

MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIVISION
P.O. BOX 487, CONCORD, NH 03302-0487

(603)271-3397

IVI9-S
REVISED 1999

BUDGET OF THE TOWN/CITY

OF: HAMPTOf

BUDGET FORM FOR TOWNS WHICH HAVE ADOPTED
THE PROVISIONS OF RSA 32:14 THROUGH 32:24

Appropriation! ana Eftimatef or Revenue fox tne Ensuing Year January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2 00

or Fucal Year Fi lm to

IMPORTANT:
Please read. RSA 32:5 applicable to all municipalities.

1. Use this form to list tne entire budget in tne appropriate recommended and not recommended area.

This means tne operating budget and all special and individual warrant articles must be posted.

2. Hold at least one public bearing on tbis budget.

3. Wben completed, a copy or tbe budget must be posted witn tne warrant. Anotber copy must be placed

on rile witb tbe town clerk, and a copy sent to tbe Department or Revenue Administration at tne above

address.

BUDGET COMMITTEE
JPiaasa/sign in ink:

<?///$r/£s*f/7A^

DATE: January 27, 2000

^nyp^n HlCgU/v^)M
THIS BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE TOWN WARRANT
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Budget - Town/City, of HAMPTON

Acct# SOURCE OF REVENUE

Actual ESTIMATED
WARR. Estimated Revenues Revenues REVENUES
ART.# Prior Year Prior Year ENSUING YEAR

TAXES xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3120 Land Us* Change Taxea 92.500 93.000

3180 Reeidant Taxea

3185 Timber Taxea 100 598

3186 Payment in Llau of Taxea 4,000

3119 Other Taxea

3190 Xntareat 6 Penalties on Delinquent Taxaa 230,100 225,090 200,000

Inventory Panaltiaa

3187 Excavation Tax (S.02 canta par eu yd)

3188 Excavation Activity Tax

LICENSES. PERMITS 6 FEES xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3210 Buainaaa Licanaaa t* Paniti 13.200 12.445 11 .800

3220 Koeor Vahicla Parait F««« 2,000,000 2.275.927 1.952.500

3230 Building Parmiea 140,000 170,609 87,000

3290 Oth«r Licanaaa, Parmir.s t Tmmm 16,700 16,740 16,700
3311-3319 FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT ^ ?fi^ 1 aon ?ri ma

FROM STATE xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3351 Sharad Ravanuaa 131 260 143 890 71 990

3352 Haala a Bam Tax Dletrihution 252 492 252 492 195 000

3353 Highway Block arant 188 827 188 827 188 827

3354 (Tatar Pollution arant 204 873 185 521 194 224

33S5 Houeing a Ciai lty Development 1,036

3356 stata a Padaral Poraat Land Reimbursement

3357 Flood Control Reimburaemant

3359 Otbar (Including Railroad Tax) ? ?tc; 83 9/10
1 |

inn

3379 FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 30 000

CHARGES FOR SERVICES XXXXXXXXX xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3401-3406 Income from Departments 672.786 qnq.Q3fi fi4<; 7?R

3409 Other Chaxgee 220,500 227,739 223,840

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3501 Sala of Municipal Property 1 ,000 1,000

3502 Intaraat on Invaatmant* 130,000 117,290 130,000

3503-3509 Other 435,301 478,083 440,504

INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS EST XXXXXXXXX xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3912 Prom Special Revenue Punda

3913 Prom Capital Pro j acta Punda



Budget - Town/City of HAMPTOt FY

^1 ,»,_-___
* 4 e; fi

AccL# SOURCE OF REVENUE

WARR.

ART.#

Estimated Revenues

Prior Year

Actual

Revenues

Prior Year

ESTIMATED
REVENUES

ENSUING YEAR

INTERFUND OPERATING TRANS FERS IN cont. xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3914 Prom Knc«rpri8« Funds

9mr - (Offaac)

atir - (Offaat)

Ilactric - iOttmmt)

Mrport - (Ofzaat)

3*15 Ptob Capital Raaarva Funds

3916 Prom Trait 6 Agancy Funda 825,000 785,720 832,000

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx xxxxxxxxx

3934 Proe. from Long Tana Bond* 4. Hota«

Amta VOTSD From F/B ("Surplus")

Fund Balanca ("Surplus") Co Raduca Taxaa

TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUE & CREDITS 5,647, 139 6, 169,681 5,485,985

-BUDGET SUMMARY**

UUCaQBBf 1 3

wQ'aMMatwntn BUDGXT

BUDGET COMMITTEES

RXCCKMXNUXD BUDQal

SUBTOTAL 1 Appropriations Racommandad (from paga 5) 16.764.346 16,542, 182

SUBTOTAL 2 Spacial Warrant Articlaa Racommandad (from paga 6) 10,285,018 10,285,018

SUBTOTAL 3 "Individual" Warrant Articlaa Racommandad (from paga 6) 1, 122,369 762,369

TOTAL Appropriations Racommandad ?R mn, 71 5 27.5R9.569
Lmt Amount of Satlmatad Ravanuaa a Cradita (from above*, column 6) 5,485,985 5,485,985

Batimatad Amount of Taxaa to ba Raiaad 22,544, i'Oi 22, lUJ,b84
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Plodzik & Sanderson
Professional Association/Accountants & Auditors

193 North Main Street « Concord • New Hampshire » 03301-5063 « 603-225-6996 » FAX-224-L380

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR 'S REPORT

To the Members of the

Board of Selectmen

Town of Hampton

Hampton, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Town of Hampton as of

and for the year ended December 31, 1999 as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose

financial statements are the responsibility of the Town's management. Our responsibility is to express

an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

The general purpose financial statements referred to above do not include the general fixed assets

account group which should be included in order to conform with generally accepted accounting

principles. As is the case with most municipal entities in the State of New Hampshire, the Town of

Hampton has not maintained historical cost records of its fixed assets. The amount that should be

recorded in the general fixed assets account group is not known.

In our opinion, except for the effect on the financial statements of the omission described in the

preceding paragraph, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all

material respects, the financial position of the Town of Hampton, as of December 31, 1999, and the

results of its operations and the cash flows of its nonexpendable trust funds for the year then ended in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Unaudited Supplementary Information on page 27 is not a required part of the basic financial

statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management

regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However,

we did not audit the information and do not express an opinion on it. In addition, we do not provide

assurance that the Town of Hampton is or will become year 2000 compliant, the Town of Hampton's

year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the Town
of Hampton does business are or will become year 2000 compliant.
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Town ofHampton

Independent Auditor's Report

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements

of the Town of Hampton taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements

listed as schedules in the table of contents and the other supplementary information labeled Schedules

I and II in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required

part of the general purpose financial statements of the Town of Hampton. Such information has been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and,

in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial

statements taken as a whole.

January 28, 2000 ^YaL (UoBC^b^O
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EXHIBITA
TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Combined Balance Sheet

All Fund Types and Account Group
December 31, 1999

Governmental Fund Types

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets

Cash and Equivalents

Investments

Receivables ("Net of

Allowances For Uncollectible)

Interest

Taxes

Accounts

Interfund Receivable

Welfare Liens

Welfare Liens Reserved Until Collected

Mortgage Notes Receivable

Current Portion

Prepaid Items

Other Debits

Amount to be Provided for

Retirement of General Long-Term Debt

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll and Benefits

Contracts Payable

Retainage Payable

Intergovernmental Payable

Interfund Payable

Escrow and Performance Deposits

Deferred Tax Revenue
General Obligation Bonds/Notes Payable

Capital Leases Payable

Compensated Absences Payable

Accrued Landfill Closure

and Postclosure Care Costs

Total Liabilities

Equity

Fund Balances

Reserved For Endowments
Reserved For Encumbrances

Reserved For Special Purposes

Unreserved

Designated For Special Purposes

Designated For Contingency

Undesignated (Deficit)

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

General

Special

Revenue
Capital

Projects

8,276,228 $ 83,635

20,104
$ 48,106

1,754,648

175,519

775,462
123,629

(123,629)

24,839 2,811

14,897

$ 10.996.754

$ 647,305

118,950

6,205

7,525,333

4,649

97,303

8.399.745

546,856

750,000

1.300.153

2.597.009

$ 10.996.754

$ 128.578

615

Ml

127,963

127.963

$ 128.578

$ 50.917

$ 2,811

169,006

48,106

6,752

226.675

(175.758)

(175.758 )

50.917



Fiduciary

Fund Types

Trust and

Agency

5 48,642

14,924,321

Account

Group
General Long-

Term Debt

Total

(Memorandum

Only)

$ 8,456,611

14,944,425

173,533

7,504,435

247,406

173,533

1,754,648

175,519

8,307,547

123,629

(123,629)

247,406

14,897

S 22.898.337

17.313.041

$ 17.313.041

17.313.041

51.387.627

5,073

7,517,187

775,462

44,459

8.342.181

15,515,091

59,045

1,234,905

504.000
17.313.041

655,804

118,950

169,006

48,106

7,523,392

8,307,547

49,108

97,303

15,515,091

59,045

1,234,905

504.000

34.282.257

13,815,863

740,293

14.556.156

S 22.898.337 S 17.313.041

13,815,863

546,856

740,293

127,963

750,000
1.124.395

17,105.37

51.387.627

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT

B

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for Services

Miscellaneous

Other Financing Sources

Operating Transfers In

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Expenditures

Current

General Government

Public Safety

Highways and Streets

Sanitation

Health

Welfare

Culture and Recreation

Conservation

Debt Service

Capital Outlay

Other Financing Uses

Operating Transfers Out

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency') of Revenues and

Other Financing Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances (Deficit) - January 1

Fund Balances (Deficit) - December 31

Governmental Fund Tvoes

Fiduciary

Fund Tvpe

Expendable

Trust

$

18,674

Total

General

Special

Revenue

$ 10,000

14,855

63,968

44,543

Capital

Projects

$

467,807

274

(Memorandum
Onlv)

11,067,182

2,475,721

948,665

1,137,567

595,373

$11,077,182

2,475,721

1,431,327

1,201,535

658,864

785.828 541.127

17.010.336 674.493

68.457 350.000 1.745.412

536.538 368.674 18.590.041

3,555,323 3,555,323

5,776,688 14,346 5,791,034

1,498,517 1,498,517

2,610,322 2,610,322

169,704 169,704

76,572 76,572

257,004 578,289

8,415

835,293

8,415

1,458,501 1,458,501

416,137 136,800 591,339 1,144,276

959.223 959.223

16.777.991 737.850 591.339 18.107.180

232,345 (63,357) (54,801) 368,674 482,861

2^64.664 191.320 (120.957) 366.879 2,801,906

$ 2.597.009 $ 127.963 $ (175.758) $ 735.553 $ 3.284.767

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C
TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

General and Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for Services

Miscellaneous

Other Financing Sources

Operating Transfers In

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

General Fund

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable
-

)

$ 10,901,560 $ 11,067,182 $ 165,622

2,169,900 2,475,721 305,821

865,952 843,785 (22,167)

893,286 1,137,567 244,281

566,301 595,373 29,072

825.000 785.828 (39.1721

16.221.999 16.905.456 683.457

Expenditures

Current

General Government

Public Safety

Highways and Streets

Sanitation

Health

Welfare

Culture and Recreation

Conservation

Economic Development

Debt Service

Capital Outlay

Other Financing Uses

Operating Transfers Out

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency
-

) of Revenues and

Other Financing Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Unreserved Fund Balances - January 1

Unreserved Fund Balances - December 3

1

3,623,798 3,583,270 40,528

5,578,794 5,692,726 (113,932)

1,598,302 1,500,980 97,322

2,589,355 2,673,582 (84,227)

169,381 169,704 (323)

106,915 76,622 30,293

268,089 262,670 5,419

1

1,592,983 1,483,681

1

109,302

292,000 227,350 64,650

902.381 959.223 (56.842)

16.721.999 16.629.808 92.191

(500.000) 275,648

1.774.505

% 2.050.153

$ 775.648



Annually Budgeted

Special Revenue Funds

Total

(Memorandum Onlv 1

Budget Actual

Variance

Favorable

("Unfavorable) Budget Actual

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

$

98,000

21,900

$ 10,000

63,968

38,224

$ 10,000

(34,032)

16,324

$ 10,901,560

2,169,900

865,952

991,286

588,201

$11,077,182

2,475,721

843,785

1,201,535

633,597

$ 175,622

305,821

(22,167)

210,249

45,396

552.381 541.127 (1 1.254) 1.377.381 1.326.955 (50.426)

672.281 653.319 (18.962) 16.894.280 17.558.775 664.495

21,900

547,416

4,965

573,125

8,415

21,900

(25,709)

(3,450)

3,645,698

5,578,794

1,598,302

2,589,355

169,381

106,915

815,505

4,965

3,583,270

5,692,726

1,500,980

2,673,582

169,704

76,622

835,795

8,415

62,428

(113,932)

97,322

(84,227)

(323)

30,293

(20,290)

(3,450)

1

109,302

25,85098,000 136,800 (38,800)

1,592,983

390,000

1,483,681

364,150

902.381

17.394.280

959.223

17.348.148

(56.842)

672.281 718.340 (46.059) 46.132

$ -0- (65,021)

186.766

S (65.021) $ (500.000) 210,627

1.961.271

$ 710.627

S 121.745 S 2.171.898

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITD
TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances

All Nonexpendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Operating Revenues

Sale of Land $ 266,000

New Funds 21,900

Interest and Dividends 798,571

Net Decrease in Fair Value (379.918 >

Total Operating Revenues 706.553

Operating Expenses

Transfers Out to Other Funds 786, 189

Administration 12.900

Total Operating Expenses 799.089

Operating Loss (92,536)

Fund Balance - January 1 13.913.139

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 13.820.603

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

6



EXHIBITE
TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement of Cash Flows

All Nonexpendable Trust Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash Received for Interest and Dividends $ 774,774

Cash Received for New Funds 287,900

Cash Received from Mortgages 107,529

Cash Paid as Trust Income Distributions (13,754)

Cash Paid to Other Funds (836.924")

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 319.525

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchase of Investment Securities (9,688,890)

Proceeds From Sale and

Maturities of Investment Securities 9.352.769

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (336.121)

Net Decrease in Cash (16,596)

Cash - January 1 20.779

Cash -December 31 $ 4.183

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Loss $ (92.536)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net Decrease in Fair Value 379,918

(Increase) Decrease in Receivables

Interest (23,797)

Mortgages 107,529

Decrease in Accounts Payable (854)

Decrease in Intergovernmental Payable (50.735 )

Total Adjustments 412.061

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 319.525

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted

accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to the governmental units. The Governmental Accounting

Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting

and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the government's accounting policies are

described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Town of Hampton, New Hampshire, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected

5-member Board of Selectmen. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these

financial statements present the Town of Hampton (primary government). Component units are

organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable or for which the nature

and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would

cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Based on the

foregoing criteria, no other organizations are included in the Town's financial reporting entity.

B. Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which

is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a

separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and

expenditures/expenses, as appropriate. The various funds are grouped by type in the financial

statements. The following fund types and account groups are used by the Town:

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. All general tax

revenues and other receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund

are accounted for in this fund. From the fund are paid the general operating expenditures, the fixed

charges, and the capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific

revenue sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) requiring separate accounting

because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action.

Capital Projects Funds - Transactions related to resources obtained and used for the acquisition,

construction, or improvement of capital facilities are accounted for in Capital Projects Funds.



TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust and Agency Funds - These funds account for assets held by the Town as a trustee or agent

for individuals, private organizations, and other units of government.

Account Groups

Account groups are not "funds." They are concerned only with the measurement of financial

position. They are not involved with the measurement of results of operations. The Town uses the

following account groups:

General Fixed Assets Account Group - General fixed assets have been acquired for general

governmental purposes and have been recorded as expenditures in the fund making the expenditure.

These expenditures are required to be capitalized at historical cost in a General Fixed Assets

Account Group for accountability purposes. In accordance with the practices followed by most

other municipal entities in the State, the Town does not maintain such a record of its general fixed

assets and, accordingly, a statement of general fixed assets, required by generally accepted

accounting principles, is not included in this financial report.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group - This account group is established to account for all

long-term debt of the Town.

C. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Governmental, Expendable Trust and Agency Funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Under this method, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both

available and measurable (flow of current financial resources measurement focus). Licenses and

permits, fines and forfeits, and most miscellaneous revenues are recorded when received in cash.

General taxes, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, and investment earnings are

recorded when earned (when they are measurable and available). Expenditures are recognized in

the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except expenditures for

prepayments, debt service, and other long-term obligations, which are recognized when due.

All Nonexpendable Trust Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Using this

basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized

when they are incurred (flow of economic resources measurement focus).

D. Budgetary Accounting

General Budget Policies

General governmental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds are controlled

by a formal integrated budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirements

which govern the Town's operations. At its annual meeting, the Town adopts a budget for the



TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

current year for the General, Lane Memorial Library, Conservation Commission, Cemetery

Trustees and Beach Infrastructure Funds. Project-length financial plans are adopted for all Capital

Project Funds. Except as reconciled below, budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally

accepted accounting principles.

Management may transfer appropriations between operating categories as deemed necessary, but

expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations in total. All annual appropriations

lapse at year-end unless encumbered.

State statutes require balanced budgets, but provide for the use of beginning unreserved fund

balance to achieve that end. In the fiscal year 1999, $500,000 of the beginning General Fund

unreserved fund balance was used for a legal settlement.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and continuing appropriations

(certain projects and specific items not fully expended at year end) are recognized, is employed in

the governmental funds. Encumbrances are not the equivalent of expenditures and are therefore

reported as part of the fund balance at December 31 and are carried forward to supplement

appropriations of the subsequent year.

Amounts recorded as budgetary expenditures in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General and Special Revenue Funds

(Exhibit C) are presented on the basis budgeted by the Town. The amounts differ from those

reported in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Combined Statement

of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types and

Expendable Trust Funds (Exhibit B) as follows:

Special

General Revenue

Fund Funds

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Per Exhibit C (Budgetary Basis) $ 16,629,808 $ 718,340

Adjustments

Basis Difference

Encumbrances - December 31, 1998 590,159

Encumbrances - December 31, 1999 (546,856)

Retirement Contributions Paid by State of New Hampshire 104,880

Entitv Difference

Unbudgeted Funds

U.S.S. Hampton 5,141

Founders' Day 23

Police Grant 14.346

Per Exhibit B (GAAP Basis) $16,777,991 $ 737.850
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

E. Assets. Liabilities and Fund Equity

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

For financial reporting purposes, cash and equivalents include amounts in demand deposits and

money market funds, as well as certificates of deposit and short-term investments with original

maturities of 90 days or less.

The Town Treasurer is required by State statute to have custody of all monies belonging to the

Town and shall pay out the same only upon orders of the selectmen. The Town Treasurer shall

deposit all such monies in solvent banks in the state or in participation units in the public deposit

investment pool established pursuant to RSA 383:22. Funds may be deposited in banks outside the

state if such banks pledge and deliver to the state treasurer as collateral, security for such deposits

in value at least equal to the amount of the deposit in each case.

State statutes authorize the Treasurer, with the approval of the selectmen, to invest excess funds in

obligations of the United States government, in the public deposit investment pool established

pursuant to RSA 383:22, in savings bank deposits, certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements

of banks incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire or in banks recognized by the

State Treasurer. Any person who directly or indirectly receives any such funds or monies for

deposit or for investment in securities of any kind shall, prior to acceptance of such funds, make

available at the time of such deposit or investment an option to have such funds secured by collateral

having a value at least equal to the amount of such funds. Such collateral shall be segregated for

the exclusive benefit of the Town. Only securities defined by the Banking Commissioner as

provided by rules adopted pursuant to RSA 386:57 shall be eligible to be pledged as collateral.

Investments are stated at fair value as of the balance sheet date. The fair value is based on the

quoted market price at year end. The money market investments with a remaining maturity at time

of purchase less than one year are reported at amortized cost. These include commercial paper,

banker's acceptances, and U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations.

The Trustees of Trust Funds file annual reports with the New Hampshire Attorney General.

Receivables

Receivables have been recorded for the following:

a. Tax revenue is recorded when a warrant for collection is committed to the Tax Collector.

However, the Town has established an allowance for a portion of the uncollected taxes

receivable based on historical trend information relative to collectibility. This allowance totals

$178,501 at December 31, 1999.

11



TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Interpretation No. 5 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board which interprets

Statement 1 and an amendment of Interpretation 3 of the National Council on Governmental

Accounting (NCGA), Property Tea Revenue Recognition in Governmental Funds, requires that

property taxes not collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough

thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period are not considered available and

therefore, do not meet the criteria to be considered revenue under the modified accrual basis of

accounting. The Town has consistently recorded the property tax revenue when levied without

deferral since it believes that the receivable that is not reserved will be collected soon enough

to be used to pay the liabilities as they become due.

As prescribed by law, the Tax Collector places a lien on properties for all uncollected property

taxes in the following year after taxes are due. The lien on these properties has priority over

other liens and accrues interest at 18% per annum. If property is not redeemed within the

2-year redemption period, the property is tax-deeded to the Town.

b. Interest on investments is recorded as revenue in the year earned.

c. Various service charges are recorded as revenue for the period when service was provided. The

receivables for such services are shown on the balance sheet net of an allowance for estimated

uncollectible amounts.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of normal operations, the Town has transactions between funds, including

expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services and fund capital outlay. The

accompanying governmental and fiduciary fund financial statements reflect such transactions as

transfers. To the extent that certain transactions have not been paid or received as of December 31,

balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable have been recorded.

Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded

as prepaid items.

Deferred Revenue

The government reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenue arises

when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for

recognition in the current period. Deferred revenue also arises when resources are received by the

government before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the

incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition

criteria are met, or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred

revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

12



TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Long-Term Liabilities

General Obligation Debt - General obligation bonds, notes, State revolving loans, capital leases,

and other forms of long-term debt supported by general revenues are obligations of the Town as a

whole. Accordingly, such unmatured obligations of the Town are accounted for in the General

Long-Term Debt Account Group.

Compensated Absences - Employees may accumulate a limited amount of earned, but unused

vested benefits which will be paid to employees upon separation from the Town's service. In

Governmental Fund Types, the cost of vested benefits paid or expected to be liquidated with

expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability of the

fund. Amounts of vested or accumulated leave benefits that are not expected to be liquidated with

expendable available financial resources are reported in the general long-term debt account group.

No expenditure is reported for these amounts.

Fund Equity

The portion of fund balance which has been legally segregated for a specific future use, or which

indicates that a portion is not appropriable for expenditures, is shown as reserved. The following

reserves are used by the Town:

Reserved for Endowments - represents the principal balance of Nonexpendable Trust Funds which

must be held for investment purposes only.

Reserved for Encumbrances - is used to account for open purchase orders, contracts and other

commitments at year end for which goods and services have not been received.

Reserved for Special Purposes - is used to account for the unencumbered balance of restricted

funds. These include the Town's Expendable Trust Funds and the income portion of the Town's

Nonexpendable Trust Funds.

Unreserved Fund Balances

The portion of unreserved fund balance for which management has specific plans is shown as

designated. The following designations are used by the Town:

Designated for Special Purposes - is used to account for the unencumbered balances of Special

Revenue Funds.

Designated for Contingency - is used to account for potential legal settlements.
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

F. Total Columns Memorandum Only) on Combined Statements

Amounts in the "Total (Memorandum Only)" columns in the combined financial statement line items

of the fund types and account group are presented for analytical purposes only. The summation

includes fund types and an account group that use different bases of accounting, includes interfund

transactions that have not been eliminated and the caption "amount to be provided," which is not

an asset in the usual sense. Consequently, amounts shown in the "Total (Memorandum Only)"

columns are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available or

total revenues and expenditures/expenses of the Town.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Deficit Fund Balances

Project Deficit

There is a deficit of $175,758 in the Capital Project (Winnacunnet Road Lift Station) Fund at

December 31, 1999. This deficit arises because of the application of generally accepted accounting

principles to the financial reporting for this fund. State Revolving Loan Funds authorized to finance

the project are not recognized in the financial statements until application for drawdown is made.

B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

The following governmental funds had an excess of expenditures over appropriations for the year

ended December 31, 1999:

Special Revenue Funds

Lane Memorial Library $ 25,709

Conservation Commission 3,450

Beach Infrastructure 38.800

Total $ 67.959

Overexpenditures occurred primarily due to the receipt and expenditure of unanticipated funds and

the expenditure of existing fund equity.

NOTE 3 - ASSETS

A. Cash and Equivalents

The Town maintains a common bank account in which the cash balances of most funds are

maintained. The common bank account is used for receipts and disbursements relating to all these

funds. All time deposits are the property of the General Fund.
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

All bank deposits as of December 31, 1999, were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized with securities held by the Town or its agent (Citizens Bank)

in the Town's name.

Repurchase Agreement

Included in the Town's cash equivalents at December 31, 1999, was a short-term investment in

repurchase agreement issued by a local banking institution. Under this agreement, the Town will

be repaid principal plus interest on a specified date which is subsequent to year end. The agreement

is guaranteed/collateralized with securities held by the banking institution which exceed the amount

of the agreement. The Town's investment in the repurchase agreement is as follows:

Collateral Pledged

Amount

$ 8,896,386

B. Investments

Interest

Rate %

4.3

Maturity Date

Underlying

Securities Market Value

January 3 , 2000 GNMA Pool $ 8 ,94 1 ,796

Investments made by the Town are summarized as follows. The investments that are represented

by specific identifiable investment securities are classified as to credit risk into three categories as

follows:

Category 1 Includes investments that are insured or registered, for which the securities are held

by the Town or its agent in the Town's name.

Category 2 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments, for which the securities are held

by the Town, broker, counter party's trust department or agent in the Town's name.

Category 3 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments, for which the securities are held

by the broker, counter party, counter party's trust department, or agent, but not in

the Town's name.

Most of the Town's investments are under the management of Bank of New Hampshire, which is

the Town's agent for these funds. These investments are designated as Category 3 because they are

held by an agent of the bank, but not in the Town's name.
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Categorv Fair

Certificates

of Deposit

U.S. Government

Obligations

1

$448,143

2

$ 548,305

3

$

11.773.040

$11,773,040

Value

$ 996,448

11.773.040

Mutual Funds

Total Investments

Property Taxes

$448,143 $ 548,305 12,769,488

2.174.937

$14,944,425

The property tax year is from April 1 to March 31 and all property taxes are assessed on the

inventory taken in April of that year. The net assessed valuation as of April 1, 1999, upon which

the 1999 property tax levy was based is:

State Education Tax $ 1,291,754,900

All Other Taxes $ 1,335,404,900

The Town subscribes to the semi-annual method of tax collection as provided for by RSA 76:15-a.

Under this method, tax bills are sent on or around June 1 and November 1 of each year, with

interest accruing at a rate of 12% on bills outstanding for more than 30 days. The June 1 billing

is considered an estimate only and is one half of the previous year's tax billing. The remaining

balance of taxes due is billed in the fall after the State Department of Revenue Administration has

calculated and approved the Town's tax rate for the fiscal year.

In connection with the setting of the tax rate, Town Officials, with the approval of the New
Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration, establish and raise through taxation an amount

for abatements and refunds of property taxes, known as overlay. This amount is reported as a

reduction in tax revenue and is adjusted by management for any tax reserves at year end. The

property taxes collected by the Town include taxes levied for the State of New Hampshire, Hampton

and Winnacunnet Cooperative School Districts, Rockingham County and Hampton Beach Village

District, which are remitted as required by law. The taxes collected for these other entities are

recorded in an Agency Fund. The ultimate responsibility for the collection of taxes rests with the

Town.
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Tax

Rate

Property

Taxes

Assessed

8.18 $ 10,919,272

5.32

6.50

1.08

1.69

7,109,025

8,393,435

1,444,878

379.482

$ 28.246.092

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

The tax rate and amounts assessed for the year ended December 31, 1999, were as follows:

Municipal Portion

School Portion

Local

State of New Hampshire

County Portion

Precinct Portion

Total Property Taxes Assessed

As prescribed by law, within 18 months of the date assessed, the Tax Collector places a lien on

properties for all uncollected property taxes. The lien on these properties has priority over other

liens and accrues interest at 18% per annum. If property is not redeemed within the 2-year

redemption period, the property is tax-deeded to the Town. During the current fiscal year, the Tax

Collector placed a lien on August 25 for all uncollected 1998 property taxes.

Taxes receivable at December 31, 1999, are as follows:

Property

Levy of 1999

Unredeemed (under tax lien)

Levy of 1998

Levy of 1997

Levy of 1996

Yield

Less: Allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes

Net Taxes Receivable

D. Other Receivables

Other receivables as of December 31, 1999, are as follows:

$ 1,536,046

257,987

125,996

12,522

598

(178.501 )

$ 1.754.648

Trust and

General

Fund

Agency
Funds Total

Interest

Accounts

Liens

Mortgages

Allowances for Uncollectible Amounts

$

438,784

123,629

(386,894)

$ 175.519

$ 173,533

247,406

$ 173,533

438,784

123,629

247,406

(386.894)

Net Total Receivables $ 420.939 $ 596.458
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

E. Interfund Receivables/Pavables

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 1999 are as follows:

Interfund Interfund

Receivable Payable

General Fund $ 775,462 $7,525,333

Special Revenue Funds

Beach Infrastructure 2 1 ,075

U.S.S. Hampton 3,731

Founders' Day 33

Capital Projects Funds

Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade 2,811

Winnacunnet Road Lift Station 6,752

Trust Fund

Nonexpendable

Real Estate 775,462

Agency Fund

Property Tax 7.504.435

Totals $8.307.547 $8.307.547

NOTE 4 - LIABILITIES

A. Construction and Other Significant Commitments

As of December 31, 1999, the Town had the following commitments with respect to unfinished

capital projects:

Contracts Retainage

Capital Project Payable Payable

Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade $ $31,011

Municipal Landfill Closure 4,237

Winnacunnet Road Lift Station 169.006 12.858

$ 169.006 $48.106
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

B. Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

Federal and State laws and regulations require that the Town place a final cover on its unlined

landfill and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site after closure.

The Town is currently in the process of closing its municipal landfill and the current expenditures

related thereto are reflected in the Municipal Landfill Closure Capital Project Fund. A liability is

being recognized in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group for the future postclosure care

costs of $504,000 (estimated $18,000 per year for 28 years) which is based on the amount that

would be paid if all services required to monitor and maintain the landfill were acquired as of

December 31, 1999. However, the actual cost of postclosure care may be higher or lower due to

inflation, changes in technology or changes in landfill laws and regulations. The Town expects to

finance the closure and postclosure care costs by General Fund revenue.

C. Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of the Town's general long-term debt transactions for the fiscal year

ended December 31, 1999:

General Long-Term Debt

Account Group

Balance, Beginning of Year

Retired

Net decrease in compen-

sated absences payable

Net decrease in accrued

landfill closure and

postclosure care costs

State Revolving Loan Fund

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Principal

Capitalized Interest Costs

Municipal Landfill Closure

Winnacunnet Road Lift Station

Total State Revolving Loan Fund

Balance, End of Year

General Capital

Obligation Bonds/ Leases

Notes Pavable Pavable

Accrued Landfill

Compensated Closure and

Absences Postclosure

Pavable Care Costs Total

$ 15,906,242 $ 103,454

(884,136) (44,409)

$ 1,408,010 $ 700,000 $18,117,706

(928,545)

(173,105) (173,105)

(196,000) (196,000)

67,692

25,178

56,339

343.776

67,692

25,178

56,339

343.776

492.985 492.985

$15,515,091 $ 59.045 $ 1.234.905 $ 504.000 $ 17.313.041
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Long-term debt payable at December 31, 1999, is comprised of the following:

Description of Issue

General Long-Term

Debt Account Group

General Obligation

Bonds/Notes Payable

Interest Outstanding

Original Issue Maturity Rate at

Amount Date Date % 12/31/99

Sewer Construction Bonds $1,280,000 1975 2004 6.75 $ 125,000

Sewer Bonds $800,000 1985 2005 7.50-8.50 240,000

Sewer Construction Bonds $7,800,000 1986 2006 7.50-8.50 2,730,000

Sewer Construction Loan $2,712,489 1995 2015 4.632 2,149,376

Landfill Closure Loan $4,179,686 1997 2016 4.48 3,760,939

Landfill Gas Trench $147,828 1998 2018 4.22 140,436

Wastewater Treatment Plant $1,398,340 1999 2019 5.10 1.398.340

10,544,091

State Revolving Loans * 4.971.000

15.515.091

Capital Leases Pavable

Library Computer Systems $63,370 1998 2001 32,392

Police Vehicle $15,985 1998 2000 5,324

Police Vehicles $64,040 1998 2000 21.329

59.045

Compensated Absences Pavable

Vested Sick Leave 1,025,344

Accrued Vacation Leave 209.561

1.234.905

Accrued Landfill

Postclosure Care Costs 504,000

Total General Long-Term

Debt Account Group $17,313,041

* Repayment of each of these State Revolving Loans does not commence until the respective

project is complete.
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation debt outstanding as of December 3 1

,

1999, including interest payments, are as follows:

Annual Requirements To Amortize Bonds/Notes Outstanding

Fiscal Year Ending

December 31. Principal Interest Total

2000 $ 818,916 $ 558,191 $ 1,377,107

2001 825,738 506,790 1,332,528

2002

2003

2004

2005-2019

Sub Totals

State Revolving Loans *

Totals

* See note on previous page covering the State Revolving Loans.

Annual Requirements to Amortize Capital Leases

Fiscal Year Ending

December 3 1

.

Principal Interest Total

2000 $ 47,707 $ 4,150 $ 51,857

2001 11.338 578 11.916

Totals $ 59.045 $ 4.728 $ 63.773

All debt is general obligation debt of the Town, which is backed by its full faith and credit. All debt

will be repaid from general governmental revenues.

All lease-purchase agreements contain non-appropriation funding clauses whereby, in the event no

funds or insufficient funds are appropriated by the Town, the leases shall terminate without penalty

or expense to the Town.

832,865 453,797 1,286,662

840,311 400,524 1,240,835

848,093 346,650 1,194,743

6.378.168 1.747.810 8.125.978

10,544,091 4,013,762 14,557,853

4.971.000 4.971.000

$15,515,091 $4,013,762 $19,528,853
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Bonds or Notes Authorized - Unissued

Bonds and notes authorized and unissued as of December 31, 1999 are as follows:

Per

Town Meeting

Vote of

March 14, 1995

March 14, 1995

March 10, 1998

Purpose

Landfill Closure

Route 1 Upgrade

Winnacunnet Road Lift Station

Unissued

Amount

$ 457,329 *

2,400,000

957.171 *

S3.814.500Total

* These amounts reflect drawdowns from the State Revolving Loan Fund.

State Aid to Water Pollution Projects

In addition to local revenues, the "Amount To Be Provided For Retirement of General Long-Term

Debt, " includes the following amounts to be received from the State of New Hampshire in the form

of State Aid to Water Pollution Projects:

State Aid

Bond Issues Grant Number Amount

$7,800,000 Sewer Construction Bonds

$800,000 Sewer Bonds

$1,280,000 Sewer Construction Bonds

$2,712,489 Sewer Construction Loan

Total

C-384

C-383

C-124

C-496

$ 383,802

62,180

96,292

588.681

$1.130.955

Under RSA Chapter 486, the Town receives from the State of New Hampshire a percent of the

annual amortization charges on the original costs resulting from the acquisition and construction of

sewage disposal facilities. At December 31, 1999, the Town is due to receive the following annual

amounts to offset debt payments:

Fiscal Year Ending

December 31.

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005-2015

Total

Amount

$ 144,645

138,191

131,694

125,177

118,639

472.609

$1.130.955
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NOTE 5 - OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of

assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; or natural disasters. During fiscal year 1999,

the Town was a member of the New Hampshire Municipal Association Property-Liability Insurance

Trust, Inc. and the Compensation Funds of New Hampshire - Workers' Compensation Division.

These entities are considered public entity risk pools, currently operating as common risk

management and insurance programs for member towns and cities.

The New Hampshire Municipal Association Property-Liability Trust, Inc. is a Trust organized

to provide certain property and liability insurance coverages to member towns, cities and other

qualified political subdivisions of New Hampshire. As a member of the NHMA Property-Liability

Trust, Inc., the Town shares in contributing to the cost of, and receiving benefits from, a self-

insured pooled risk management program. The membership and coverage run from July 1 to

June 30. The program includes a Self-Insured Retention Fund (SIR) from which is paid up to

$500,000 for each and every covered property, auto physical damage or crime loss subject to a

$1,000 deductible, and each and every covered general liability and public officials liability loss.

The Trust maintains on behalf of its members the following reinsurance policies shared by the

membership for the year ending June 30, 2000.

1

.

Signet Star Reinsurance Policy #9-02-AMD-07-000 1-0 which provides excess package coverage

in the amount of $1,500,000 in excess of the Trust's SIR for each and every loss.

2. Swiss Reinsurance Policy #2300895 which provides Excess Property/Excess Flood coverage in

excess of the Trust's SIR.

3. Hartford Steam Boiler Policy #FBP-CH-2213346 which provides a $50,000,000 limit resulting

from any "one accident" subject to a $1,000 deductible.

4. Royal Insurance Company Policy #RHD309238 which provides a $51,000,000 limit resulting

from Flood and Earthquake and $7,000,000 resulting from any "one accident" for Flood in

Zone A subject to a $1,000 deductible.

As required by paragraph 69 of GASB 10, entities participating in a public entity risk pool are

required to report certain information in their audited financial statements. In that regard, the Trust

has provided the following information:

1. Contributions paid in 1999 for FY2000 ending June 30, 2000, to be recorded as an insurance

expenditure totaled $240,804.
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2. There were no unpaid contributions for the year ending June 30, 2000 and due in 1999.

3. During November 1999, $37,856 was returned to the Town in the form of a check as its 1999

"dividend" for the years 1992, 1994, and 1995.

4. The Trust Agreement permits the Trust to make additional assessments to members should there

be a deficiency in Trust assets to meet its liabilities. At this time, the Trust foresees no

likelihood of an additional assessment for any of the past years.

Compensation Funds of New Hampshire - Workers' Compensation Division is a Trust organized

to provide statutory workers' compensation and employer's liability self-insurance coverage to

member towns, cities, school districts, and other qualified political subdivisions of New Hampshire.

As a member of Compensation Funds of New Hampshire - Workers' Compensation Division, the

Town of Hampton shares in contributing to the cost of and receiving benefits from a self-insured

pooled risk management program. The membership and coverage run from January 1 to

December 31. The coverage is for the statutorily required workers' compensation benefits and

employer's liability coverage up to $1,350,000. The program includes a Loss Fund from which is

paid up to $350,000 for each and every covered claim.

The Trust Agreement permits the Trust to make additional assessments to members should there be

a deficiency in Trust assets to meet its liabilities. At this time, the Trust foresees no likelihood of

any additional assessments for any of the past years.

The Town continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including employee

and public official fidelity bonds, health and accident insurance.

B. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description and Provisions

The Town of Hampton participates in the New Hampshire Retirement System (The System) which

is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer contributory pension plan and trust

established in 1967 by RSA 100-A:2 and is qualified as a tax-exempt organization under Sections

401(a) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan is a contributory, defined benefit plan

providing service, disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their

beneficiaries. Provisions for benefits and contributions are established and can be amended by the

New Hampshire State Legislature. The System issues a publicly available financial report that may

be obtained by writing the New Hampshire Retirement System, 4 Chenell Drive, Concord, NH
03301.
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Description ofFunding Policy

The System is financed by contributions from both the employees and the Town. Member
contribution rates are established and may be amended by the State legislature while employer

contribution rates are set by the System trustees based on an actuarial valuation. All employees

except police officers and firefighters are required to contribute 5% of earnable compensation.

Police officers and firefighters are required to contribute 9.3% of gross earnings. For the period

January 1 through June 30, 1999, the Town contributed 3.69% for police officers, 5.70% for

firefighters and 4.16% for other employees. From July 1 through December 31, 1999, the rates

were 4.93% for police officers, 5.70% for firefighters and 4.24% for other employees. The

contribution requirements for the Town of Hampton for the years 1997, 1998, and 1999 were

$259,605, $302,695 and $325,125, respectively, which were paid in full in each year.

The State of New Hampshire funds 35% of employer costs for firefighters and police officers

employed by the Town. The State does not participate in funding the employer costs of other Town
employees. GASB Statement #24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and

Other Financial Assistance requires this amount to be reported as a revenue and expenditure in the

Town's financial statements. This amount $104,880 has been included on Exhibit B - Combined

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund

Types and Expendable Trust Funds and is reconciled to the budgetary expenditures in Note ID.

C. Cafeteria Benefit Plan

Effective June 1, 1995, the Town implemented a cafeteria benefit plan pursuant to Section 125 of

the IRS code. Under this plan, eligible employees may direct a contribution, made by the Town,

for health insurance.

All regular full-time and part-time employees employed on a regular and continuous basis, including

certain contractual employees, are eligible to participate in this plan. Temporary and casual

employees are not eligible. The plan year adopted by the Town begins on January 1 and ends on

December 31 of the following year.

D. Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

The Town does not provide postemployment healthcare benefits except those mandated by the

Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA). The requirements established by

COBRA are fully funded by employees who elect coverage under the Act, and no direct costs are

incurred by the Town.
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NOTE 6 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES

A. Litigation

There are various claims and suits pending against the Town which arise in the normal course of

the Town's activities. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these various

claims and suits will not have a material effect on the financial position of the Town over and above

the amount designated for contingency in the General Fund.

B. Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor

agencies, principally the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already

collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount of expenditures which may

be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Town expects such

amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARYINFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 1999

The year 2000 issue is the result of problems and shortcomings in computer systems and equipment that

have the potential to adversely affect operations beyond the year 1999. Basically, the problem is

attributed to the shortsightedness of programmers who eliminated the first two digits in writing the year

in computer programs. This could cause a system to either process inaccurately or to shut down
altogether. Another factor that may affect systems is the leap year calculation for the year 2000.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the Town of Hampton disclose its status relative

to the year 2000 anticipated computer problems. To this end, the Governmental Accounting Standards

Board has described four stages that governmental entities should pass through in order to become year

2000 compliant. These stages are:

Awareness Stage - Where a budget and project plan for dealing with the year 2000 issue is developed.

Assessment Stage - When the entity actually begins to review and identify all of its systems and

components. The organization may either review all system components for year 2000 compliance or

identify through a risk analysis, only those that are mission-critical and evaluate those for compliance.

Remediation Stage - When changes are actually made to systems and equipment. This stage deals

primarily with the technical issues of converting or switching systems.

Validation/Testing Stage - When the entity actually validates and tests the changes made during the

conversion. If the testing indicates problems, the tested area needs to be corrected and retested.

Year 2000 compliance is an issue for the telecommunications, water/sewer flow and financial reporting

systems of the Town of Hampton. As of December 31, 1999, management believes it has completed

all stages. Approximately $40,000 was spent by the Town to make the systems year 2000 compliant.
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SCHEDULE A-

1

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
General Fund

Statement ofEstimated and Actual Revenues

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Over

(Under)

REVENUES Estimated Actual Estimate

Taxes

Property $ 10,574,860 $ 10,748,494 $ 173,634

Land Use Change 92,500 93,000 500

Yield 100 598 498

Payment in Lieu of Taxes 4,000 (4,000)

Interest and Penalties on Taxes 230.100 225.090 (5.010)

Total Taxes 10.901.560 11.067.182 165.622

Licenses and Permits

Business Licenses, Permits and Fees 13,200 12,445 (755)

Motor Vehicle Permit Fees 2,000,000 2,275,927 275,927

Building Permits 140,000 170,609 30,609

Other 16.700 16.740 40

Total Licenses and Permits 2.169.900 2.475.721 305.821

Intergovernmental

State

Shared Revenue Block Grant 131,260 131,171 (89)

Meals and Rooms Distribution 252,492 252,492

Highway Block Grant 188,827 188,827

Water Pollution Grants 204,873 185,521 (19,352)

Other Reimbursements 33,235 84,284 51,049

Federal 55.265 1.490 C53.775)

Total Intergovernmental 865.952 843.785 (22.167)

Charges For Services

Income From Departments 893.286 1.137.567 244.281

Miscellaneous

Sale of Municipal Property 1,000 (1,000)

Interest on Investments 130,000 117,290 (12,710)

Rent of Property 214,954 207,439 (7,515)

Fines and Forfeits 50,000 46,221 (3,779)

Insurance Dividends and Reimbursements 170,347 204,558 34,211

Other 19.865

595.373

19.865

Total Miscellaneous 566.301 29.072

Other Financing Sources

Operating Transfers In

Interfund Transfers

Trust Funds 825.000

16,221,999

785.828 (39.172)

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources $16,905,456 $ 683.457

Unreserved Fund Balance Used For Legal Settlement 500.000

Total Revenues. Other Financing

Sources and Use of Fund Balance $16,721,999

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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SCHEDULE A-2
TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

General Fund
Statement ofAppropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Current

General Government

Executive

Election, Registration, and Vital Statistics

Financial Administration

Legal

Personnel Administration

Planning and Zoning

General Government Buildings

Cemeteries

Insurance, not otherwise allocated

Litigation Settlement

Other

Total General Government

Public Safety

Police Department

Fire Department

Building Inspection

Emergency Management
Other

Total Public Safety

Highways and Streets

Highways and Streets

Street Lighting

Paving and Construction

Total Highways and Streets

Sanitation

Administration

Solid Waste Collection

Solid Waste Disposal

Sewage Collection and Disposal

Total Sanitation

Health

Animal Control

Health Agencies and Hospitals

Total Health

Encumbered

From 1998

1,995

1,885

7,404

11,594

18.998

998

500

17,115

600

).777

98.492

Appropriations

1999

99,676

141,562

500,395

142,277

497,122

87,744

176,895

64,330

1,363,297

500,000

50.500

3.623.798

2,833,547

2,600,021

126,726

500

18.000

5.578.794

850,415

167,582

580.305

1.598.302

1,292,307

401,647

689,626

205.775

2. 539,355

88,876

80.505

169.381

Expenditures

Net of

Refunds

100,430

133,602

518,964

162,492

463,963

71,531

149,731

65,304

1,341,732

500,000

47.574

3.555.323

2,909,914

2,636,557

120,144

5,193

5.671.808

874,349

149,274

474.894

1.498.517

1,277,519

437,251

757,287

138.265

2.610.322

Encumbered

To 2000

$ 35

23

17,145

9,076

5,548

(Over)

Under

Budget

31.827

3,153

35,669

1,094

39.916

3,961

3.961

3,025

29,745

128.982

161.752

2.926

40.528

89,204

80.500

169.704

97.322

28,878

(35,004)

(97,406)

19.305

(84.2271

(328)

5

mi)
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SCHEDULE A-2 (Continued)

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
General Fund

Statement ofAppropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Encumbered

From 1998

Appropriations

1999

Expenditures

Net of

Refunds

13,187

63.385

76.572

252,120

903

3.981

257.004

Encumbered

To 2000

50

(Over)

Under

Budget

Welfare

Administration

Direct Assistance

18,115

88.800

106.915

262,889

1,200

4.000

268.089

4,878

25.415

Total Welfare 50

18,857

30.293

Culture and Recreation

Parks and Recreation

Patriotic Purposes

Other

13,191 5,103

297

19

Total Culture and Recreation 13.191 18.857 5.419

Economic Development

Administration 1

929,135

627,348

36.500

1.592.983

15,000

277.000

292.000

1

Debt Service

Principal - Long-Term Debt

Interest - Long-Term Debt

Interest - Tax Anticipation Notes

884,133

561,880

12.488 25.180

25.180

15,000

218,603

8,730

22.980

45,002

65,468

H.168)

Total Debt Service 1.458.501

42,518

15,000

88,577

3,147

5,000

1,235

260.660

416.137

109.302

Capital Outlav

Sun Valley Sewer

Salt Marsh Restoration

Elevator and Sprinklers

Highland Avenue

Police Facility Plans

Wide Area Network

Office Building Improvements

111,306

15,000

88,579

221,750

7,500

9,965

68,788

2

2,500

(6.640)

Total Capital Outlay 454.100 265.313 64.650

Other Financing Uses

Operating Transfers Out

Interfund Transfers

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Projects Funds

Trust Funds

Capital Reserve

552,381

350.000

902.381

S 16.721.999

540,766

68,457

350.000

959.223

$16,673,111

11,615

(68,457)

Total Operating Transfers Out (56.842)

Total Appropriations.

Expenditures and Encumbrances S 590. 159 $ 546.856 $ 92.191

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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SCHEDULE A-3

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
General Fund

Statement of Changes in Unreserved - Undesignated Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Unreserved - Undesignated

Fund Balance - January 1 S 1,024,505

Deduction

Designated, Unreserved Fund

Balance Used For Legal Settlement

Addition

1999 Budget Summary
Revenue Surplus (Schedule A-l)

Unexpended Balance of

Appropriations (Schedule A-2)

(500.000)

683,457

92.191

$ 524,505

1999 Budget Surplus 775.648

Unreserved - Undesignated

Fund Balance - December 31 S 1.300.153

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and
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SCHEDULE B-l

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 1999

ASSETS

Cash and Equivalents

Investments

Interfund Receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Lane

Memorial Conservation Cemetery

Library Commission Trustees

$ 44,066

20,104

S 64.170

$ 35,655

$ 35.655

$ 1,460

$ 1.460

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Equity

Fund Balances

Unreserved

Designated For Special Purposes

$ 615

63.555 35.655 1.460

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 64.170 $ 35.655 $ 1.460



B-l

Beach

Infrastructure

21.075

S 21.075

u.s.s.

Hampton

3.731

$ 3.731

Founders'

Dav

$ 1,749

33

Police

Grant

$ 705

Total

$ 83,635

20,104

24.839

$ 1.782 S 705 S 128.578

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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615

21.075

S 21.075

3.731

$ 3.731

1.782

$ 1.782

705

$ 705

127.963

$ 128.578



SCHEDULE B-2

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Charges for Services

Miscellaneous

Other Financing Sources

Operating Transfers In

Total Revenues and

Other Financing Sources

Expenditures

Current

Public Safety

Conservation

Culture and Recreation

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency') of Revenues

and Other Financing Sources

Over CUnder) Expenditures

Fund Balances - January 1

Fund Balances - December 31

Lane

Memorial Conservation Cemetery

Library Commission Trustees

$ $ 10,000 $

7,034

29,762

536.162

572.958

573,125

573.125

(167)

63.722

$ 63.555

1,546

4.965

16.511

8,415

8.415

8,096

27.559

S 35.655

14

14

14

1.446

$ 1.460



B-2

Beach

Infrastructure

U.S.S.

Hampton

Founders'

Dav
Police

Grant Total

$

56,934

6,902

$

6,050

$

73

$

14,855

196

$ 10,000

14,85

63,968

44,543

541.127

63.836 6.050 73 15.051 674.493

136.800

136.800

5,141

5.141

23

21

14,346

14.346

14,346

8,415

578,289

136.800

737.850

(72,964)

94.039

$ 21.075

909

2.822

$ 3.731

50

1.732

$ 1.782

705

$ 705

(63,357)

191.320

$ 127.963

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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SCHEDULE B-3

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue Fund - Lane Memorial Library

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues

Charges for Services

Video Rentals

Non-Resident Fees

Miscellaneous

Copier

Interest

Donations

Fund Raisers

Book Sales and Fines

Other

4,424

2,610

1,338

2,240

3,543

4,815

13,128

4,698

Other Financing Sources

Operating Transfers In

General Fund

Trust Funds

535,801

361

Total Revenues and

Other Financing Sources

Expenditures

Current

Culture and Recreation

Salaries and Benefits

Administrative Costs

Books, Periodicals and Programs

Operations and Maintenance of Facilities

Capital Acquisitions and Improvements

Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues

and Other Financing Sources

Under Expenditures

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

$ 572,958

$ 377,079

53,100

87,921

48,319

6.706

573.125

(167)

63.722

$ 63.555

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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SCHEDULE B-4

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue Fund - Conservation Commission

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues

Taxes S 10,000

Miscellaneous

Interest 1,396

Other 150

Other Financing Sources

Operating Transfers In

General Fund 4.965

Total Revenues and

Other Financing Sources $ 16,511

Expenditures

Current

Conservation Commission 8.415

Excess of Revenues and

Other Financing Sources

Over Expenditures 8,096

Fund Balance - January 1 27.559

Fund Balance - December 31 $ 35.655

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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SCHEDULE B-5

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Special Revenue Fund - Cemetery Trustees

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues

Miscellaneous

Interest $ 14

Fund Balance - January 1 1.446

Fund Balance - December 31 S 1.460

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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SCHEDULE C-l

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Capital Projects Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 1999

ASSETS

Cash and Equivalents

Interfund Receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

Wastewater Municipal Winnacunnet

Treatment Landfill Road

Plant Upgrade Closure Lift Station

$31,011

2.811

S 33.822

$ 4,237

$ 4.237

$ 12,858

S 12.858

Total

$ 48,106

2.811

$ 50.917

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 2,811

Contracts Payable

Retainage Payable 31,011

Interfund Payable

Total Liabilities 33.822

Equity

Fund Balances

Unreserved

Undesignated (Deficit)

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY S 33.822

4,237

4.237

169,006

12,858

6.752

188.616

(175.758 1

12.858

2,811

169,006

48,106

6.752

226.675

(175,758)

$ 50.917

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.

37



SCHEDULE C-2

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Capital Projects Funds

Combining Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues

Intergovernmental

Miscellaneous

Other Financing Sources

Operating Transfers In

Total Revenues and

Other Financing Sources

Expenditures

Capital Outlay

Excess (Deficiency") of Revenues

and Other Financing Sources

Over (Under') Expenditures

Fund Deficits - January 1

Fund Balances (Deficit) - December 3

1

Wastewater Municipal Winnacunnet

Treatment Landfill Road

Plant Upgrade Closure Lift Station Total

$ 67,692 $ 56,339 $ 343,776 $ 467,807

274 274

68.457

124,796

68.457

67,966 343,776 536,538

67.161 14.673 509.505 591.339

805 110,123 (165,729) (54,801)

(805) (110.123) (10.029) (120,957)

$ -0- $ -0- $ (175.758) $ (175.758)

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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SCHEDULED-1
TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

Trust and Agency Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 1999

ASSETS

Cash and Equivalents

Investments

Interest Receivable

Interfund Receivable

Mortgage Notes Receivable

Current Portion

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Trust Funds

Agency

Funds

Expendable

Capital

Reserve

: Nonexpendable

Real All

Estate Other Total

$

748,305

$

13,947,977

173,533

247.406

$14,368,916

S 4,183

228,039

S 44,459

7,504,435

$ 48,642

14,924,321

173,533

7,504,435

247.406

$ 748.305 $ 232.222 S 7.548.894 $22,898,337

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Intergovernmental Payable

Interfund Payable

Escrow and Performance Deposits

Total Liabilities

$ $ 5,073 $ $ $ 5,073

12,752 7,504,435 7,517,187

775,462 775,462

44.459 44.459

12.752 780.535 7.548.894 8.342.181

Equity

Fund Balances

Reserved For Endowments

Reserved For Special Purposes

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

735.553

13,588,381 227,482

4.740

232.222

$232,222

13,815,863

740.293

735.553 13.588.381

$14,368,916

14.556.156

$748,305 $7,548,894 $22,898,337

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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SCHEDULE D-2

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
All Nonexpendable Trust Funds

Combined Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Real

Estate

All

Other Total

Operating Revenues

Sale of Land

New Funds

Interest and Dividends

Net Decrease in Fair Value

$ 266,000

788,362

(379.918)

674.444

$

21,900

10,209

$ 266,000

21,900

798,571

G79.918)

Total Operating Revenues 32.109 706.553

Operating Expenses

Transfers Out To Other Funds

Administration

775,462

12.900

788.362

10,727 786,189

12.900

Total Operating Expenses 10.727 799.089

Operating Loss (113,918) 21,382 (92,536)

Fund Balances - Januarv 1 13.702.299 210.840 13.913.139

Fund Balances - December 3

1

$13,588,381 $ 232.222 $ 13.820.603

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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SCHEDULE D-3
TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE

All Nonexpendable Trust Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash Received for Interest and Dividends

Cash Received for New Funds

Cash Received from Mortgages

Cash Paid as Trust Income Distributions

Cash Paid to Other Funds

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchase of Investment Securities

Proceeds From Sale and Maturities

of Investment Securities

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

Net Decrease in Cash

Cash - January 1

Cash - December 3

1

Real All

Estate Other Total

$ 764,565 $ 10,209 $ 774,774

266,000 21,900 287,900

107,529 107,529

(13,754) (13,754)

(81 1.343) (25.581) (836.924)

312.997 6,52? 319.525

(9,656,366) (32,524) (9,688,890)

9.342.767 10.002 9.352.769

(313.599) (22.522) (336.121)

(602) (15,994) (16,596)

602 20.177 20.779

$ -0- $ 4.183 $ 4.183

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net Decrease in Fair Value

(Increase) Decrease in Receivables

Interest

Mortgages

Decrease in Accounts Payable

Decrease in Intergovernmental Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$ (113.918)

379,918

(23,797)

107,529

(854)

(35.881 )

426 .9 1 5

S 312.997

$ 21.382

(14.854 )

(14.854 )

S 6.528

S (92.536)

379,918

(23,797)

107,529

(854)

(50.735 )

412.061

$ 319.525

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
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SCHEDULE I

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Statement of Town Clerk's Account

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Motor Vehicle Permits Issued

Motor Vehicle Title Fees

Motor Vehicle Agent Fees

2,224,952

7,934

44,997

Dog Licenses

Town's Share

State's Share

UCC Filing Fees

$ 4,754

2.399

7,153

7,835

All Other Licenses and Fees 24.263

Total Collected for Licenses and Fees S2.317.134

-Cr. -

Remittance to Treasurer $2.317.134

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.

42



SCHEDULE II

TOWN OF HAMPTON, NEWHAMPSHIRE
Trust Funds

Summary of Principal and Income

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1999

Principal

Balance Balance

January 1, December 31,

1999 Additions Deductions 1999

Nonexpendable Trust Funds

Real Estate Trust $13,702,299 $ 266,000 $379,918 $13,588,381

Cemetery 193,548 21,900 215,448

Town Needy 531 531

Library 7,636 7,636

Sports Scholarship 4.210 109 4.319

13.908.224 288.009 379.918 13.816.315

Expendable Trust Funds

Capital Reserve Funds

Hampton Beach Village Precinct

Apparatus Replacement

Town
Computer System Upgrade

Street Maintenance/Reconstruction

Total All Trust Funds

5,156

1,500

14,500

350.000 350.000

350.000

$ 638.009

5,156

1,500

14,500

700.000

371.156 721.156

$14,279,380 $379,918 $14,537,471



//

Income

Balance Balance Balance of

January 1

,

December 3 1

,

Principal and Income

1999 Additions Deductions 1999 December 31. 1999

$788,362 $788,362 $ $13,588,381

4,183 219,6314,790 9,639 10,246

1 10 11

1 361 361

123 199 217

4.915 798.571 799.197

531

1 7,637

105 4.424

4.289 13.820.604

4,372

1,173

1,947

432

430

121

740

17.934

19.225

$817,796

4,802

1,294

2,687

18.366

27.149

$ 31.438

9,958

2,794

17,187

718.366

7.924 748.305

$ 12.839 $799,197 $ 14.568.909

See Independent Auditor's Report, pages 1 and 2.
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INDEPENDENTA UDITOR 'S COMMUNICATION OF
REPORTABLE CONDITIONS AND OTHER MATTERS

To the Members of the

Board of Selectmen

Town of Hampton

Hampton, New Hampshire

In planning and performing our audit of the Town of Hampton for the year ended December 31, 1999,

we considered the Town's internal control structure in order to determine the scope of our auditing

procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our review of these

systems was not intended to provide assurance on the internal control structure and should not be relied

on for that purpose.

Under the standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, reportable

conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or

operation of the internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Town's ability

to record, process, summarize, and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management

in the financial statements. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or

operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low

level the risk that errors or irregularities, in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial

statements being audited, may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the

normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control structure

would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might constitute reportable

conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also

considered to be material weaknesses as defined above.

We are pleased to report that, during the course of our review of internal controls, no material

weaknesses in the Town's accounting systems and records were identified. Minor weaknesses or other

considerations coming to our attention were generally procedural in nature and dealt with administrative

or recordkeeping practices. In these instances, we made specific recommendations or provided

instruction to applicable individuals during the course of our audit fieldwork. Areas discussed included:

A. The Town Clerk needs to make deposits to the bank account in a more timely manner.
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Town of Hampton

Independent Auditor's Communication ofReportable Conditions and Other Matters

B. The Departments should use purchase orders in accordance with Town policy without exception,

including capital project contract change orders.

C. The process whereby departments are depositing directly to the Town bank account, needs to

be reviewed in order to assure that the flow of information is adequate and timely.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and others within the

administration. This restriction is not intended to limit distribution of this report, which is a matter of

public record.

January 28, 2000 r rur^***~

45





HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

HAMPTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S COMMUNICATION OF
REPORTABLE CONDITIONS AND OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Commissioners

Hampton Beach Village District

Hampton. New Hampshire 03842

We have audited the financial statements of the Hampton Bcacli Village District. New Hampshire

for the fiscal year ended December 3 I. 1999. in accordance with State of New Hampshire

RSA 7 1 -A: 19 Included in the examination and audit were the accounts and records of the Board

of Commissioners. Treasurer, and Trustees of Trust Funds.

As a part of our examination, we reviewed and tested the District's system of internal accounting

control to the extent we considered necessary to evaluate the system as required by generally

accepted auditing standards. Under these standards, the purpose of such evaluation is to establish

a basis for reliance thereon in determining the nature, timing, and extent of other auditing procedures

that arc necessary for expressing an opinion on the financial statements.

The objective of internal accounting controls is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance

as to the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the reliability

of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The

concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a system of internal accounting control

should not exceed the benefits derived, and also recognizes that the evaluation of the factors

necessarily requires the use of estimates and judgments by district officials.

In connection with our audit report dated February 8. 2000. we noted the following:

A Capital Reserve Accounts

Our audit indicated that moneys to be transferred to the Capital Reserve Account as included in

the annual budget were not properly and timely transferred These differences created "due from"

and "due to" balances in both accounts at year end.

It is recommended that transfers to Capital Reserve Accounts and transfers from Capital Reserve

Accounts be timely made to the respective cash accounts.

B Internal Control

As of our audit date, the District Treasurer had total control of all cash accounts, investment accounts

and cash disbursements Duties included writing and signing checks, preparing vouchers, receiving and

reconciling monthly bank statements. In addition the Treasurer performs all general bookkeeping

operations. The system as described above allows one individual complete control of cash disbursements.

The District should implement controls, such as. dual signatures on all checks and transfers from accounts,

as soon as possible

YOl'NCn.AUS AND COMPANY
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Hampton Beach Village District

Independent Auditor's Communication of Reportable

Conditions and Other Matters

Page 2

C Cash Balance

Wc noted during our audit that bank balances exceeded $ 1 00.000 several times during the year.

We recommend the Treasurer consistently monitor bank balances and initiate transfers to the New
Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool, thereby maintaining the bank operating account under

$ I ()().()()()

D General Fixed Assets Accounting

In general, accounting for fixed assets provides information for estimating the amount of insurance

needed, monitors asset utilization, provides a safeguarding oxer the asset, and allows for

depreciation to be estimated when applicable. As reported in prior years communications, the

District does not maintain records for its investment in property, plant and equipment because

historical cost data in not available.

Current government accounting standards and generally accepted accounting principles require

full disclosure of local government fixed asset funds for complete presentation of financial

condition

We recommend that the District adopt a system for fixed asset control that will include all property,

plant and equipment purchases and the required depreciation schedules to recognize the net

historical cost value of these assets.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and others within the

administration This restriction is not intended to limit distribution of this report, which is a matter of

public record

In closing. I compliment and thank the Commissioners and staff of the Hampton Beach Village District

for their competent assistance during the course of the audit.

Youngclaus & Company

Certified Public Accountants

By:

/S/
William C. Youngclaus

Certified Public Accountant

February S. 2000

V< )l 'N< iU.At 'S AMI ) 11 >MI'ANV
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Commissioners

Hampton Beach Village Dislricl

Hampton. New Hampshire 03842

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Hampton Beach

Village District as of December 31.1 999 and for the year then ended These financial statements

are the responsibility of the Hampton Beach Village District's management. Our responsibility

is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards

require that \vc plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement An audit includes examining, on a lest basis, evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described more fully in Note 1. the general purpose financial statements referred to above omit

the general fixed asset account group, which should be included to conform with generally accepted

accounting principles. This omission results in an incomplete presentation of the financial statements.

The amount that should be recorded in the general fixed asset account group is not known.

In our opinion, except for the omission of the information discussed in the preceding paragraph,

the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of Hampton Beach Village District as of December 3 1. 1999, and the results of

us operations, changes in their fund balances and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity

with generally accepted accounting principles

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial

statements taken as a whole The supplementary schedules arc presented for the purpose of

additional analysis and arc not a required part of the combined financial statements. Such

information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose

financial statements and. in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the

general purpose financial statements taken as a whole

Youngclaus and Company

Certified Public Accountants

Bv:

/S/
William C. Youngclaus

Certified Public Accountant

Februarv 8. 2000

YOUNfifLAUS AND COMPANY

725 I AlAYIilTIi KUAI) • HAMPTON. NliW I lAMl'SI llltll 111X42



EXHIBIT A

HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET- ALL FUND TYPES

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Capital Reserves

General & Projects Fiduciary

Fund Fund Funds

Totals

(Memorandum Only)

12/31/99 12/31/98

Cash - Chocking

InveslmeiU Account

Due From Town of I lampion

Due From Other Funds

Due From State

$ 179,273.33

36,638. IX

8,003.00

12,752.10 3,871.51

36,000.00

$ 179,273.33

53.261.79

8,003.00

36,000.00

397.88

21.533.78

144.977.22

TOTAL ASSETS $ 224,312 39 J 48,752 10 $ 3,871.51 $ 276,936.00 $ 166,908 89

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Due To Other Funds

% 16.400 61

36,000.00

16,400.61 $ 5.548.75

36,000.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 52.400.61 $ 52,400.61 $ 5,548.75

Fund Equity:

Fund Balances

Encumbered & Reserved

Unreserved

Designated For Subsequent

Years Expenditures

Un-dcsiimatcd

$ 48.752.10 $ 57.082.10 J 15.526 46

3,871.51 3,656.28

163,58178 142,177.40

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 224.535.39 161,360 14

I'OTAI. LIABILITIES AND
FUND EQUITY % 224.312 39 $ 48.752 10 $ 3.871.51 $ 276.93600 $ 166,90889

The accompanying notes are an integral part ol' these Financial statements



EXHIBIT B

HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND SURPLUS

GENERAL AND CAPITAL FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1«J99

General

Fund

Revenues

Taxes $ 37y.482.00

Inter-Governmental Revenue - Slale 795.79

Charges I or Services

Miscellaneous Revenue

Interest

loud Revenues

28.470.00

12.665.00

4,427.08

425.839.87

Capital totals

Projects Fiduciar>' (Memorandum Only)

Fund Funds 12/31/99 12/31/98

- $ % 379,482.00 $ 310,075.00

~ ' 795.79

28,470.00

795 78

30.619.50

36,000.00 150.00 48,815.00 7,700,00

550.64 65.23 5,042.95 7,371.87

356,562.15

Expenditures

General Governmental 47,375.70

Public Safety 39.313.91

Non-Exempt Taxation Only:

Culture and Recreation 276.740.88

Capital Outlay 36,000.00

Total Expenditures 399,430.49

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures 26.409.38

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other

Sources (Uses) 26,409.38

Fund balances at Beginning of Year 145,502.40

Fund Balances at End of Year % 171.91178

36.550.64

12,201.46

215.23

3,656.28

47,375.70

39,313.91

276,740.88

36,000.00

64,993 61

35.470.42

63,175.25 14,635.59

161,360.14 146,724.55

% 48.752.10 $ 3,871.51 $ 224,535.39 $ 161,360.14

'The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



EXHIBIT C

HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANCES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS)

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

GENERAL FUND

Revenues

Taxes

Inlei -Governmental Revenues - Stale

Charges Tor Serviees

Miscellaneous Revenue

Interest

376,479.00

7%.0()

26,000.00

200.00

379.482.00

795.79

28,470.00

12,665.00

4,427.08

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

; 3.003.00

(0.21)

2,470.00

12,465.00

4,427.08

Total Revenue

Olhci Financing Sources,

Operating Transfers In

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Expenditures:

General Cioverninenlal

Public Safely

Non-Exempt Taxation Only:

Cultuie. Recreation and Advertising

46,575.00

46.900 00

48.680.70

41,513.91

(2,105.70)

5.386.09

(4,240.88)

Total Expenditures (960.49)

Olhei Financing Uses'

Operating Transfers Out Capital Reserve

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Us (960.49)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Other Financing Sources

( Ivor (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances al Beginning of Year

I iiiul Balances al End of Yew S 142,177.40

21,404.38

142.177 40

$ 163,581.78 $ 21,404.38

I he accompanying notes are an integral pail of these financial statements



EXHIBIT D

HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

IInccss nl' Revenues and Other Sources

( Ivor ( I laden Fxpendi lures and Oilier

Sources (Uses) S

Capital Totals

General Projects Fiduciary (Memorandum Only)

Fund Fund Funds 12/31/99 12/31/98

$ 63,175.25

Adjustments lo Reconcile lixcess of Revenue

and Other Sources Over (Under)

l:\pendilures and Other Sources lo Net

Cash From Operations:

Changes In Assets and Liabilities:

Due From Other Funds. Town and Slate

(Increase) Decrease

Accounts Payable Increase (Decrease)

Due To Other Funds Increase ( Decrease)

(8.002.99)

10.851 86

36.000.00

(36,000.00) (44,002.99)

10,851.86

36,000.00

14.102 II

3.299.08

(14,500.00)

Net Increase (Decrease) hi Cash

Cash Balance - Beginning of Year

65.258.25

150.653.26

550.64

12.201.46

215.23

3.656.28

66,024. 12

166.511.00

17,536.78

148,974.22

Cash Balance - Hnd of Year $ 215.911.51 $ 232.535.12 $ 166,511.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, l!>«J9

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Reporting Entity

I liimplon Ueaeh Village District is a municipal corporation organized and designated as a District under the laws

of the Stale ofNow Hampshire. The District is governed by an elected three member board of commissioners The

purpose of the District is to provide general government services, certain public safety services and culture and recreation

benefits for Hampton Beach Village District. The District is located within the Town of Hampton, New Hampshire.

Types and Purposes of Funds

A General funds are intended to provide recurring general services. They are controlled bv a budget approved by the

voters All general las revenues and other receipts that are not allocated bv law or contractual agreement to another

fund are accounted for in this fund. From the fund are paid general/operation expenditures, fixed charges, and

capital costs not paid through other funds.

15 Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial assets obtained and used for the acquisition or improvement

of major capital facilities Hie District's Capital Projects Funds include the following:

1 Hie General Capital Improvements Fund consists of moneys voted in 1 981 for capital improvements as the result

of the sale of the saltwater protective system. The original voted amount was $75,000. As of 12/31/99, the

balance of the fund was $9958.23 including interest. Interest for 1999 was $429.53.

2 The I ire Equipment Capital Fund voted ill March of 1995 and March of 1996 for the purpose of purchasing

maioi lire equipment in subsequent years. As of 12/31/99. the balance of the fund was $12,793.87, including

interest Interest for 1 999 was $121.11

3. In 1999. the district approved the amount of $26,000 in capital improvements to construct bathrooms in compliance

with the Americans With Disabilities Act.

C. Fiduciary Fund Types account for financial assets held by the district in a trustee or agency capacity for individuals

or private organizations The District's Fiduciary Funds consist of the following:

1

.

Ross Trust Fund, designated for subsequent years children's benefit programs 'Hie balance of this account

at 12/31/99 was $906.40. Interest for 1999 amounted to $10.40.

2. I lampion Beach Playground Contribution Fund, an agency fund, established for subsequent years playground

additions The balance of this fund at 12/31/99 was $2965 1 I Interest for 1999 amounted to $54.83.

Basis of Accounting

The accounting policies ol the Hampton Beach Village District conform to generally accepted accounting

principles for local governmental units except as indicated hereinafter

( unci niiiciil.il funds utili/e the modified accrual basis whereby revenues arc recorded when measurable and

available Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred (accrual basis) except:

A Disbursements foi inventory items (materials and supplies) are considered expenditures at the lime of purchase

B Prepaid expenses are not normally recorded



HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

General Fixed Asset Account Group

I'roporlv. plant unci equipment acquired or constructed lor general governmental services are recorded as

expenditures in the fund making the expenditure. Funds used to acquire general fixed assets and/or debt service

payments on borrowing in connection therewith are accounted lor as expenditures in the year payments are

made This represents a departure from generally accepted accounting principles which require that fixed

assets he capitalized and accounted lor in a separate fixed asset group of accounts.

Total Columns on Combined Statements - Overview

Total columns on the Combined Statements - Overview are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that they

are presented only to facilitate financial analysis Data in these columns do not present financial position, results

of operations, or changes in financial position in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither

is such data comparable to a consolidation, Intel-fund elimination's have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

2. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Significant General Budget Policies

lue District follows a formal budgetary procedure in accordance with various legal requirements governing the

District's operations.

Al an annual District meeting the District adopts a budget for the current year for the General Fund.

Project-length budgets are adopted for the Capital Projects Fund when major capital facility expenditures are

planned. The governing commissioners may transfer appropriations between exempt operating expenditures

as they deem necessary, but not between exempt and non-exempt categories All annual budget appropriations

lapse al year end unless encumbered.

Slate statutes require annual balanced budgets but allow entities to use prior years unreserved fund balances

as revenues to balance the current years appropriations, for the year ended December 31. 1999, unreserved fund

balances were applied in the amount ol $3,003 for this purpose.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used for the general fund and capital projects funds. Encumbrances are recorded when

purchase orders, contracts, and continuing appropriations are issued or voted, but are not considered expenditures

until liabilities for payments are incurred. Encumbrances are reported as a reservation of fund balance on the balance

sheet. Encumbrances do not lapse at year end bul are earned forward as a reserved balance until liquidated.



HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, li>!>9

2. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Precinct Budget to GAAP Basis iif Accounting

Amounts included as budgetary expenditures in the "Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances-Budget and Actual (GAAP Basis) General Fund" (Exhibit C) are presented on the basis budgeted by the District and

include encumbrances lor various playground expenditures This amount differs from those reported in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles (Exhibit B) as follows:

Encumbrance

Encumbered Encumbrance Adjustment Encumbered

Balance Paid For 111 As Of Balance

12/31/98 1999 1 2/3 1 /99 12/31/99

General Government

Public Safely

Culture and Recreation

3.325,00 $ (3.325.00)

(3,325.00)

$ 4.630.00

2,200.00

1,500.00

$ 8,330.00

4.630.00

2,200.00

1,500.00

3. CASH AND SAVINGS ACCOUNTS

Tile District Treasurer is required by Slate statute to have custody of all moneys belonging to the District and

shall pay out the same only upon orders of the commissioners The District Treasurer shall deposit all such

moneys in solvent banks in the stale or in participation units in the public deposit investment pool established

pursuant to RSA 3X3 22. Funds may be deposited in banks outside the slate if .such banks pledge and deliver to

the stale treasurer as collateral security for such deposits in value at least equal to the amount of the deposit in

each case-

Whenever the District Treasurer has an excess of funds which are not immediately needed for the purpose of

expenditure, Stale statutes require the Treasurer, with the approval of the commissioners, invest the same

in obligations of the United Slates government, in savings bank deposits of banks incorporated under the laws

of (he Stale of New Hampshire or in certificates of deposits of banks incorporated under the laws of the State

of New I lampshire or in national banks located within this state or the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Any

person who dueclb oi indirectly receives any such funds or moneys for deposit or for investment in securities of

anv kind shall, prior to acceptance of such funds, make available at the time of such deposit or investment an

option to have such funds secured by collateral having a value at least equal to Ihe amount of such funds Such

collateral shall he segregated for the exclusive benefit of the District Only securities defined by the bank

commissioner as provided bv rules adopted pursuant to RSA 3X6:57 shall be eligible to be pledged as collateral

I'M financial planning pui poses, cash and equivalents include amounts in demand deposits and money market funds

as well as certificates of deposit and short-term investments with original maturities of 90 days or less.

A^ of December 31. 1999 savings account balances in the amount ol % 1 79.273 33 were in accounts secured bv the Federal

Depositors Insurance Corporation to a maximum of $100,000 and U36.63X IX was invested in the New I lampshire Public Deposit

Investment Pool



HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

-I PROPERTY TAXES

The propcrlv Ui\ your is IVom April Isl Id March 31st and all property taxes are assessed on the property valuation

taken in April of thai year The properly las rate is established in the fall by the Slate Department of Revenue

Administration alter (he review and approval. The property taxes are collected by the Town of Hampton and

paid over to the District, upon request, at various limes during the year. The responsibility of tax collection and

ptoperlN tax liens is vested in the Town ol Hampton.

I axes raised In lire I )istricl aie assessed using different rales for non-exempt property and exempt property

Noii-exeinpl pioperly taxes are based on total budgeted appropriations, including appropriations for culture and

recreation allocated to the District's activities.

Lxcinpl property taxes exclude the appropriations for culture and recreation and are assessed only on the budgeted

appropriations of general government and public safety.

1'or 1999, the total lax assessment consisted of:

Valuation Rate

Non-exempt $2 1 1 .072,200 % 1 1 8/$
1
,000

Lxempl $255,719,7110 1 51/$ 1.000

Total

RISK MANAGEMENT

Assessed Tax

$ 249,065.20

130,417.05

$ 379,482.24

I'he Dislricl is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts, thefts of. damages to. and destruction of assets, errors

and omissions, injuries to employees: and natural disasters. The District is insured under various policies as of 12/31/99,

coverinu the following

General Blanket and Fire Policy, Building and Contents

Boiler Lquipinent and Machinery Policy

Hazardous Waste Policy

Flood Insurance:

Building

Contents

General Commercial Liability

I'ire Commercial Liability

Public Official Liability

Workers Compensation

Bond Coverage

Automobile Liability Policy

Automobile Lquipment Policy

$538,000 Per Occurrence

$439,500 Per Occurrence

$100,000 Per Occurrence

$44,300

$17,600

$1 .000.000 Per Occurrence and $2,000,000 Aggregate

$500,000 Per Occurrence

$ 1 ,000,000 Per Occurrence and Aggregate

$100,000 Per Accident

$25,000

$1,000,000 Per Occurrence

$234,000.00

si ol ins :mce coverage for the year ended July I. 2000 was $1 1.674.
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SCHEDULE 1

HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND
ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BASIS) - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Budget

379,482.00 $ 379.482.00

GENERAL FUND

Variance

Favorable

Actual (Unfavorable)

Inlei-Ciovernmenlal Revenues:

Business I'm Ills Tax (021)

Charges For Services:

Rent of District Property & Parking

Miscellaneous Revenues:

Ashworth Fund

Senior Week Income

Fireworks Sponsorship

Interest

Fund Surplus Used (Added) to Adjust Tax Rate

TOTALS

200.00 200.00 -

- 4,965.00 4,965.00

- 7,500.00 7,500.00

- 4.427.0X 4,427.08

(3,003.00) - 3,003.00

$ 403,475.00 $ 425,839.87 $ 22,364.87

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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SCHEDULE 2

HAMPTON BEACH VILLAGE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND

ACTUAL- GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1999

General Government:

Office Salaries and Expense

Financial Administration

Legal Expense

General Government Building Maintenance

Insurance

oilier General Government

575.00

3.800.00

4.500.00

18.000.00

14.500.00

5.200.00

GENERAL FUND

575.00

3,700.00

9.743.65

16.918.45

11,674.00

6.069.60

Variance

Favorable

(Unfavorable)

100.00

(5,243.65)

1,081.55

2,826.00

(869.60)

Total General Government 46,575.00 $ 48.680.70 (2.105.70)

Public Safety:

Fire Equipment

Fire Station Maintenance

I ire Iruck Repair

Fire Gasoline

Fire Communications

Kire Utilities and Supplies

11.175.00

4,600.00

12,900.00

1.200.00

3,400.00

13,625.00

12,941.26

5,055.46

8,748.82

999.89

3,078.86

10,689.62

(1,766.26)

(455.46)

4,151.18

200.11

321 14

2,935.38

Total Public Safety 5.386.09

Non-Exempt Taxation Only:

Culture. Recreation, and Advertising:

Advertising

Hands

Promotional Weeks

Fireworks

Playground Expense

$ 1 53.000 00

55.000 00

14.000.00

38,000.00

14.000.00

$ 152.377.08

55,000.00

17.159.18

44,226X0

9.477.82

(3,159.18)

(6,226.80)

4,522.18

Total Culture. Recreation, and Advertising

Capital Projects Fund

$ 274.000.00

J 36.000.00

$ 278,240.88

$ 36.00000

J (4.240.88)

I DIALS i 403.475.00 i 404.43549

Ihe accompaiiving notes are an inlegral part of these fhnillciul Statements
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Residential Rubbish Collection Schedule

(DPW Tel: 926-3202)

Year Round
Area of Town Collection

1. Ocean Boulevard, from Winnacunnet Rd. south to Monday
Seabrook town line, west to Marsh.

2. Lafayette Road, both sides, and west to Exeter line. Tuesday

3. North of High Street to N. Hampton line, Wednesday

4. High Street, both sides to Ocean Blvd., and south- Thursday

west to Hampton Falls town line.

5. Ocean Blvd., from Winnacunnet Rd. north to North Friday

Hampton town line, west to Eel Creek, excluding lower

end of Winnacunnet Rd. & High Street.

Commercial Rubbish Collection Schedule w/ Recycling

All Schools & Stores Monday through Friday

All Eating Places Monday through Friday

(also Saturday & Sunday during summer*)

All Hotels, Motels, Apartment Complexes w/ 6+ units. ...Mon., Wed., & Friday

All Filling Stations Monday & Friday

*Summer season begins the third Monday in June and ends the second Saturday in September

Holiday Collections

Memorial Day, Independence Day and Labor Day will receive normal pick-up.

Scheduled collections on the remaining holidays will be picked up the next

day. During severe inclement weather, no pick-ups will be made until the

following week on the scheduled day.

Transfer Station Hours
(Entrance: Landing Road near Winnacunnet Road)

WINTER HOURS: Monday, Wednesday, Friday 8:30 a.m. - 3:00 p.m.

Thursday, Sunday Noon- 3:00 p.m.; Saturday 8:30 -3:00 p.m.

SUMMER HOURS: Monday, Wednesday, Friday 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.

Thurs., Sunday Noon-4:00 p.m; Saturday 8:00 a.m.- 4:00p.m.

Closed Tuesday




